
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

May 16, 2017 
 

Work Session – 5:00 p.m. 
Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 
MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 



 

DEPARTMENTAL 

REPORTS 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

TO:  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 

 

FROM: Jeff Allen, Director – Residential Services Department 
 

DATE:  May 11, 2017 
 

RE: RSD Monthly Board Report- April/May 2017 

 

 

I participated in a webinar on safety data sheets organization.  This was conducted  

by MSDSonline and seemed to be quite the catalog system of all the required  

sheets we need to maintain.  This item is on the board agenda for the next meeting  

seeking approval to join their online system.  

 

Michael Saranen and I attended the Huron River Watershed Council meeting of  

dam owners held at their offices in Ann Arbor. We had a presentation from the  

National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) regarding trying to  

forecast river levels and the different benchmarks for watches and warnings.  The  

group also shared all the projects they have been working on.  

 

The Vet’s Drive project is progressing.  Four additional drainage lines have been  

added, 3 of them in or around the Vets Memorial. With the recent rains, the  

memorial seems much drier than it has been in prior weeks.  There was also  

grading work done and in the coming days/weeks, we will get topsoil and seed put  

down.  I also hired Anglin, while they were here doing work, to reset 2 curb storm  

drains as they were beginning to collapse.  

 

I met with Coy Vaughn of the County Parks to discuss future bike paths.  We  

drove areas of the Township looking at the possibilities and Coy gave me some  

applications for future grant work to obtain funds for non-motorized paths.  

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Residential Services Division 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484.0073 
Fax:  (734)544.3501 

 
www.ytown.org 

  

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 
HEATHER ROE 

MONICA ROSS-WILLIAMS 
JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

 

 

http://www.ytown.org/


 

Work at Green Oaks is progressing. To date, they have removed all the safety  

issues related to tree roots. They have also removed all the asphalt around the  

clubhouse in preparation of replacing these areas with asphalt and or concrete. For  

most of the construction days, there has not been a shutdown of either the front 9  

or the back 9.  The plan now is to start pulverizing the front nine on May 12.  They  

were going to continue to work on Saturday the 13th, but Kirk asked them to hold  

off as he anticipates many golfers on Saturday and Sunday.  The original  

completion day was to be May 26, but with 4 days of rain last week and by them  

following Kirk’s schedule request, they could be as much as a week behind the  

schedule.  

 

Our maintenance crews successfully completed all the set up and tear-down of the  

election equipment.  The election was much smaller than the usual one, but still  

took many maintenance people essentially a week for what was needed.  

 

The bids are in on Bud and Blossom playground structure and I believe the award  

is forthcoming, hopefully by the time of the Board meeting.  Remember, this is  

being run & funded by Washtenaw County and therefore it will not be coming  

back to the Township Board.  

 

The Community Ceiling tile project, also being funded and administered by  

Washtenaw County, is now out for bid.  We hope to have this awarded in the  

coming weeks and plan to get the work done this summer, ideally by Labor Day.  

 

On a positive note, I stop by the tennis/pickle ball courts daily on my way home  

and talk to the players.  We are averaging about 12 pickle ball players a day on the  

good weather days.  I have yet to see anyone playing tennis.   

 

Tyler pond has been drawn down to a stream at this point.  It is quite a site to see  

and I could just imagine fish swimming in this stream. We have a meeting  

upcoming to discuss work that still needs to be done, and in what type of condition  

should the project be in, when it is handed off to the County.  

 

 

Ford Lake Dam 

General Summary: 

The Hydro Station continues to operate safely and continues to get routine safety 

inspections and preventive maintenance. The operators had 9 after hour call-ins for 

April. The average precipitation for the month of April is around 2.85”, this year it 

was about 4.12” and production for the months was well above average. 

 



 

Regulatory: 

For 2017 

- update DSSMP (started) 

- EAP Training (training complete) 

- Part 12- recommendation plan (started) 

- Concrete maintenance (summer) 

- Emergency Standby Generator Replacement (Scheduled) 

- Substation maintenance (summer) 

- WQ Report (equipment deployed in April) 

- Nuisance Plant Plan Report (summer) 

- Wildlife Plan Report (fall) 

- Historical Activity Report (fall) 

- Gate Certification (fall) 

- Security Review (spring) 

- Annual Safety inspection (summer) 

- EAP annual update and test (fall) 

 

Projects: 

Transfer Trip Communication (almost complete) 

The Township Board approved a construction agreement for new communication 

with the DTE substation. DTE Electric has provided a project cost of $180,000. 

Installation was targeted for May 2015 and then October 2015. Finally, after a long 

wait, the new equipment went online in December 2016. 

With the new equipment online, the old AT&T service was canceled, saving over 

$36K per year. We are now waiting for the project close out by DTE, it is possible 

that the project will come in under budget and a refund will be issued. 

 

Operation Summary 

2017      April   YTD   4yr Ave. 

 

Precipitation     4.12”   12.60”    32.5” 

Days Online     30    120     351 

Gross generation MWH (est.)   1,483.9             4,156.4              8,815.94 

Generation lost MWH (est)*   0      7.950 

After Hour Call In 

Water levels        7      14      37 

Mechanical/Electrical      0        0      3 

Other        2        3      6 

Totals        9        17     46 



 

Recent History    2013   2014   2015  2016 

 

Precipitation total   40.87”   34.31”  25.27”  29.61 

Days Online    345    355     345  359.5 

Generation MWH (est)    8,991.285       9,746.0       7,723.04  8803.44 

Generation lost MWH (est)*   454.8*       643.16*         419.1*    229.8* 

After Hour Call In 

Water levels    44    43      32      31 

Mechanical/Electrical    1      7         1        4 

Other       0    15        1        2 

 

Totals     45    67        34      37 
*losses related to scheduled & unscheduled maintenance and water quality 

discharges. 

** NOAA, (36” average precipitation annually) 

 

 

Spilling Summary: 

Releasing water from the sluice gates is primarily to maintain lake level 

when flow exceeds the powerhouse. At certain times, we can use the 

gates to help keep the lake mixing to maintain oxygen levels 

(effectiveness depends on a number of factors) at the bottom of the lake. 

 

The water quality monitoring begins on June 1st and will end on 

September 30th; operators monitor the water quality conditions and take 

readings as outline in the WQ Plan. The hydro discharges from the 

bottom gates to maintain run of river and/or help with water quality in 

Ford Lake. The Federal License requires we pass water with a minimum 

of 5mg/l of dissolved oxygen all the time. Therefore, spilling from the 

bottom gates in the summer for improving the lake is not always 

possible. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Sluice Gate Usage Summary 

 
Current Year      Current Year     Current Year       Prior Year 

2017    Days Spilled        Lost KWh*           Lost $*             Lost $* 

January         17.0         0    0           0 

February         10.8         0    0           0 

March         12.5        0    0           0 

April          29.2        0    0           0 

May             2,734 

June             8,586 

July              0 

August            0 

September            0 

October            0 

November                0 

December            0 

Totals           69.5                   0                 $ 0            $ 11,320* 

*estimated losses from diverting water away from generators for the purpose 

improving WQ. 

 

 

 

 



14-B District Court

Revenue Report for April 2017

General Account

Account Number

Due to Washtenaw County

(101-000-000-214.222) $3,953.12

Due to State Treasurer

Civil Filing Fee Fund  (MCL 600.171): $13,937.00

State Court Fund  (MCL 600.8371): $1,110.00

Justice System Fund  (MCL 600.181): $31,468.00

Juror Compensation Reimbursement Fund:

Civil Jury Demand Fee  (MCL 600.8371): $20.00

Drivers License Clearance Fees  (MCL 257.321a): $1,980.00

Crime Victims Rights Fund  (MCL 780.905): $7,713.74

Judgment Fee  (Dept. of Natural Resources): $0.00

E-File Fee  (228.56): $4,270.00

Due to Secretary of State

(101-000-000-206.136) $1,980.00

Total: $62,478.74

Due to Ypsilanti Township

Court Costs (101-000-000-602.136): $45,457.58

Civil Fees (101-000-000-603.136): $12,328.00

Probation Fees (101-000-000-604.000): $10,357.01

Ordinance Fines (101-000-000-605.001): $80,389.98

Bond Forfeitures (101-000-000-605.003): $1,000.00

Interest Earned (101-000-000-605.004): $0.00

State Aid-Caseflow Assistance (101-000-602.544): $0.00

Expense Write-Off: $0.00

Bank Charges (Expense - 101.136.000.957.000): ($1,089.32)

Total: $148,443.25

Total to General Account - (101.000.000.004.136): $214,875.11

Escrow Account

(101-000-000-205.136)

Court Ordered Escrow: $2,959.00

Garnishment Proceeds: $0.00

Bonds: $20,867.14

Restitution: $3,713.89

Total to Escrow Account - (101.000.000.205.136): $27,540.03



Year to Date

Prior Year Comparison

Month Revenue Revenue

2016 2017

January $121,678.02 120,611.62$         

February $175,343.69 155,669.56$         

March $154,916.76 182,041.34$         

April $133,933.35 148,443.25$         

May $136,097.41

June $138,669.47

July $131,882.07

August $156,356.14

September $155,340.95

October $148,098.94

November $134,130.41

December $106,942.52

Grant: 82,500.00$            117,000.00$         

Standardization

Payment: 45,724.00$            45,724.00$           

Year-to Date

Totals: 1,821,613.73$       769,489.77$         

Expenditure

Budget: 1,443,321.00$       1,486,200.32$       

Difference: 378,292.73$          (716,710.55)$        



 

 

14-B District Court 

 

  Monthly Disbursements 

 

 April 2017 

 

 

 Revenue received as a Fine for violation of a State Statute is disbursed to the Washtenaw 

County Treasurer, for library purposes. 

 

 Revenue received as a Fine for violation of a Township Ordinance and all Court Costs are 

disbursed to the Ypsilanti Township Treasurer.  Local revenue also includes Probation oversight 

fees and Bond Forfeitures. 

 

 Revenue received as State Filing Fee, State Court Fund, Justice System Fund, Juror 

Compensation, Crime Victims Rights Fund and Dept. of Natural Resources Judgment Fee is 

forwarded to the State Treasurer. 

  

 Money received as Garnishment Proceeds, Criminal Bonds, Restitution, and Court 

Ordered Escrow are deposited in the Escrow Account of the Court. 

 

 All other revenues are transferred to the Ypsilanti Township Treasurer. 

 

 

                         April 2017 Disbursements: 

 

  Washtenaw County:                  $   3,953.12 

       

  State of Michigan:                     $   62,478.74 

 

  Ypsilanti Township Treasurer:     $148,443.25 

 

 

      TOTAL:   $214,875.11 



YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 
MONTHLY REPORT 

MARCH 2017 

 
Fire Department staffing levels are as follows: 
 1 Fire Chief     3 Shift Captains            19 Fire Fighters      
 1 Clerk III/Staff Support           3 Shift Lieutenants            1 Probationary Fire Fighter 
 
All fire department response personnel are licensed as Emergency Medical Technicians by the State of 
Michigan Public Health.  During the month, the fire department responded to 497 requests for assistance.  Of 
those requests, 291 were medical emergency service calls, with the remaining 206 incidents classified as non-
medical and/or fire related. 

 

Department activities for the month of March, 2017: 

1)  The Public Education Department participated in the following events: 
a) Car Seat fittings for U of M Buckle Up program 

 
2)  Fire fighters attended 8 neighborhood watch meetings 

 
3)  Fire fighters received training in the following areas: 

a) Washtenaw County Tech Rescue Team 
b) Fire Rescue RIT 
c) Water Rescue 
d) Fire Investigator 
e) Ford Lake Dam Emergency Action Plan 

 
 
The Fire Chief attended these meetings / events for the month of March, 2017: 

1)  Mass Casualty Exercise at St Joe’s Hospital 
 2)  Inspection at Eastern Loft Apartments 
 3)  Inspection at Lakepointe Apartments 
 4)  Completed HVA Dispatch contract for 2017 – 2019 
 5)  Burn Preparation for Investigation Class 
 6)  Burn Permit Inspections:  5 
 7)  Address Assignment for 1 property 
 8)  Preliminary Site Review for Hampton Inn 
 9)  Officer Promotion testing 
 10) Contract Negotiations with Firefighter Union 
 11) GM Facility Site Tour 
 12) EMS CE training 
 13) Fire Investigation class 
 14) Consultation for new BBQ business 
 15) Civil Service meeting 
 16) Ford Lake Dam EAP 



Monthly Report – March, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 
 
There was 0 injuries and 0 deaths reported this month for civilians. 
 
There was 0 injuries and 0 deaths reported this month for fire fighters. 

 

This month the total fire loss, including vehicle fires, is estimated at $25,100.00.  All occurred at the following 
locations: 

 DATE OF LOSS ADDRESS   ESTIMATED LOSS 

1) 03/01/2017  914 Pleasand Drive   $              0.00 (Mutual Aid – City of Ypsilanti)  
2) 03/02/2017  330 Chidester   $              0.00 (Mutual Aid – City of Ypsilanti) 
3) 03/03/2017  Washtenaw @ College Pl $              0.00 (Mutual Aid – City of Ypsilanti) 
4) 03/05/2017  2125 S Congress  $       5,000.00 (vehicle) 
5) 03/07/2017  8797 Lagoon Drive  $              0.00 (dumpster) 
6) 03/08/2017  1010 Borgstrom  $       3,000.00 (building) 
7) 03/08/2017  2580 Holmes #65 $ #66 $     12,000.00 (buildings) 
8) 03/08/2017  Textile @ Whittaker  $              0.00 (grass) 
9) 03/09/2017  27 Summit Court  $              0.00 (Mutual Aid – City of Ypsilanti) 
10) 03/09/2017  210 Cross   $              0.00 (Mutual Aid – City of Ypsilanti) 
11) 03/10/2017  6424 Whittaker  $              0.00 (natural vegetation) 
12) 03/10/2017  Hoyt Tower - EMU  $              0.00 (Mutual Aid – City of Ypsilanti) 
13) 03/10/2017  2405 Lake Shore #673 $        3,500.00 (building) 
14) 03/11/2017  5909 W Michigan  $              0.00 (Mutual Aid – Pittsfield Township) 
15) 03/12/2017  700 Armstrong  $              0.00 (Mutual Aid – City of Ypsilanti) 
16) 03/15/2017  1262 Medford Dr  $              0.00 (cooking) 
17) 03/21/2017  5577 Whittaker  $              0.00 (brush) 
18) 03/21/2017  7211 Streamwood Dr  $              0.00 (brush) 
19) 03/22/2017  7313 Belle Meade  $       1,500.00 (building – dryer) 
20) 03/23/2017  1950 N Huron River Dr $              0.00 (forest) 
21) 03/27/2017  8399 Textile   $              0.00 (forest) 
22) 03/30/2017  1476 Seaver Dr  $          100.00 (trash) 

 
 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Rhonda Bates, Clerical Support Staff 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department 

 

Attachment:  Fire House Incident Type Report (Summary) 03/01/2017 – 03/31/2017 



Alarm Date Between {03/01/17} And {03/31/17} 

Ypsilanti Township Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

1 Fire
100 Fire, Other 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
111 Building fire 9 1.81% $20,000  79.68%
113 Cooking fire, confined to container 2 0.40% $0   0.00%
118 Trash or rubbish fire, contained 1 0.20% $100   0.39%
131 Passenger vehicle fire 1 0.20% $5,000  19.92%
140 Natural vegetation fire, Other 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
141 Forest, woods or wildland fire 2 0.40% $0   0.00%
142 Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire 2 0.40% $0   0.00%
143 Grass fire 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
154 Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire 1 0.20% $0   0.00%

21 4.23% $25,100 100.00%

2 Overpressure Rupture, Explosion, Overheat(no fire)
212 Overpressure rupture of steam boiler 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
251 Excessive heat, scorch burns with no ignition 2 0.40% $0   0.00%

3 0.60% $0 0.00%

3 Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident
300 Rescue, EMS incident, other 38 7.65% $0   0.00%
311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 13 2.62% $0   0.00%
320 Emergency medical service, other 15 3.02% $0   0.00%
321 EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury199 40.04% $0   0.00%
322 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 11 2.21% $0   0.00%
323 Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped) 4 0.80% $0   0.00%
324 Motor Vehicle Accident with no injuries 10 2.01% $0   0.00%
351 Extrication of victim(s) from building/structure 1 0.20% $0   0.00%

291 58.55% $0 0.00%

4 Hazardous Condition (No Fire)
412 Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
424 Carbon monoxide incident 2 0.40% $0   0.00%
440 Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, Other 4 0.80% $0   0.00%
442 Overheated motor 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
444 Power line down 41 8.25% $0   0.00%
445 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 8 1.61% $0   0.00%
463 Vehicle accident, general cleanup 3 0.60% $0   0.00%

60 12.07% $0 0.00%

04/19/17 10:02 1Page



Alarm Date Between {03/01/17} And {03/31/17} 

Ypsilanti Township Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

5 Service Call
500 Service Call, other 2 0.40% $0   0.00%
510 Person in distress, Other 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
531 Smoke or odor removal 8 1.61% $0   0.00%
550 Public service assistance, Other 4 0.80% $0   0.00%
5501 Neighborhood Watch 2 0.40% $0   0.00%
551 Assist police or other governmental agency 2 0.40% $0   0.00%
553 Public service 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
554 Assist invalid 2 0.40% $0   0.00%
561 Unauthorized burning 5 1.01% $0   0.00%

27 5.43% $0 0.00%

6 Good Intent Call
600 Good intent call, Other 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
611 Dispatched & cancelled en route 19 3.82% $0   0.00%
6111 Canceled on Arrival 24 4.83% $0   0.00%
622 No Incident found on arrival at dispatch address 7 1.41% $0   0.00%
651 Smoke scare, odor of smoke 4 0.80% $0   0.00%
652 Steam, vapor, fog or dust thought to be smoke 2 0.40% $0   0.00%

57 11.47% $0 0.00%

7 False Alarm & False Call
700 False alarm or false call, Other 10 2.01% $0   0.00%
730 System malfunction, Other 2 0.40% $0   0.00%
733 Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
734 Heat detector activation due to malfunction 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 3 0.60% $0   0.00%
736 CO detector activation due to malfunction 2 0.40% $0   0.00%
740 Unintentional transmission of alarm, Other 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
743 Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional4 0.80% $0   0.00%
744 Detector activation, no fire - unintentional 1 0.20% $0   0.00%
745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 7 1.41% $0   0.00%
746 Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 4 0.80% $0   0.00%

36 7.24% $0 0.00%

8 Severe Weather & Natural Disaster
813 Wind storm, tornado/hurricane assessment 2 0.40% $0   0.00%

2 0.40% $0 0.00%

04/19/17 10:02 2Page



Total Incident Count: 497 Total Est Loss: $25,100



 

 
  
  2201 Hogback Road  Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732  OFFICE  (734) 971-8400  FAX  (734) 973-4624  EMAIL  sheriff@ewashtenaw.org 

JERRY L. CLAYTON MARK A. PTASZEK 

 SHERIFF UNDERSHERIFF 

 
 

To: Brenda Stumbo, Ypsilanti Township Supervisor 
From: Mike Marocco, Police Services Lieutenant 
Cc: Mike Radzik, Ypsilanti Township Police Administrator & Ypsilanti Township Board 
Marlene Radzik, WCSO Police Services Commander 
Date: April 17, 2017 
Re: March 2017 Police Services Monthly Report 
 
In March of 2017, there were 4027 calls for service in Ypsilanti Township, which is a .27% 
decrease in calls for service as compared to March of 2016.   
 
OPERATIONS 
During March of 2017, Patrol Operations has been efficient in handling calls for service, traffic 
enforcement and community engagement in pursuit of our total policy philosophy. 
Our focus on juvenile issues within Ypsilanti Township has resulted in a 40% reduction in 
Runaway complaints and a 27.5% decrease in reported Juvenile Offenses during the first 
quarter of 2017 compare to the first quarter of 2016.  We will continue to focus on root cause 
issues and build on the program we initiated in 2016 to continue this positive trend. 
The traffic unit continues to be an excellent initiative and currently is shouldering a significant 
portion of the traffic related incidents, crashes and enforcement.  This is allowing Patrol 
additional time to work on case management, investigations and proactive policing.  
Please feel free to call me directly with questions, comments or concerns. 
 

YOUTH INITIATIVE 
The Sheriff’s Office continues to partner with courts, probation and social services to ensure 
that there is accountability beyond Sheriff’s Office contact with the offenders that are 
consistently involved in crimes.  Through placement and intensive oversight of the juveniles, 
and in some cases the guardians of those juveniles, we are making headway.  It is an on-going 
process that our Team is actively engaged in.  We conducted juvenile pick up order sweeps in 
March in collaboration with County Probation and Ypsilanti Police Department.  Curfew 
enforcement sweeps will begin at the end of April or beginning of May dependent on weather.  
In conjunction with those sweeps, an extensive information campaign involving schools, social 
media and Ypsilanti Township Neighborhood Watch ensuring that the community knows what 
the expectation is in regards to curfew.   
 

COMMUNITY ACTION TEAM 

During the month of March, the Sheriff’s Office executed several narcotics related search 

warrants within Ypsilanti Township which resulted in seizures of narcotics, firearms, stolen 

property and currency.  Several arrests were made and a house was condemned following 

inspection at the teams request.  



Our collaboration with the Michigan Department of Correction in reference to parole compliance 

continues to pay dividends.  Fast reaction to tips regarding parolee misconduct as well as regular 

home visits are expected by the parolees that are living in Ypsilanti Township and surrounding 

areas.  We also are working with the Ypsilanti Township Office of Community Standards in 

reference to two significant nuisance abatement cases that will have a significant impact within 

the community. 

 

AMERICAN CENTER FOR MOBILITY GROUNDS 

Deputies have aggressively patrolled the ACM grounds and made contact with several 

motorcycle groups which were previously using the area for stunting and racing.  We will 

continue being diligent in patrols of the area.  I have been in contact with ACM leadership as 

appropriate. 

 

 



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

Month: March

Year: 2017

Print Option: Print Both Monthly and YTD

Include Unfounded: No

Report Offenses: Include All (1,2,3,4)

Attempted/Completed/NA: Includes Attempted, Completed

City: Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

4/17/2017 9:44:58 AM                  Page 1 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                 For The Month Of March

Classification Mar/2016 Mar/2017 %Change

09001  MURDER/NONNEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER (VOLUNTARY) 0 1 0%

10001  KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 0 0 0%

10002  PARENTAL KIDNAPPING 1 0 -100%

11001  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC lST DEGREE 3 2 -33.3%

11002  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC 3RD DEGREE 1 1 0%

11003  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC lST DEGREE 0 1 0%

11004  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC 3RD DEGREE 2 0 -100%

11005  SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC IST DEGREE 0 1 0%

11007  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 2ND DEGREE 1 0 -100%

11008  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH DEGREE 1 2 100%

12000  ROBBERY 5 3 -40%

13001  NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 31 35 12.90%

13002  AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 21 17 -19.0%

13003  INTIMIDATION/STALKING 7 5 -28.5%

20000  ARSON 1 0 -100%

22001  BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 15 7 -53.3%

22002  BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent to Commit) 6 3 -50%

23001  LARCENY -POCKETPICKING 0 0 0%

23003  LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 10 10 0%

23004  LARCENY -THEFT FROM COIN-OPERATED MACHINE/DEVICE 0 0 0%

23005  LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 20 10 -50%

23006  LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS/ACCESSORIES 0 3 0%

23007  LARCENY -OTHER 6 4 -33.3%

24001  MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 10 6 -40%

24002  MOTOR VEHICLE, AS STOLEN PROPERTY 1 0 -100%

24003  MOTOR VEHICLE FRAUD 0 1 0%

25000  FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 3 0 -100%

26001  FRAUD -FALSE PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 10 9 -10%

26002  FRAUD -CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINE 14 9 -35.7%

26005  FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 1 0 -100%

26007  FRAUD - IDENTITY THEFT 10 13 30%

26008  FRAUD - HACKING/COMPUTER INVASION 0 0 0%

27000  EMBEZZLEMENT 1 1 0%

28000  STOLEN PROPERTY 2 1 -50%

29000  DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 45 22 -51.1%

30001  RETAIL FRAUD -MISREPRESENTATION 0 1 0%

30002  RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 14 9 -35.7%

30003  RETAIL FRAUD -REFUND/EXCHANGE 0 0 0%

35001  VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ACT 19 14 -26.3%

35002  NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 5 7 40%

37000  OBSCENITY 1 1 0%

40001  COMMERCIALIZED SEX -PROSTITUTION 0 0 0%

52001  WEAPONS OFFENSE- CONCEALED 3 4 33.33%

4/17/2017 9:44:58 AM                  Page 2 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                 For The Month Of March

Classification Mar/2016 Mar/2017 %Change

52003  WEAPONS OFFENSE -OTHER 3 1 -66.6%

Group A Totals 273 204 -25.2%

22003  BURGLARY - UNLAWFUL ENTRY (NO INTENT) 3 3 0%

26006  FRAUD -BAD CHECKS 3 0 -100%

36004  SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 2 0 -100%

38001  FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 5 4 -20%

38003  FAMILY -OTHER 0 0 0%

41002  LIQUOR VIOLATIONS -OTHER 3 2 -33.3%

48000  OBSTRUCTING POLICE 4 8 100%

49000  ESCAPE/FLIGHT 0 1 0%

50000  OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 21 6 -71.4%

53001  DISORDERLY CONDUCT 5 2 -60%

53002  PUBLIC PEACE -OTHER 1 1 0%

54001  HIT and RUN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 4 4 0%

54002  OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF LIQUOR OR DRUGS 21 27 28.57%

55000  HEALTH AND SAFETY 1 6 500%

57001  TRESPASS 0 0 0%

57002  INVASION OF PRIVACY -OTHER 0 0 0%

58000  SMUGGLING 0 0 0%

59000  ELECTION LAWS 0 0 0%

61000  TAX/REVENUE 0 0 0%

63000  VAGRANCY 0 0 0%

70000  JUVENILE RUNAWAY 11 7 -36.3%

73000  MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL OFFENSE 1 1 0%

Group B Totals 85 72 -15.2%

2800  JUVENILE OFFENSES AND COMPLAINTS 46 26 -43.4%

2900  TRAFFIC OFFENSES 23 40 73.91%

3000  WARRANTS 78 54 -30.7%

3100  TRAFFIC CRASHES 95 126 32.63%

3200  SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 119 114 -4.20%

3300  MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 723 642 -11.2%

3400  WATERCRAFT COMPLAINTS / ACCIDENTS 1 1 0%

3500  NON-CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 1071 1264 18.02%

3700  MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 1121 981 -12.4%

3800  ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 56 59 5.357%

3900  ALARMS 156 237 51.92%

Group C Totals 3489 3544 1.576%

4000  HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 2 0 -100%

4100  NON-HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 0 0 0%

4200  PARKING CITATIONS 3 1 -66.6%

4300  LICENSE / TITLE / REGISTRATION CITATIONS 2 0 -100%

4500  MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 10 3 -70%

4/17/2017 9:44:58 AM                  Page 3 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

Group D Totals 17 4 -76.4%

5000  FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 0 0 0%

5100  18A STATE CODE FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 2 0 -100%

Group E Totals 2 0 -100%

6000  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 25 32 28%

6100  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 97 130 34.02%

6300  CANINE ACTIVITIES 8 9 12.5%

6500  CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES 38 24 -36.8%

6600  COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 1 0 -100%

6700  INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 3 8 166.6%

Group F Totals 172 203 18.02%

City : Ypsilanti Twp Totals 4038 4027 -0.27%

4/17/2017 9:44:58 AM                  Page 4 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

             Year To Date Through March

Classification 2016 2017 %Change

Group F Totals 0 0 0%

09001  MURDER/NONNEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER (VOLUNTARY) 1 1 0%

10001  KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 0 1 0%

10002  PARENTAL KIDNAPPING 1 0 -100%

11001  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC lST DEGREE 7 11 57.14%

11002  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC 3RD DEGREE 2 3 50%

11003  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC lST DEGREE 2 1 -50%

11004  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC 3RD DEGREE 2 0 -100%

11005  SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC IST DEGREE 0 1 0%

11007  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 2ND DEGREE 2 2 0%

11008  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH DEGREE 2 5 150%

12000  ROBBERY 12 15 25%

13001  NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 102 140 37.25%

13002  AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 55 43 -21.8%

13003  INTIMIDATION/STALKING 12 15 25%

20000  ARSON 5 1 -80%

22001  BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 52 34 -34.6%

22002  BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent to Commit) 16 8 -50%

23001  LARCENY -POCKETPICKING 0 1 0%

23003  LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 37 39 5.405%

23004  LARCENY -THEFT FROM COIN-OPERATED MACHINE/DEVICE 2 0 -100%

23005  LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 61 33 -45.9%

23006  LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS/ACCESSORIES 2 10 400%

23007  LARCENY -OTHER 15 19 26.66%

24001  MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 28 35 25%

24002  MOTOR VEHICLE, AS STOLEN PROPERTY 3 3 0%

24003  MOTOR VEHICLE FRAUD 0 1 0%

25000  FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 8 4 -50%

26001  FRAUD -FALSE PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 27 20 -25.9%

26002  FRAUD -CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINE 27 23 -14.8%

26005  FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 1 2 100%

26007  FRAUD - IDENTITY THEFT 27 30 11.11%

26008  FRAUD - HACKING/COMPUTER INVASION 1 0 -100%

27000  EMBEZZLEMENT 9 1 -88.8%

28000  STOLEN PROPERTY 4 6 50%

29000  DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 100 69 -31%

30001  RETAIL FRAUD -MISREPRESENTATION 0 2 0%

30002  RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 33 30 -9.09%

30003  RETAIL FRAUD -REFUND/EXCHANGE 1 1 0%

35001  VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ACT 51 51 0%

35002  NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 16 24 50%

37000  OBSCENITY 2 1 -50%

40001  COMMERCIALIZED SEX -PROSTITUTION 1 0 -100%

4/17/2017 9:44:58 AM                  Page 5 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

             Year To Date Through March

Classification 2016 2017 %Change

52001  WEAPONS OFFENSE- CONCEALED 9 9 0%

52003  WEAPONS OFFENSE -OTHER 3 2 -33.3%

Group A Totals 741 697 -5.93%

22003  BURGLARY - UNLAWFUL ENTRY (NO INTENT) 6 5 -16.6%

26006  FRAUD -BAD CHECKS 4 5 25%

36004  SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 4 0 -100%

38001  FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 11 13 18.18%

38003  FAMILY -OTHER 0 1 0%

41002  LIQUOR VIOLATIONS -OTHER 9 6 -33.3%

48000  OBSTRUCTING POLICE 19 28 47.36%

49000  ESCAPE/FLIGHT 0 3 0%

50000  OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 46 39 -15.2%

53001  DISORDERLY CONDUCT 9 12 33.33%

53002  PUBLIC PEACE -OTHER 1 1 0%

54001  HIT and RUN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 11 11 0%

54002  OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF LIQUOR OR DRUGS 66 58 -12.1%

55000  HEALTH AND SAFETY 4 10 150%

57001  TRESPASS 1 0 -100%

57002  INVASION OF PRIVACY -OTHER 0 1 0%

58000  SMUGGLING 1 0 -100%

59000  ELECTION LAWS 0 1 0%

61000  TAX/REVENUE 1 0 -100%

63000  VAGRANCY 2 1 -50%

70000  JUVENILE RUNAWAY 32 19 -40.6%

73000  MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL OFFENSE 3 3 0%

Group B Totals 230 217 -5.65%

2800  JUVENILE OFFENSES AND COMPLAINTS 112 81 -27.6%

2900  TRAFFIC OFFENSES 65 89 36.92%

3000  WARRANTS 174 150 -13.7%

3100  TRAFFIC CRASHES 302 362 19.86%

3200  SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 298 333 11.74%

3300  MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 1951 1851 -5.12%

3400  WATERCRAFT COMPLAINTS / ACCIDENTS 4 4 0%

3500  NON-CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 2985 3318 11.15%

3700  MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 2788 2616 -6.16%

3800  ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 170 165 -2.94%

3900  ALARMS 482 554 14.93%

Group C Totals 9331 9523 2.057%

4000  HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 7 1 -85.7%

4100  NON-HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 3 0 -100%

4200  PARKING CITATIONS 12 3 -75%

4300  LICENSE / TITLE / REGISTRATION CITATIONS 3 3 0%

4/17/2017 9:44:58 AM                  Page 6 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

             Year To Date Through March

Classification 2016 2017 %Change

4500  MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 30 9 -70%

Group D Totals 55 16 -70.9%

5000  FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 1 1 0%

5100  18A STATE CODE FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 2 0 -100%

Group E Totals 3 1 -66.6%

6000  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 76 96 26.31%

6100  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 241 311 29.04%

6300  CANINE ACTIVITIES 23 24 4.347%

6500  CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES 80 76 -5%

6600  COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 5 3 -40%

6700  INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 16 25 56.25%

Group F Totals 441 535 21.31%

City : Ypsilanti Twp Totals 10801 10989 1.740%

4/17/2017 9:44:58 AM                  Page 7 of 7



 

 
  
  2201 Hogback Road  Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732  OFFICE  (734) 971-8400  FAX  (734) 973-4624  EMAIL  sheriff@ewashtenaw.org 

JERRY L. CLAYTON MARK A. PTASZEK 

 SHERIFF UNDERSHERIFF 

 
 

To: Brenda Stumbo, Ypsilanti Township Supervisor 
From: Mike Marocco, Police Services Lieutenant 
Cc: Mike Radzik, Ypsilanti Township Police Administrator & Ypsilanti Township Board 
Marlene Radzik, WCSO Police Services Commander 
Date: May 1, 2017 
Re: April 2017 Police Services Monthly Report 
 
In April of 2017, there were 3686 calls for service in Ypsilanti Township, which is a 10.5% 
decrease in calls for service as compared to April of 2016.  This reductions brings us to a 1.54% 
reduction in Calls For Service Year to Date.   
 
OPERATIONS 
During April of 2017, Patrol Operations has been efficient in handling calls for service, traffic 
enforcement and community engagement duties in pursuit of our total policy philosophy.  We 
will continue to focus on root cause issues and build on the program we initiated in 2016 to 
continue the positive trends in reference to juvenile issues, burglaries and larcenies. 
The traffic unit continues to be an excellent initiative and currently is shouldering a significant 
portion of the traffic related incidents, crashes and enforcement.  This is allowing Patrol 
additional time to work on case management, investigations and proactive policing.  
Please feel free to call me directly with questions, comments or concerns. 
 

YOUTH INITIATIVE 
The Sheriff’s Office continues to partner with courts, probation and social services to ensure 
that there is accountability beyond Sheriff’s Office contact with the offenders that are 
consistently involved in crimes.  The overall reductions in larcenies, burglaries and juvenile 
mischief complaints is directly related to the Sheriff’s Office engagement of our juvenile 
population and their family structures.  Moving into the summer months, School Resource 
Officers Guynes and Harvey will be assigned to Ypsilanti Township in order to bring additional 
resources into the Township during our busy season.  Curfew enforcement sweeps will begin 
this month dependent on weather.  In conjunction with those sweeps, an extensive information 
campaign involving schools, social media and Ypsilanti Township Neighborhood Watch ensuring 
that the community knows what the expectation is in regards to curfew.  The Washtenaw 

County Sheriff’s Office Interrupters group is planning another door to door campaign for June to 

support our Summer 2017 initiative as well.  

 

COMMUNITY ACTION TEAM 

During the month of March, the Sheriff’s Office executed several narcotics related search 

warrants within Ypsilanti Township which resulted in seizures of narcotics and currency.    

Our collaboration with the Michigan Department of Correction in reference to parole compliance 

continues to pay dividends.  Fast reaction to tips regarding parolee misconduct as well as regular 



home visits are expected by the parolees that are living in Ypsilanti Township and surrounding 

areas.  We also are working with the Ypsilanti Township Office of Community Standards in 

reference to two significant nuisance abatement cases that will have a significant impact within 

the community. 

 

AMERICAN CENTER FOR MOBILITY GROUNDS 

Deputies have aggressively patrolled the ACM grounds and made contact with several 

motorcycle groups which were previously using the area for stunting and racing.  We will 

continue being diligent in patrols of the area.  I have been in contact with ACM leadership as 

appropriate. 

 

 



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

Month: April

Year: 2017

Print Option: Print Both Monthly and YTD

Include Unfounded: No

Report Offenses: Include All (1,2,3,4)

Attempted/Completed/NA: Includes Attempted, Completed

City: Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

5/1/2017 10:31:54 AM                  Page 1 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                 For The Month Of April

Classification Apr/2016 Apr/2017 %Change

09001  MURDER/NONNEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER (VOLUNTARY) 0 1 0%

10001  KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 1 1 0%

10002  PARENTAL KIDNAPPING 0 0 0%

11001  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC lST DEGREE 2 2 0%

11002  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC 3RD DEGREE 1 0 -100%

11003  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC lST DEGREE 0 0 0%

11004  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC 3RD DEGREE 0 1 0%

11005  SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC IST DEGREE 0 0 0%

11007  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 2ND DEGREE 0 0 0%

11008  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH DEGREE 0 3 0%

12000  ROBBERY 4 2 -50%

13001  NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 39 43 10.25%

13002  AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 24 21 -12.5%

13003  INTIMIDATION/STALKING 4 2 -50%

20000  ARSON 1 0 -100%

22001  BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 13 11 -15.3%

22002  BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent to Commit) 3 4 33.33%

23001  LARCENY -POCKETPICKING 0 0 0%

23003  LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 19 15 -21.0%

23004  LARCENY -THEFT FROM COIN-OPERATED MACHINE/DEVICE 0 0 0%

23005  LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 16 15 -6.25%

23006  LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS/ACCESSORIES 1 5 400%

23007  LARCENY -OTHER 11 7 -36.3%

24001  MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 19 7 -63.1%

24002  MOTOR VEHICLE, AS STOLEN PROPERTY 5 2 -60%

24003  MOTOR VEHICLE FRAUD 0 0 0%

25000  FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 3 3 0%

26001  FRAUD -FALSE PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 9 14 55.55%

26002  FRAUD -CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINE 8 7 -12.5%

26005  FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 1 1 0%

26007  FRAUD - IDENTITY THEFT 6 5 -16.6%

26008  FRAUD - HACKING/COMPUTER INVASION 0 0 0%

27000  EMBEZZLEMENT 8 2 -75%

28000  STOLEN PROPERTY 3 0 -100%

29000  DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 20 35 75%

30001  RETAIL FRAUD -MISREPRESENTATION 0 0 0%

30002  RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 17 7 -58.8%

30003  RETAIL FRAUD -REFUND/EXCHANGE 0 0 0%

35001  VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ACT 21 15 -28.5%

35002  NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 15 6 -60%

37000  OBSCENITY 0 2 0%

40001  COMMERCIALIZED SEX -PROSTITUTION 0 0 0%

40002  COMMERCIALIZED SEX -ASSISTING/PROMOTING PROSTITUTION 0 1 0%

5/1/2017 10:31:54 AM                  Page 2 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                 For The Month Of April

Classification Apr/2016 Apr/2017 %Change

52001  WEAPONS OFFENSE- CONCEALED 6 3 -50%

52003  WEAPONS OFFENSE -OTHER 2 0 -100%

Group A Totals 282 243 -13.8%

22003  BURGLARY - UNLAWFUL ENTRY (NO INTENT) 3 2 -33.3%

26006  FRAUD -BAD CHECKS 0 0 0%

36004  SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 0 0 0%

38001  FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 5 6 20%

38003  FAMILY -OTHER 0 0 0%

41002  LIQUOR VIOLATIONS -OTHER 3 2 -33.3%

48000  OBSTRUCTING POLICE 9 6 -33.3%

49000  ESCAPE/FLIGHT 1 1 0%

50000  OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 15 9 -40%

53001  DISORDERLY CONDUCT 5 4 -20%

53002  PUBLIC PEACE -OTHER 1 1 0%

54001  HIT and RUN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 3 2 -33.3%

54002  OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF LIQUOR OR DRUGS 28 24 -14.2%

55000  HEALTH AND SAFETY 1 1 0%

57001  TRESPASS 1 0 -100%

57002  INVASION OF PRIVACY -OTHER 0 0 0%

58000  SMUGGLING 1 0 -100%

59000  ELECTION LAWS 0 0 0%

61000  TAX/REVENUE 0 0 0%

62000  CONSERVATION 1 1 0%

63000  VAGRANCY 0 0 0%

70000  JUVENILE RUNAWAY 5 6 20%

73000  MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL OFFENSE 2 2 0%

Group B Totals 84 67 -20.2%

2800  JUVENILE OFFENSES AND COMPLAINTS 52 41 -21.1%

2900  TRAFFIC OFFENSES 23 29 26.08%

3000  WARRANTS 67 61 -8.95%

3100  TRAFFIC CRASHES 108 79 -26.8%

3200  SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 100 112 12%

3300  MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 746 720 -3.48%

3400  WATERCRAFT COMPLAINTS / ACCIDENTS 0 0 0%

3500  NON-CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 1077 1107 2.785%

3700  MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 1135 771 -32.0%

3800  ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 74 71 -4.05%

3900  ALARMS 171 161 -5.84%

Group C Totals 3553 3152 -11.2%

4000  HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 1 1 0%

4100  NON-HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 0 0 0%

4200  PARKING CITATIONS 2 1 -50%

5/1/2017 10:31:54 AM                  Page 3 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                 For The Month Of April

Classification Apr/2016 Apr/2017 %Change

4300  LICENSE / TITLE / REGISTRATION CITATIONS 2 0 -100%

4500  MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 7 3 -57.1%

Group D Totals 12 5 -58.3%

5000  FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 0 1 0%

5100  18A STATE CODE FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 2 0 -100%

Group E Totals 2 1 -50%

6000  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 27 40 48.14%

6100  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 113 146 29.20%

6300  CANINE ACTIVITIES 9 10 11.11%

6500  CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES 25 12 -52%

6600  COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 5 0 -100%

6700  INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 8 10 25%

Group F Totals 187 218 16.57%

City : Ypsilanti Twp Totals 4120 3686 -10.5%

5/1/2017 10:31:54 AM                  Page 4 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

             Year To Date Through April

Classification 2016 2017 %Change

Group F Totals 0 0 0%

09001  MURDER/NONNEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER (VOLUNTARY) 1 2 100%

10001  KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 1 2 100%

10002  PARENTAL KIDNAPPING 1 0 -100%

11001  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC lST DEGREE 9 13 44.44%

11002  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC 3RD DEGREE 3 3 0%

11003  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC lST DEGREE 2 1 -50%

11004  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC 3RD DEGREE 2 1 -50%

11005  SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC IST DEGREE 0 1 0%

11007  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 2ND DEGREE 2 2 0%

11008  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH DEGREE 2 8 300%

12000  ROBBERY 16 17 6.25%

13001  NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 141 183 29.78%

13002  AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 79 64 -18.9%

13003  INTIMIDATION/STALKING 16 17 6.25%

20000  ARSON 6 1 -83.3%

22001  BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 65 45 -30.7%

22002  BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent to Commit) 19 12 -36.8%

23001  LARCENY -POCKETPICKING 0 1 0%

23003  LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 56 54 -3.57%

23004  LARCENY -THEFT FROM COIN-OPERATED MACHINE/DEVICE 2 0 -100%

23005  LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 77 48 -37.6%

23006  LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS/ACCESSORIES 3 15 400%

23007  LARCENY -OTHER 26 26 0%

24001  MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 47 42 -10.6%

24002  MOTOR VEHICLE, AS STOLEN PROPERTY 8 5 -37.5%

24003  MOTOR VEHICLE FRAUD 0 1 0%

25000  FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 11 7 -36.3%

26001  FRAUD -FALSE PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 36 34 -5.55%

26002  FRAUD -CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINE 35 30 -14.2%

26005  FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 2 3 50%

26007  FRAUD - IDENTITY THEFT 33 35 6.060%

26008  FRAUD - HACKING/COMPUTER INVASION 1 0 -100%

27000  EMBEZZLEMENT 17 3 -82.3%

28000  STOLEN PROPERTY 7 6 -14.2%

29000  DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 120 104 -13.3%

30001  RETAIL FRAUD -MISREPRESENTATION 0 2 0%

30002  RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 50 37 -26%

30003  RETAIL FRAUD -REFUND/EXCHANGE 1 1 0%

35001  VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ACT 72 66 -8.33%

35002  NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 31 30 -3.22%

37000  OBSCENITY 2 3 50%

40001  COMMERCIALIZED SEX -PROSTITUTION 1 0 -100%

5/1/2017 10:31:54 AM                  Page 5 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

             Year To Date Through April

Classification 2016 2017 %Change

40002  COMMERCIALIZED SEX -ASSISTING/PROMOTING PROSTITUTION 0 1 0%

52001  WEAPONS OFFENSE- CONCEALED 15 12 -20%

52003  WEAPONS OFFENSE -OTHER 5 2 -60%

Group A Totals 1023 940 -8.11%

22003  BURGLARY - UNLAWFUL ENTRY (NO INTENT) 9 7 -22.2%

26006  FRAUD -BAD CHECKS 4 5 25%

36004  SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 4 0 -100%

38001  FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 16 19 18.75%

38003  FAMILY -OTHER 0 1 0%

41002  LIQUOR VIOLATIONS -OTHER 12 8 -33.3%

48000  OBSTRUCTING POLICE 28 34 21.42%

49000  ESCAPE/FLIGHT 1 4 300%

50000  OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 61 48 -21.3%

53001  DISORDERLY CONDUCT 14 16 14.28%

53002  PUBLIC PEACE -OTHER 2 2 0%

54001  HIT and RUN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 14 13 -7.14%

54002  OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF LIQUOR OR DRUGS 94 82 -12.7%

55000  HEALTH AND SAFETY 5 11 120%

57001  TRESPASS 2 0 -100%

57002  INVASION OF PRIVACY -OTHER 0 1 0%

58000  SMUGGLING 2 0 -100%

59000  ELECTION LAWS 0 1 0%

61000  TAX/REVENUE 1 0 -100%

62000  CONSERVATION 1 1 0%

63000  VAGRANCY 2 1 -50%

70000  JUVENILE RUNAWAY 37 25 -32.4%

73000  MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL OFFENSE 5 5 0%

Group B Totals 314 284 -9.55%

2800  JUVENILE OFFENSES AND COMPLAINTS 164 122 -25.6%

2900  TRAFFIC OFFENSES 88 118 34.09%

3000  WARRANTS 241 211 -12.4%

3100  TRAFFIC CRASHES 410 441 7.560%

3200  SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 398 446 12.06%

3300  MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 2697 2569 -4.74%

3400  WATERCRAFT COMPLAINTS / ACCIDENTS 4 4 0%

3500  NON-CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 4062 4441 9.330%

3700  MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 3923 3387 -13.6%

3800  ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 244 236 -3.27%

3900  ALARMS 653 715 9.494%

Group C Totals 12884 12690 -1.50%

4000  HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 8 2 -75%

4100  NON-HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 3 0 -100%

5/1/2017 10:31:54 AM                  Page 6 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

             Year To Date Through April

Classification 2016 2017 %Change

4200  PARKING CITATIONS 14 4 -71.4%

4300  LICENSE / TITLE / REGISTRATION CITATIONS 5 3 -40%

4500  MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 37 12 -67.5%

Group D Totals 67 21 -68.6%

5000  FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 1 2 100%

5100  18A STATE CODE FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 4 0 -100%

Group E Totals 5 2 -60%

6000  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 103 136 32.03%

6100  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 354 458 29.37%

6300  CANINE ACTIVITIES 32 34 6.25%

6500  CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES 105 88 -16.1%

6600  COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 10 3 -70%

6700  INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 24 35 45.83%

Group F Totals 628 754 20.06%

City : Ypsilanti Twp Totals 14921 14691 -1.54%

5/1/2017 10:31:54 AM                  Page 7 of 7



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 

TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE  HEATHER JARRELL ROE  MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS  
JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 

 
5:00PM 

 
CIVIC CENTER 
BOARD ROOM 

7200  HURON RIVER DRIVE 
 

 
1. REQUEST TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO MCL 15.268 SECTION 

8 SUBPARAGRAPH (H) OF THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT…”TO CONSIDER MATERIAL 
EXEMPT FROM DISCUSSION OR DISCLOSURE BY STATE OR FEDERAL STATUTE 
(SPECIFICALLY LEGAL OPINIONS WHICH ARE PROTECTED BY THE FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT)” AS IT PERTAINS TO THE PROPOSED NEXUS GAS 
TRANSMISSION PIPELINE 

 
2. DISCUSSION ON PROPOSED RESOLUTION REAFFIRMING COMMITMENT TO 

HOUSING AFFORDABILITY AND ECONOMIC EQUITY STUDY…..SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 

3. FIREWORKS DISCUSSION……………………………………………..SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
4. AGENDA REVIEW .............................................................................. SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
5. OTHER DISCUSSION   ............................................................................   BOARD MEMBERS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1. REQUEST TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO MCL 15.268 SECTION
8 SUBPARAGRAPH (H) OF THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT “…TO CONSIDER MATERIAL 
EXEMPT FROM DISCUSSION OR DISCLOSURE BY STATE OR FEDERAL STATUTE
(SPECIFICALLY LEGAL OPINIONS  WHICH ARE PROTECTED BY THE FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT) AS IT PERTAINS TO THE PROPOSED NEXUS GAS 
TRANSMISSION PIPELINE























































































































8021 Talladay Rd, Whittaker MI 48190 * phone (734) 461-6117 *  fax (734)461-6379 

 

 

 

 

         April 27, 2017 

 

Dear Brenda and Karen, 

 

Please accept this as a letter of request for Ypsilanti Township to contribute to a 

Community Fireworks event.  We are still trying to schedule this for July 8
th

 at 

Lincoln Schools.  The event will be open to the surrounding communities with 

Lincoln Schools as a focus.  We will contact the media, use some various outreach 

utilities that Lincoln Schools utilize, and advertise online. 

 

We are looking for Ypsilanti Township to contribute approximately half of the 

cost, or more if you want.  We are also seeking corporate sponsors to help defray 

additional costs such as insurance. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

 

 

Brian Shelby, Supervisor 

Augusta Charter Township 

 

AAAA    
 

 

ugusta Charter 
Township 
 Washtenaw County, Michigan 



Proposal	
Michael	&	Matthew	Zielinski	

49496	Martz	rd.	
Belleville,	MI	48111	

	
Proposal	Submitted	to:	Augusta	Charter	Township	
Job	Name:	July	Firework	Display	
Job	Date:	Saturday	July	8,	2017	
Job	Location:	Lincoln	Consolidated	Schools	
8970	Whittaker	Rd,	Ypsilanti,	MI	48197	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Job	Description:	
We	are	pleased	to	quote	the	following:	
On	Saturday,	July	8th	2017	@	10pm.,	a	firework	display	consisting	of	3,	4,	5,	and	6	inch	
aerial	display	shells.	
To	be	approximately:	20	minutes.	
Setup,	Display,	and	Teardown.		
Excludes	debris	cleanup.	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
We	propose:	to	furnish	labor	and	materials	in	complete	accordance	with	the	above	
specifications.	
	

Proposed	Cost:	$6,500.00	
	

Acceptance	of	Proposal:	The	above	prices	and	specifications	are	satisfactory	and	are	
hereby	accepted.	
	
	
	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Date:	 	 	 	
Signature		





Basic	Safety	Program	
	

Developed	for:	Michael	&	Matthew	Zielinski	
Address:	49496	Martz	rd.	Belleville,	MI	48111	
Date	of	Event:	July	8,	2017	
Phone:	(734)	260-0657/(734)	320-0495	
	
POLICIES,	PROCEDURES	and	RULES	
	
A.	SAFETY	POLICY	
	
Our	company	will	conduct	their	operations	so	that	injuries	to	people,	damage	to	property	
and/or	the	environment	will	be	avoided.	Every	effort	will	be	made	to	prevent	accidents.	
Our	objective	is	to	provide	a	clean,	safe	and	healthy	environment	for	all	employees	and	
spectators.		
	
The	involved	pyrotechnic	professionals	have	been	certified	in	Basic	Fireworks	Display	
Safety	as	of	April	27th,	2013	by	the	Pyrotechnics	Guild	International	(PGI).		
	
Both	Michael	and	Matthew	insist	that	spectators,	as	well	as	volunteers,	keep	a	safety	
distance	away	from	any	articles	pyrotechnic	before,	during,	and	after	the	display.	
	
There	will	be	at	least	one	trained,	experienced	Lead	Operator	and	Trained	Assistant(s)	
during	the	display.	
	
B.	RESPONSIBILITIES	
		
Michael	and	Matthew	reserve	the	right	(along	with	the	AHJ)	to	start,	stop	and/or	delay	the	
firework	show	due	to	any	unsafe	conditions	that	may	arise	such	as,	but	not	limited	to,	
inclement	weather	(wind,	rain,	etc.),	unruly	spectators,	or	any	situation	that	could	cause	
damage	to	equipment	and/or	materials.	
	
Once	a	display	is	setup,	it	must	be	monitored	at	all	times,	from	start	to	finish,	to	ensure	
safety	to	the	surrounding	people	and	environment.	A	member	of	our	staff	will	be	present	to	
ensure	that	it	is	monitored	accordingly.		
	
After	a	display	has	been	completed,	we	will	do	a	scan	of	the	area	the	night	of,	as	well	as	the	
next	morning,	to	ensure	there	are	no	duds	(hang-fires)	that	could	cause	a	danger.	Michael	
and	Matthew	Zielinski	will	dispose	of	these	hang-fires	properly	once	they	are	found.	
	
It	is	important	for	the	safety	of	spectators	and	the	general	public	that	the	Operator(s)	
(Michael	and	Matthew	Zielinski)	plan	with	the	Sponsor	(Brian	Shelby-Township	
Supervisor)	and	the	AHJ	(Brian	Howell-Township	Fire	Inspector)	for	proper	display	site	
security	and	crowd	control	(see	Display	site	Map).	All	three	must	anticipate	the	size	of	a	
crowd	that	has	yet	to	arrive.	



	
C.	SAFETY	RULES	
	
-All	safety	policies	and	procedures	must	be	followed.		
-Anyone	known	to	be	under	the	influence	of	alcohol	and/or	drugs	shall	not	be	allowed	in	or	
around	the	display	site.	
-Horseplay,	scuffling,	and	other	acts	which	tend	to	endanger	the	safety	or	well	being	of	
employees,	volunteers,	and	spectators	are	prohibited.	Fighting	or	instigating	fights	will	not	
be	tolerated.		
-Work	shall	be	well	planned	and	supervised	to	prevent	injuries,	premature	detonations,	or	
damage	to	equipment.		
-Observe	all	warning	signs	and	tags.	
-SMOKING	IS	EXTREMELY	PROHIBITED	in	or	around	the	display	site,	or	when	handling	any	
flammable	or	explosive	material.	
-In	addition	to	the	rules	established	here,	employees	are	expected	to	follow	all	safety	
instructions	as	provided	in	training.	
	
D.	ACCIDENTS/INCIDENTS	
	
Any	and	all	accidents/incidents	shall	be	reported	to	Michael	and	Matthew	Zielinski,	as	well	
as	Police	and	Fire	Department	personnel	immediately.	
	
Michael	and	Matthew	Zielinski	shall	receive	assistance	from	Police	and	Fire	Department	to	
ensure	safety	and	to	keep	incidents	to	a	minimum.			
	
E.	TRAINING,	CERTIFICATIONS,	and	LICENSES	
	
Michael	and	Matthew	Zielinski	have	been	certified	in	Basic	Fireworks	Display	Safety	
through	PGI	as	of	April	27th,	2013.	
	
Michael	and	Matthew	Zielinski	hold	a	Federal	Explosives	License	issued	by	the	ATF		
(18	U.S.C.	Chapter	40)	
License/Permit	Number:	4-MI-163-54-9G-01276	
License/Permit	Type:	54-USER	OF	EXPLOSIVES	
Expiration:	July	1,	2019	
	
F.	SAFETY	INSPECTIONS	
	
Michael	and	Matthew	will	perform	a	safety	check	of	their	display	site	before	the	show	to	
ensure	everything	is	ready	for	a	safe	and	proper	functioning	show.	
	
G.	VISITORS	
	
No	visitors	will	be	allowed	in	the	display	site	unless	they	have	received	permission	from	
Michael	and	Matthew	Zielinski	and	only	after	they	have	received	a	briefing	on	appropriate	
safety	precautions	and	complete	all	necessary	paperwork.		



OBJECTIVES	
	
Michael	and	Matthew	Zielinski	will:	

- Maintain	employee	interest	in	operating	a	safe	workplace.	
- Communicate	information	regarding	safety	to	employees.	
- Perform	an	ongoing	evaluation	of	the	safety	program.	
- Establish	and	enforce	the	safety	rules.	



 

REVIEW AGENDA 
 

A. SUPERVISOR STUMBO WILL REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA 



 

OTHER DISCUSSION 
 

A. BOARD MEMBERS HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO 
DISCUSS ANY OTHER PERTINENT ISSUES 



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 

TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE  HEATHER JARRELL ROE  MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS  
JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

 

                                   REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 
7:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
A. 7:00PM – CREATION OF NEIGHBORHOOD CAMERA/STREETLIGHT SPECIAL 

ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FOR THE MANORS AT CREEKSIDE VILLAGE  
(PUBLIC HEARING SET AT THE APRIL 18, 2017 REGULAR MEETING) 
 

REQUEST TO RESCHEDULE PUBLIC HEARING TO THE JUNE 20, 2017 
REGULAR MEETING AT APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
A. MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2017 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING AND THE 

APRIL 27, 2017 SPECIAL MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MAY 2, 2017 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$420,086.96 

2. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MAY 16, 2017 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,213,256.99 

3. CHOICE HEALTH CARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR APRIL 2017 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $51,875.88 

4. CHOICE HEALTH CARE ADMIN FEE FOR MARCH 2017 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,207.50 
 

C. APRIL 2017 TREASURER’S REPORT 
 

 
6. ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #8 

 
2. AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE CONSENT JUDGMENT BETWEEN LAMAR 

ADVERTISING OF MICHIGAN, INC. AND THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

 
 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2  May 16, 2017 
  

   
    
   
 
 
 
 
  

3. FIRST READING OF MOON STAR LEASING, LLC REZONING REQUEST OF PARCELS 
K-11-01-100-026, K-11-01-100-027, K-11-01-100-029, K-11-01-100-030 LOCATED AT 
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF E. MICHIGAN AVENUE AND HOLMES ROAD FROM B-
3 GENERAL BUSINESS TO I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 

 
4. REQUEST OF MICHAEL RADZIK, DIRECTOR OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 

TO APPROVE TWO CONTRACTS WITH THE WASHTENAW COUNTY SHERIFF’S 
OFFICE TO FACILITATE COLLABORATIVE SHARING OF SCHOOL RESOURCE 
DEPUTIES FOR SUMMER MONTHS WITH LINCOLN CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS AND 
YPSILANTI COMMUNITY SCHOOLS IN THE AMOUNT OF $52,432.00  BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #266-301-000-831-008  

 
5. REQUEST OF MICHAEL SARANEN, HYDRO OPERATIONS FOR APPROVAL OF AN 

ACCESS AGREEMENT BETWEEN WILLOW RUN BUSINESS CENTER II, LLC C/O 
INSITE REAL ESTATE LLC, THE WASHTENAW COUNTY WATER RESOURCE 
COMMISSION AND YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP  FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES 
RELATED TO THE TYLER POND DRAWDOWN 

 
6. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DIRECTOR FOR APPROVAL OF 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH HOPPE DESIGN FOR 
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES INCLUDING PLANS, BID DOCUMENTS, AND 
OVERSIGHT OF THE BIDDING PROCESS IN COMPLIANCE WITH ADA GUIDELINES 
AT THE CIVIC CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#101-956-000-801-000 

 
7. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DIRECTOR FOR APPROVAL OF 

AGREEMENT WITH MSDS-ONLINE FOR ONLINE STORAGE OF SAFETY DATA 
SHEETS (SDS) IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,000.00 PER YEAR FOR THREE YEARS AND 
$1,000.00 FOR INITIAL DATA INPUT BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-227-000-960-000 

 
8. REQUEST TO APPROVE SECOND AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHTENAW COUNTY 

ROAD COMMISSION FOR LOCAL ROAD IMPROVEMENTS IN PARTRIDGE CREEK 
SUBDIVISION, ON FOREST AVENUE BETWEEN FORD BOULEVARD TO MIDWAY 
ROAD AND EMERSON AVENUE AND OUTER LANE AS OUTLINED IN THE 
AGREEMENT IN AN ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $132,300.00 AND BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #101-446-000-818-022 

 
9. RESOLUTION 2017-09, TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST FOR OBERUN 5K 

ON JULY 14, 2017 
 
10. RESOLUTION 2017-10, TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST FOR RUNNING FIT 

“RUN SCREAM RUN” 5K, 10K, AND KID’S MILE RUN ON OCTOBER 7, 2017 
 

11. RESOLUTION 2017-12, IN HONOR OF NATIONAL POLLINATOR WEEK JUNE 11-17, 
2017 

 
12. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2017 AT 

APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM – AMENDMENT TO LAKEVIEW STREETLIGHT DISTRICT 
#207 

 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  
 



 

 

 

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

To: Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees  
 
From: Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 
Date: May 15, 2017 
 
Subject: Request to Reschedule the Public Hearing Date of Tuesday, May 16, 

2017 at approximately 7:00pm for the Creation of a Neighborhood 
Camera/Streetlight Special Assessment District for the Manors at 
Creekside Village to Tuesday, June 20 at Approximately 7:00pm 

 
We are requesting to reschedule the public hearing for the creation of a neighborhood 
camera/streetlight special assessment district for the Manors at Creekside Village. The 
hearing was originally scheduled for Tuesday, May 16 and we are requesting to move it 
to the next scheduled Regular Meeting on June 20, 2017. 
 
There are various staff members who are working to obtain estimates for costs for both 
the streetlights and cameras and not all of those have been received at this time. We 
need a full picture of costs associated with the creation and operation of this district to 
provide to the property owner at minimum ten (10) days before the public hearing.  
 
Should you have any questions, please contact my office. 
 
lrg 
 
 
cc: Files 
 
 
 

 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

Clerk’s Office 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River 
Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2017 WORK SESSION 

 
Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. 
 

Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe, 

                                        Treasurer Larry Doe, Trustees:  Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell  
                                        Roe, Jimmie Wilson Jr., Monica Ross-Williams 
                    

Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
      A. MINUTES OF THE APRIL 4, 2017 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR 
           MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 18, 2017 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$973, 933.27 

2. CHOICE HEALTH CARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR MARCH 2017 IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $63,811.50 

3. CHOICE HEALTH CARE ADMIN FEE FOR FEBRUARY 2017 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $1,207.50 

 
C. MARCH 2017 TREASURER’S REPORT 

 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 2 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #6 
 
Supervisor Stumbo explained that last year we approved the purchase of a 
vehicle for our Ordinance Department. She said one of our employees’ has been 
on medical leave and would be returning to work May 1st and would need the 
vehicle upon her return. 
 

2. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO SELL YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP OWNED PARCEL 
K-11-10-386-023 LOCATED AT 855 AUBURNDALE IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$5,000.00 TO HABITAT FOR HUMANITY TO BE USED AS PART OF THE 
WASHTENAW COMMUNITY COLLEGE YOUTH BUILD GRANT TO BE SOLD AS 
A HABITAT HOME WHEN COMPLETED 

 
Supervisor Stumbo explained, with Board approval, this vacant property would be 
sold to Habitat for Humanity and in conjunction with Washtenaw Community 
College Youth Build Grant, a house would be built and then sold as a Habitat home. 
 

3. RESOLUTION 2017-08 TO ABANDON INTEREST IN A CERTAIN 
UNDEVELOPED PLATTED PARK AS WELL AS ANY RIGHT OF WAY INTEREST 
IN ADJACENT UNIMPROVED ROADWAYS 

 
Supervisor Stumbo explained this was a Resolution to abandon a piece of property 
in an undeveloped subdivision.  
 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director explained a local builder, Dale LeClair, who lives in front 
of this parcel of land, along with other landowners would like to build an office 
complex on this property. Mr. Radzik stated that Mr. LeClair had received approval 
from the Washtenaw County Road Commission to abandon the roads for the 
property and now they need the portion designated for a park to be abandoned. 
He said that if the board approves this step Mr. LeClair would need the zoning 
changed from residential to office. Mr. Radzik said Mr. LeClair would have to file a 
lawsuit in Circuit Court under state law to get the park abandoned and Mr. LeClair 
cannot do that without a resolution of support from Ypsilanti Township. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 3 
 
 
Trustee Eldridge asked why the Township would abandon the property and not sell 
it. Attorney Winters stated that he did not believe the property was owned by the 
township. 
 

4. REQUEST TO APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD 
COMMISSION FOR 2017 LOCAL ROAD DUST CONTROL IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$5,682.60 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #212-212-000-818-006 

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that this contract was entered into every year to control 
the dust on dirt roads. 
 

5. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK 
LEGAL ACTION IF NECESSARY TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 940 MINION ST., 1405 ECORSE RD., 3150 W. MICHIGAN AVE. 
AND 829 E. MICHIGAN AVE. IN THE AMOUNT OF $40,000.00 BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director explained by showing photos regarding the properties.  
He said that Minion Street was a private road and 940 Minion was vacant property, 
which was secluded because of the trees, and brush that had surrounded the 
property. Mr. Radzik said recently someone cut down the trees and brush around 
this property and now there are vehicles using this property from the trucking 
company at the adjacent parcel. He said residents share a fence line with them and 
now the noise was very loud with the moving of trucks in and out of the property. 
He said there were also some issues with storm water.  Mr. Radzik stated that our 
Ordinance Officers went out and took the photos from the closest legal vantage 
point and our Planners have done some research and it appears as though 
whoever took this action violated the woodland protection ordinance, the soil 
erosion ordinance and was a serious violation of the existing site plan. 
 
Mr. Radzik discussed issues with 1405 Ecorse (Elks Club). He said that 
representatives from the Elks Club would be present at the board meeting tonight.  
He said this was a commercial building used by a private club for a non-profit 
organization and they did have a State Liquor License. Mr. Radzik stated that they 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 4 
 
have a private club license that allows them to serve liquor to their members and 
their member’s guests. He said there have been some incidents at this location 
including shooting incidents and other violent crimes in the past and several weeks 
ago there was a shooting. Mr. Radzik stated that in the past when incidents of this 
nature have occurred both the Sheriffs’ office and the Community Standards Office 
have met with Mr. Anthony Williamson, who was one of the leaders of the 
organization and with others. He said there had been productive dialog about 
things that could be done to minimize or eliminate these types of incidents and 
also he reported there were some property maintenance problems. Mr. Radzik 
stated the Community Standards Office does a property maintenance inspection 
for the renewal of liquor licenses’ every year. He said under state law the township 
has the opportunity to file an objection to the renewal of the license which expires 
in April every year. He said in January the OCS department conducts an inspection 
and there was usually a good response with the maintenance violations with the 
exception of the parking lot. Mr. Radzik stated the parking lot had been cited in 
past years and it was cited this year. Mr. Radzik said that when he had spoken with 
leaders in the club they have not improved the parking lot condition due to 
financial issues. Mr. Radzik stated that at this point it was hazardous to pedestrians 
and motorists and needed to be repaired. Mr. Radzik said that this was the reason 
it was brought before the board tonight with the hope that we can resolve this 
moving forward. Mr. Radzik stated that there were individuals from the Elks Club 
present that would probably want to speak tonight. He stated he spoke with 
representatives over the weekend and this morning regarding this issue. 
 
Trustee Wilson, Jr. asked if Mr. Radzik had spoken to the representatives of the 
Elks Club and asked if they had given Mr. Radzik any ideas on how to resolve the 
issues at the Club. Mr. Radzik said he spoke over the weekend with Mr. Mike Cobb 
who has done security for the Club. Mr. Radzik stated that prior to the past 
weekend he has met with Mr. Williamson and other members of the Club dating 
back to 2011. Mr. Radzik said that after the meetings there would be 
correspondence back and forth and the township would offer to take some steps 
and the Club would agree to do things also. He said some were accomplished and 
some were not. He said since that time there have been a number of incidences 
and he had asked the Sheriffs’ department to provide a catalog summary of all the 
incidents they had from the Elks to help evaluate if the compilation and level of 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 5 
 
incidences resulted in a public nuisance. Mr. Radzik said the consensus was there 
was enough evidence and material to warrant authorization and he hoped that 
moving forward it could be resolved. Mr. Radzik stated that Attorney Erane 
Washington called him today and said that there was a desire to mutually resolve 
the violations without litigation. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams said she would like to see this worked out without litigation. 
She stated the reason being would be this was the only Club on the Eastern side of 
Washtenaw County primarily for African Americans. Trustee Ross-Williams said she 
would like the township to work with the owners of the club looking into security 
issues as a possibility for some of the incidents at 1405 Ecorse. 
 
Mr. Radzik stated that they have worked with the Club on various issues in the past 
including security. Mr. Radzik stated that the Elks Club are the owners of the 
property as well as the occupants.  He said that they had encouraged the Club to 
call 911 at the first sight of trouble so they could get assistance from the Sheriffs’ 
Department. He said that in many other cases which have been similar to this one, 
the township would meet with the property owners’, agree to a resolution and 
then it would be taken to circuit court in the form of a consent agreement. He said 
that in this consent agreement it would state that both parties agreed to the 
resolution and it would be on record so it could be enforced. Mr. Radzik stated this 
was his recommendation for this property. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated that always in these types of cases the boards’ desire was 
to find a resolution and avoid court action. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated she had been to events at the Elks Club. She said the 
issue usually is never with its’ members, and she said it seems that we only have 
these issues when the club was rented for private events. She said there has not 
been these issues with the Eagles which was also a private club on the east side of 
the township, and she believed it was because they do not rent their facility out. 
Supervisor Stumbo stressed that approving this request tonight would not initiate 
legal action. She stated it authorizes the Township to begin the process toward 
working for a resolution with those who wish to resolve the nuisance. She said the 
goal was always for resolution and to avoid going to court. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 6 
 
Attorney Erane Washington said she was Representing the Elks Club and she stated 
the Elks Club wanted to reach a resolution with the Township. Ms. Washington said 
she called Mr. Radzik today to try and remove this from the agenda tonight. She 
said that was her hope but that didn’t happen so that was why they were here 
tonight. She said she explained to her clients that it doesn’t mean we are going to 
court. Ms. Washington said she was not going to debate tonight on what meetings 
did or did not take place. She said she feels this action against her clients is quite 
premature and she would have preferred to resolve this before getting the 
Township Board involved. Ms. Washington stated she asked Mr. Radzik to provide 
her with copies of the documents that constituted them to take this action against 
the Elks Club.  
 
Jerry Coven from the Elks Club (Lodge), stated that some of the problems, as with 
the last shooting that was on Elks Lodge property, was with those in the parking lot 
and was not with a patron of the Lodge. He said these individuals involved in this 
incident never came into the Lodge. He said that Ypsilanti was a rough area and its’ 
the only Elks Lodge that he has been to that has had these issues. He stated it does 
not have anything to do with the Elks. He said the problems are with the residents 
in Ypsilanti.  He said these problems at this club had nothing to do with the Club 
but it is with the residents. Mr. Coven said that his understanding with the last 
shooting was that a man came from across the street and shot someone in the 
parking lot at the Elks Lodge. He said it had nothing to do with renting the Lodge 
out because the men never came into the Lodge. Mr. Coven said that when there 
was an incident at the Lodge that needed the Sheriffs’ Department they have been 
called. Mr. Coven stated that he was told there were too many calls to the Sheriffs’ 
Department. He said that they have put up the no loitering signs in the parking lot. 
Mr. Coven said that along with Mr. Huddleston who was a member from the 
Lodge, they have developed a plan for fixing the parking lot. Mr. Coven stated that 
it was not the Lodges’ fault when the shooter came out of a store from across the 
street and shot someone who happened to be in the Lodge parking lot. Mr. Coven 
said one of the plans for the parking lot was to put a fence around it and get 
security cameras. He said he does not know how to fix what happened at the 
Lodge without the cooperation of the Sheriffs’ Department. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 7 

Trustee Jarrell Roe asked Mr. Coven to elaborate what he meant when he said he 
was told the Lodge was calling the Sheriffs’ too often.  Mr. Coven stated that one of 
the members told him that the Lodge was making too many calls to the Sheriffs’ 
Department. Mr. Coven said that it was his fifth year with the Lodge and until 
recently they have not had any problems over the last six or seven years. He said 
they had been trying to clean up their image and were looking for more mature 
members. He said they don’t want the young crowd at their Lodge but when they 
are open, young people will come into their parking lot. He said the young people 
will park in their lot and go across the street and buy liquor and drink it in their 
parking lot. Mr. Coven stated he has seen Sheriff Officers drive by and not stop and 
help to resolve the problem. He said the lodge was doing want they could but they 
needed everyone to work with them. 

Trustee Ross Williams questioned Mr. Coven if he knew when the police were 
called on the day of the shooting. She said she was asking because when she drove 
by about 12:00 midnight she saw people in front of the Club and one Sheriffs’ car 
coming in from Harris Road without any lights on. Mr. Coven stated he was at 
another Lodge in Highland Park and when he got back to Ypsilanti the shooting had 
already taken place. Trustee Ross Williams said she was asking because she 
wondered when the police were called. Mr. Coven said he didn’t believe the police 
were called before the shooting because none of the people involved with the 
shooting had come into the Lodge. Mr. Coven believes that the men involved had 
had an incident the week before and just happened to see each other. Mr. Coven 
said he believes the Sheriffs’ Department has reviewed tapes from across the 
street and knows what happened because one of the people involved he believed 
was in custody but said he couldn’t say what time it happened. 

Lt. Mike Marocco, Washtenaw Sheriff, stated that he was responsible for police 
services in Ypsilanti Township. He said he has worked in Ypsilanti Township for 
most of his career with the Washtenaw County Sheriffs’ Department. Lt. Marocco 
stated that on day two after the shooting Deputy Eugene Rush went out to the 
Club and spoke with representatives from the Club. Lt. Marocco said he did not 
know for sure that the people involved in the shooting were not in the Club that 
night but some of the information Attorney Washington would be receiving would 
provide more details. Lt. Marocco said that when an investigation was ongoing and 

                                                                   Trustee Jarrell Roe stated the importance of ensuring 
the safety of the community and the members of the Elk’s Lodge. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 8 
 
we are trying to hold people accountable for their actions we cannot put out all the 
information as to what happened until the investigation is completed.  Lt. Marocco 
stated he hoped that people would understand that. Lt. Marocco said their goal at 
the Sheriffs’ Office was to have a safe and fun community for everybody involved.  
He said that he was dedicated to his job and he knows the people who work with 
him were dedicated to their job. Lt. Marocco stated they were more than willing to 
partner with everyone in the community. He said they have had successes in the 
past but also had some down falls.  Lt. Marocco said they were here now and have 
engaged with the Club. He said as far as responding to calls, they respond when 
they are called.  He said they don’t have 35 deputies driving around at any one 
time just looking for things to do. Lt. Marocco said that if they don’t get called 
that’s when problems are created. Lt. Marocco said that whoever told them not to 
call 911 was wrong and he wants them to know to call 911 if they need assistance. 
He said if someone tells them not to call 911 he would be giving everyone here 
tonight his cell phone number and would like to be called if that ever happens. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated that her husband was in charge of renting out his local 
union hall. She said that they had problems with certain rentals of the hall. Clerk 
Lovejoy Roe said they began limiting the type of events they allowed their facility 
to be rented for and most of the problems were eliminated.  
 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director discussed the other two properties, 3150 W. Michigan 
Ave., and 829 E. Michigan Ave. He stated that 829 E. Michigan Ave. known as Your 
Motel management has signed a lease agreement with the Michigan Department 
of Corrections to house recently paroled individuals for up to six months.  He said 
the lease agreement reads more like a landlord/tenant agreement. Mr. Radzik said 
there were numerous zoning code violations. He said there have been numerous 
arrests made at the motel with paroled individuals and drug use.  
 
 

6. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DIRECTOR TO PUBLICLY 
SELL SIX (6) DESKS CURRENTLY BEING STORED AT FORD LAKE PARK AND 
TO DISPOSE OF REMAINING DESKS THAT DO NOT SELL 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 9 
 

7. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 AT 
APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM – CREATION OF A NEIGHBORHOOD 
CAMERA/STREETLIGHT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FOR THE MANORS 
AT CREEKSIDE VILLAGE 

 
8. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DIRECTOR TO PURCHASE 

A 2017 FORD EXPLORER FWD FOR USE IN THE OFFICE OF COMMUNITY 
STANDARDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $26,513.00 WITH ALL WEATHER FLOOR 
MATS IN THE AMOUNT OF $125.00 AND REVERSE SENSING IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $295.00 FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT OF $26,933.00 WITH MIDEAL 
PRICING CONTRACT NUMBER #071B1300005 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#595-595-000-985-000 

 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 

1. REQUEST OF ERIC COPELAND, FIRE CHIEF TO SEEK SEALED BIDS FOR 
REPLACEMENT OF TWO FURNACES AND AIR CONDITIONING UNITS AT FIRE 
HEADQUARTERS LOCATED AT 222 S. FORD BLVD. 

 
Eric Copeland, Fire Chief, said this was the second phase and will bring this back 
to the board. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 6:58p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY APRIL 18, 2017 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of silent 
prayer. 
 

Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe, 

                                        Treasurer Larry Doe, Trustees:  Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell  
                                        Roe, Jimmie Wilson Jr., Monica Ross-Williams 
                    

Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident, stated she has a letter requesting a 
streetlight at McCarthy and State. She said it was very dark and a pedestrian was 
killed near that corner.  Ms. McCollum also stated that because of the darkness 
many of our youth have gotten into trouble there. She said that the residents are 
requesting the streetlight. Ms. McCollum gave a letter with signatures to the 
board. Ms. McCollum stated she would like the street sweep more than twice a 
season. She said that having a schedule of when the street sweeper would be 
sweeping would also help residents to move cars off the street.   
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that the City of Ypsilanti has their own department to 
sweep their streets, which is only 4 square miles of roads. She said Ypsilanti 
Township streets are 32 square miles and the Washtenaw Road Commission was 
responsible for the streets.  
 
Ms. McCollum also commented on the grant that West Willow shares with the 
Recreation Center. She explained that this was a collaboration to increase the use 
of our parks. 
 
Ms. McCollum commented about the problems she was having when trying to 
email Trustees from her phone. Mr. Radzik stated that the email addresses are not 
on our website because our IT department said it would be vulnerable to hackers. 
 
Arloa Kaiser, Township Resident suggested that if your street was not swept well 
you should take a picture and bring it to the board meeting.  She said she has had 
good sweeping of her street since she made them aware of the problem.  Ms. 
Kaiser also voiced concern over the increase in taxes on businesses and not 
property owners. She was concerned over the closing of the old Willow Run High 
School because her understanding was that the building was being leased and the 
payment was used as additional revenue for the school district. Ms. Kaiser stated 
she heard the township might use the building as a recreation center and she was 
opposed to this. 
 
Robert Harrison, Township Resident stated the problem with the drains were from 
leaves that are blown into the streets. Mr. Harrison questioned if there was an 
ordinance against the leaves being in the street. He also stated that some 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, APRIL 18, 2017 REGULAR MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
residents, when mowing their grass, let the grass clippings blow into the street, 
which also clog the drains. 
 
Lavada Weathers, Township Resident suggested that anyone who was concerned 
with Ypsilanti Community Schools and why they do the things they do should come 
to school board meetings because they are very informative. She also stated that 
the Superintendent of Ypsilanti Schools would be open to discuss these issues with 
any residents. 
 
Linda Mealing, Township Resident said she would like the dumping of material 
from Ohio stopped in our area, every state should deal with their own garbage. 
 
E.L. Weathers, Township Resident stated that the divider when coming off I-94 and 
Huron St. needs to be painted because it was hard to see. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
      A. MINUTES OF THE APRIL 4, 2017 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR 
           MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 18, 2017 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$973, 933.27 

2. CHOICE HEALTH CARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR MARCH 2017 IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $63,811.50 

3. CHOICE HEALTH CARE ADMIN FEE FOR FEBRUARY 2017 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $1,207.50 

 
C. MARCH 2017 TREASURER’S REPORT 

 
A motion made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Treasurer Doe to Approve the 
Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE  
 
Attorney Winters gave a brief update on neighborhood stabilization within 
Ypsilanti Township. Attorney Winters stated he had approved contracts for the 
roof at the Community Center and the cart paths repaving at the Golf Course. He 
said that when the township has work done by contractors, the contractors 
would pay a prevailing wage rate to their employees. Attorney Winters stated 
they are continuing with the negotiations with the township fire fighters. He 
discussed his ongoing monitoring of the Tyler Pond situation. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, APRIL 18, 2017 REGULAR MEETING 
PAGE 3 
 
NEW  BUSINESS 
 

1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #6 
 
A Motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve Budget Amendment #6 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO SELL YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP OWNED PARCEL 
K-11-10-386-023 LOCATED AT 855 AUBURNDALE IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$5,000.00 TO HABITAT FOR HUMANITY TO BE USED AS PART OF THE 
WASHTENAW COMMUNITY COLLEGE YOUTH BUILD GRANT TO BE SOLD AS 
A HABITAT HOME WHEN COMPLETED 

 
A Motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve the Request for Authorization to Sell Ypsilanti Township owned Parcel 
K-11-10-386-023 Located at 855 Auburndale in the Amount of $5,000.00 to 
Habitat for Humanity to be used as Part of the Washtenaw Community College 
Youth Build Grant to be Sold as a Habitat Home when Completed. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. RESOLUTION 2017-08 TO ABANDON INTEREST IN A CERTAIN 
UNDEVELOPED PLATTED PARK AS WELL AS ANY RIGHT OF WAY INTEREST 
IN ADJACENT UNIMPROVED ROADWAYS 

 
A Motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve the Resolution 2017-08 to Abandon Interest in a Certain Undeveloped 
Platted Park as well as Any Right of Way Interest in Adjacent Unimproved 
Roadways (see attached). 
 
Jarrell Roe        Yes                Eldridge        Yes            Ross-Williams          No 
Lovejoy Roe     Yes                Doe                Yes            Wilson Jr.                 Yes 
Stumbo             Yes 
 
The motion carried. 
 

4. REQUEST TO APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD 
COMMISSION FOR 2017 LOCAL ROAD DUST CONTROL IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$5,682.60 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #212-212-000-818-006 

 
A Motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Wilson to 
Approve Request to Approve Agreement with Washtenaw County Road 
Commission for 2017 Local Road Dust Control in the Amount of $5,682.60 
Budgeted in Line Item #212-212-000-818-006 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, APRIL 18, 2017 REGULAR MEETING 
PAGE 4 
 

5. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK 
LEGAL ACTION IF NECESSARY TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 940 MINION ST., 1405 ECORSE RD., 3150 W. MICHIGAN AVE. 
AND 829 E. MICHIGAN AVE. IN THE AMOUNT OF $40,000.00 BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
A Motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve Request of Mike Radzik, OCS Director for Authorization to Seek Legal 
Action if Necessary to Abate Public Nuisance for Property Located at 940 Minion 
St., 1405 Ecorse Road, 3150 W. Michigan Ave. and 829 E. Michigan Ave. in the 
Amount of $40,000.00 Budgeted in Line Item #101-950-000-801-023 
 
A request for a friendly amendment to the motion was made by Trustee Ross-
Williams, supported by Trustee Wilson to remove 1405 Ecorse Rd. from the 
motion so both parties may discuss issues, come to an agreement, and not seek 
legal action. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said she did not concur with the motion to amend on the basis 
that Trustee Ross-Williams’ amendment to allow the parties to reach agreement 
without court action was an option already included in the original motion.  Clerk 
Lovejoy Roe said the board always works with property owners to try to resolve 
the issues before seeking legal action. She stated the only way legal action would 
be taken was if the two parties could not agree on a resolution. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe stated that she understands the importance of the club and she 
supports it, but also has an obligation to make our community safe. 
 
Trustee Wilson, Jr. stated that Mike Radzik, OCS Director had stated that the three 
other properties had complaints from the neighbors but he did not report 
neighbors complaining about 1405 Ecorse Rd. Trustee Wilson said he knew there 
had been issues several years ago but as Mr. Coven stated they had come up with 
ways to cut down on incidents. Trustee Wilson said that one issue would not seem 
to warrant this action. Trustee Wilson suggested to table 1405 Ecorse and come 
back in May because he would not vote for the motion if 1405 Ecorse was included 
with the other addresses. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated that she would support tabling this address by 
separating 1405 Ecorse out of the request. She said there were a number of people 
present tonight who were willing to resolve this without moving forward with this 
process. Trustee Ross-Williams stated she would vote against the motion if 1405 
Ecorse remains in this request. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe stated since she was a new Trustee and not a lot of these 
requests have come up she wanted to confirm that this was just to give the 
approval to move into negotiations with these properties and does not mean that 
legal action would be taken if the issues were resolved. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, APRIL 18, 2017 REGULAR MEETING 
PAGE 5 
 
Attorney Winters stated that the key words were “if necessary”. He said they 
would work together to carve out a pathway which would be balanced and fair for 
the property owners and the neighbors. Attorney Winters stated that as far as the 
property at 1405 Ecorse he believes that reasonable minds can come to a 
resolution. He said for clarity, when authorization was given to take legal action, it 
was always a last resort. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated at the neighborhood watch meetings the issues with 
1405 Ecorse had been brought up.  She said the neighbors did not know that this 
would be on the agenda tonight. Supervisor Stumbo said she knows that at least 3 
times she had been over to the Club and tried to work these issues out. Supervisor 
Stumbo said she knows they can resolve this, but thinks it needs to be official. 
 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director stated he had complaints about overflow parking with 
the area businesses and also parking on Davis Street by the residents. He said the 
residents had issues with litter in their yards from the patrons parking on the 
street. He said there were on going issues with the parking lot. He said there was a 
meeting in the past with the elected officials, the Sheriffs’ department and we 
reached an agreement similar to what we are talking about trying to achieve now 
but it we didn’t go to court.  He said he tried to memorialize it in a letter to the 
leadership of the Lodge which spelled out everything all parties agreed to do and 
unfortunately there were a few more incidents after that.  Mr. Radzik stated they 
have had more success when the agreement was memorialized in the form of a 
Consent Agreement. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated that there were other parking lots in the area in need 
of maintenance. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo asked Trustee Ross-Williams to please report the other parking 
lots. 
 
The motion carried. 
 

6. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DIRECTOR TO PUBLICLY 
SELL SIX (6) DESKS CURRENTLY BEING STORED AT FORD LAKE PARK AND 
TO DISPOSE OF REMAINING DESKS THAT DO NOT SELL 

 
A Motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
Approve the Request of Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director to Publicly sell six 
(6) Desks Currently being Stored at Ford Lake Park and to Dispose of Remaining 
Desks that do not Sell. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, APRIL 18, 2017 REGULAR MEETING 
PAGE 6 
 
 

7. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 AT 
APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM – CREATION OF A NEIGHBORHOOD 
CAMERA/STREETLIGHT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FOR THE MANORS 
AT CREEKSIDE VILLAGE 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to Approve 
the Request to Set a Public Hearing Date of Tuesday, May 16, 2017 at 
Approximately 7:00PM – Creation of a Neighborhood Camera/Streetlight Special 
Assessment District for the manors at Creekside Village. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DIRECTOR TO PURCHASE 
A 2017 FORD EXPLORER FWD FOR USE IN THE OFFICE OF COMMUNITY 
STANDARDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $26,513.00 WITH ALL WEATHER FLOOR 
MATS IN THE AMOUNT OF $125.00 AND REVERSE SENSING IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $295.00 FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT OF $26,933.00 WITH MIDEAL 
PRICING CONTRACT NUMBER #071B1300005 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#595-595-000-985-000 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve Request of Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director to Purchase a 2017 
Ford Explorer FWD for Use in the Office of Community Standards in the Amount 
of $26,513.00 with all Weather Floor Mats in the Amount of $125.00 and Reverse 
Sensing in the Amount of $295.00 for a Total Amount of $26,933.00 with Mideal 
Pricing Contract Number #071B1300005 Budgeted in Line Item #595-595-000-985-
000. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe requested a point of special privilege stating that at the State 
Robotics Competition in Saginaw both Lincoln Consolidated Schools and Ypsilanti 
Community Schools Robotics Teams placed high enough out of over 480 teams to 
compete at the World Championship. 

 
AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 

1. REQUEST OF ERIC COPELAND, FIRE CHIEF TO SEEK SEALED BIDS FOR 
REPLACEMENT OF TWO FURNACES AND AIR CONDITIONING UNITS AT FIRE 
HEADQUARTERS LOCATED AT 222 S. FORD BLVD. 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Trustee Wilson, Jr. to 
Approve Request of Eric Copeland, Fire Chief to Seek Sealed Bids for Replacement 
of Two Furnaces and Air Conditioning Units at Fire Headquarters Located at 222 
S. Ford Blvd. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, APRIL 18, 2017 REGULAR MEETING 
PAGE 7 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Adjourn. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:59p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT #6

April 18, 2017

249 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND Total Increase $3,680.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 249-000-000-699.000 $3,680.00

Net Revenues $3,680.00

Expenditures: Motor Pool Lease 249-249-000-943.000 $3,680.00

Net Expenditures $3,680.00

595 - MOTOR POOL FUND Total Increase $26,933.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 595-000-000-699.000 $23,253.00

Combined Lease/Repair Revenue 595-000-000-607.515 $3,680.00

Net Revenues $26,933.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay/Vehicles 595-595-000-985.000 $26,933.00

Net Expenditures $26,933.00

Request to increase budget for the purchase of a 2017 Ford Explorer from Gorno Ford through MiDeal pricing at 

$26,933 for Building Fund inspector.  The Building Fund will be paying a lease for the vehicles. This will be funded 

by Lease Revenue (remainder of 2017) and an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase the motor pool lease line in order to pay the remaining 8 months of 2017 for the new Ford 

Explorer requested below.  The Building Fund will be paying the motor pool for this vehicle over a period of 60 

months plus maintenance. This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2017 Budget (#6): 

 

 

Move to increase the Building Fund budget by $3,680 to $729,622 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Motor Pool Fund budget by $26,933 to $276,964 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

 

RESOLUTION  2017-08 
 

A Resolution to Abandon Interest in a Certain Undeveloped Platted 

Park as Well as any Right of Way Interest in 

Adjacent Unimproved Roadways 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township (Township) of Ypsilanti Board 

of Trustees (Board) has received a request to abandon and discontinue 

all of its interest in a certain undeveloped platted park as well as any 

right of way interest it may possess to the unimproved Collegewood 

Drive, Roosevelt Boulevard and Maulbetsch Road immediately adjacent 

thereto, all of which are located on the west side of Hewitt Road, north 

of Washtenaw Avenue, and more particularly described as: 

 
(See attachments A and B) 

 
WHEREAS, the Board is aware that the Board of County Road 

Commissioners of the County of Washtenaw has approved a 

Resolution to Abandon Right of Way Interest in the unimproved 

roads mentioned as recorded on February 8, 2017 in Uber 5190 at Page 

874 of the Washtenaw County Records (Attachment C); and 

 
WHEREAS, it appears from viewing the premises and hearing 

the petitioner's reasons, that it is in the best interest of the Township 

that the Township's interest in the undeveloped park and adjacent 

unimproved roads, as proposed, be absolutely vacated and abandoned. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of 

Trustees that the Township's interest in the undeveloped park and 

adjacent unimproved roads is hereby absolutely abandoned, vacated 

and discontinued. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that notice of this Resolution be 

given by the Township Clerk to the Board of County of Road 

Commissioners, the State Department of Transportation and be 

recorded with the Register of Deeds of Washtenaw County. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify adoption of Resolution 2017-08 by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on April 18, 2017. The motion to approve 
was made by member Roe and seconded by Doe YES:  Stumbo, Roe, Doe, Eldridge, Jarrell Roe, 
Wilson ABSENT:  None  NO: Ross Williams.  ABSTAIN:  None.  
 

 
___________________________________ 

     Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 









CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING THURSDAY, APRIL 27, 2017 

 
Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 8:35 a.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. 
 

Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe, 

                                        Treasurer Larry Doe, Trustees:  Heather Jarrell Roe 
 

Members Absent:  Trustee Eldridge, Trustee Ross-Williams, Trustee Wilson, Jr. 

                 
Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #7 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Budget Amendment #7 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. REQUEST OF ERIC COPELAND, FIRE CHIEF FOR APPROVAL OF THE 2016 
REGIONAL EMS GRANT APPLICATION AND THE MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE YPSILANTI CITY FIRE DEPARTMENT AND 
ITS REGIONAL PARTICIPATING PARTNERS FOR THE 2016 ASSISTANCE FOR 
FIREFIGHTERS GRANT PROGRAM WITH A MATCHING CONTRIBUTION OF 
$7,826.24 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #206-970-000-979-005 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Request of Eric Copeland, Fire Chief for Approval of the 2016 Regional 
EMS Grant Application and the Memorandum of Understanding Between the 
Ypsilanti City Fire Department and its Regional Participating Partners for the 2016 
Assistance for Firefighters Grant Program with a matching Contribution of 
$7,826.24 Budgeted in Line Item #206-970-000-979-005 (see attached). 
 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe asked Attorney Winters if he had any issues with the grant.  
Attorney Winters stated he had read the Grant and the only questions he had was 
he was not sure what the City does once it receives the grant regarding dispersing. 
He said he heard there was a possibility we might be audited and not sure if that 
would be just the City of Ypsilanti or all the recipients of the grant.  Attorney 
Winters said there may be some reporting or accounting that would need to be 
done. Eric Copeland, Fire Chief stated the Grant was written by the City of 
Ypsilanti’s Fire Chief on behalf of the Regional Partnership.  Javonna Neel, 
Accounting Director stated the City of Ypsilanti is administering the grant and they 
will issue an invoice to us. She said we would not be part of the audit for the grant. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING THURSDAY, APRIL 27, 2017 
PAGE 2 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
adjourn. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:40 a.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
                   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT #7

April 26, 2017

206 - FIRE FUND Total Increase $7,827.00

Expenditures: Prior Year Fund Balance 206-000-000-699.000 $7,827.00

Net Expenditures $7,827.00

Expenditures: Cap Outlay - Fire Equipment-Grant 206-970-000-979.005 $7,827.00

Net Expenditures $7,827.00

Request to increase the budget for a matching 10%  in a Partcipating Partners Grant Program which will purchase 

necessary safety equipment. This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2017 Budget (#7): 

 

 

 

Move to increase the Fire Fund budget by $7,827 to $5,088,669 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 23  
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 

THE YPSILANTI CITY FIRE DEPARTMENT AND ITS REGIONAL 

PARTICIPATING PARTNERS 

2016 ASSISTANCE FOR FIREFIGHTERS GRANT PROGRAM 

GANT NUMBER EMW-2016-FR-00273 

PREAMBLE 

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into between the Ypsilanti City Fire Department 

(hereafter “Hosting Organization”) and by and among each municipal and township that executes this MOU and 

adopts its terms and conditions, in view of the following: 

Whereas, the Hosting Organization has agreed and will be responsible for submission of the Regional 

Application to the 2016 Assistance for Firefighters Grant Program, in its own name on behalf of itself and the 

other regional participating partners who have executed this MOU on behalf of their respective government 

entities, for the acquisition of the listed EMS equipment. 

Whereas, if awarded the grant the Hosting Organization has agreed to perform all programmatic and financial 

responsibilities as grant recipient and accept the awarded equipment and share it with its Regional Participating 

Partners in accordance with the terms of the grant; 

Whereas, each Regional Participating Partner, as evidenced by their execution of this MOU agrees to accept the 

terms under which facilitation of their use of the training and equipment as may be specified by the grant award 

and/or this MOU. 

TERMS 

I. Purpose 

The purpose of this MOU is to establish a cooperative agreement between the City of Ypsilanti, the 

programmatic and financial administrator (host) for the Ypsilanti City Fire Department (hereinafter "YCFD"), 

and its Regional Participating Partners, (hereinafter the “Regional Participating Partners") to secure a 2016 

Assistance to Firefighters Grant and to provide Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation equipment for the region’s 

safety services. This purchase will help to serve the public and safety service personnel through obtaining the 

necessary equipment on a regional basis allowing for increased efficiencies in response and support by and 

among local jurisdictions. 

The City of Ypsilanti and the Regional Participating Partners accept and agree to abide by the terms and 

conditions of the grant, including but not limited to those specifically enumerated in this MOU. All parties 

agree that Federal funds under this award will be used to supplement, but not supplant, State or local funds for 

first responder preparedness. 

 



Page 2 of 23  
 

II. Definitions 

Authorized Representative: The chief executive and fire chief of a participating governmental entity, or his/her 

designee, who has authorization to execute this MOU. 

Equipment: Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs), Mechanical Compression Devices (ACCD), AED 

trainers, Intubation manikins. 

Host Organization: The Ypsilanti City Fire Department (YCFD) 

Regional Participating Partners: Any government entity that executes this MOU. 

III. Background to the Assistance Firefighters Grant Project 

Purpose and Objective: 

The purpose of the AFG Program is to enhance, through direct financial assistance, the health and safety of the 

public and firefighting personnel and to provide a continuum of support for emergency responders regarding 

fire, medical, and all-hazard events. 

The objective of the FY 2016 AFG Program is to award grants directly to fire departments, nonaffiliated EMS 

organizations, and SFTAs for critically needed resources to protect the public, train emergency personnel, foster 

interoperability, and support community resilience. 

Eligible activities requested that have an immediate impact on the safety of emergency responders, other 

personnel, or the public may receive additional consideration during the application review process. 

FY 2016 AFG Programs play an important role in the implementation of the National Preparedness System 

(NPS) by supporting the building, sustainment, and delivery of core capabilities essential to achieving the 

National Preparedness Goal (NPG) of a secure and resilient Nation. Delivering core capabilities requires the 

combined effort of the whole community, rather than the exclusive effort of any single organization or level of 

government. 

Problem Statement: 

In Washtenaw and Wayne Counties, the YCFD and the said Regional Participating Partners lack the appropriate 

Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation equipment to safely provide appropriate out of hospital patient care to victims 

suffering of a cardiac arrest.  

The AFG-Funding Opportunity Announcement reflects the Center for Domestic Planning’s recommendations 

for program priorities designed to address: 

1. Protecting the public and first responder safety - Increase the overall survival rate of cardiac arrest victims in the 

region and enhance first responders’ safety. 

2. Enhancing capabilities and resilience (local, regional, and national) – provides/enhances the opportunity to 

build long-term interagency relationships through join training and mutual-aid.  



Page 3 of 23  
 
3. Enhancing National Capabilities -grant funding will assist in moving YCDF and the Regional Participating Partners to 

adhere to the State of Michigan and local Medical Control Authority mandated or voluntary cardio pulmonary 

resuscitation rescue practices.  

4. Risk - Risk Based Prioritization -grant funding will assist in moving YCFD and the Regional Participating 

Partners closer to common equipment amongst all Regional Participating Partners. YCFD and the Regional 

Participating Partners will build and/or leverage on existing resources to strategically invest in enhancing future 

interpretational capabilities and working relationships.  

 

5. Interoperability - Grant funding will allow YCFD and the Regional Participating Partners to develop short 

and long term goals, activities and a continuing training program to continue to enhance regional 

interoperability, consistent, in concert, and/or in parallel with the Michigan Automatic Box Alarm System 

(MABAS) program in which all the Regional Participating Partners are officially part of the newly developed 

Washtenaw County MABAS division.  

 

IV. Responsibilities of the Ypsilanti City Fire Department  
 
As the Hosting Organization for the 2016 Assistance Firefighters Grant, the Authority (YCFD) will:  

 

a. Oversee the grant application, implementation and coordination with the grantor.  

 

b. Manage grant activities including, but not limited to, project and fiscal reports for the grantor.  

 

c. Ensure the YCFD and the Regional Participating Partners receive proper training for the equipment 

received.  

 

d. Act as the fiscal agent for the grant including:  

1. Invoicing the Regional Participating Partners for their share of the 10% matching grant cost of Training    

based on the count of each department’s personnel number at time of Training purchase.  

2. Arranging payment to vendors.  

3. Preparing program and fiscal reports required by the grantor.  

4.  Auditing and tracking grant funds and deliverables as required by the grantor.  

5.  Coordinate procurement of the Equipment through a competitive bidding process in compliance with the City 

of Ypsilanti Purchasing Policy.  

 

e. Coordinate communications with the Regional Participating Partners throughout the grant term.  

 

V. Responsibilities of the Regional Participating Partners  
 

Each of the Regional Participating Partners will:  

 

a. Provide funding share of the 10% matching grant cost of the equipment received based on the 

department’s need assessment request at time of the equipment purchase. The share of cost shall be paid 

upon receipt of invoice from the Authority, in advance of equipment procurement. The Approximate 

share cost for each Regional Participating Partner is visible on Exhibit B of this MOU. 

 

b. Participate and train its employees in accordance with the Washtenaw or Wayne Counties Medical 

Control Authorities, American Heart Association Curriculum and manufacture recommendations. 

 

c. Provide roster training documentation to the Authority. 

 



Page 4 of 23  
 

d. Provide the following assigned liaison(s) on Exhibit A of this MOU:  

1. Primary Contact who is responsible for: the Regional Partner's point of contact.  

2. Training Contact who is responsible to oversee the Regional Partner's training  

3. Fiscal Contact: responsible for accounting, fiscal reporting and payment.  

 

e. Promptly provide any additional documentation to the Authority as requested that may be necessary in 

connection with the grant. 

 

f.  Be accountable for using and maintaining their received equipment as needed. 
 

g. If applicable, lend training equipment to other Regional Participating Partners 

 

VI. Local/Regional Mutual Aid or Reciprocal Aid Compacts and Agreements  
 

Nothing in this MOU, including participation in or requests for assistance by any eligible Regional Participating 

Partner shall preclude, abrogate or supersede the fulfillment of the terms of any local or regional mutual aid or 

reciprocal aid compacts and agreements and the duty of the Hosting Organization to provide equipment and 

other available resources during a threat or actual occurrence of any emergency, disaster or serious threat to 

public health and safety. 

 VII. Arbitration of Disputes  
 

Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this MOU, or the breach thereof by the parties, shall be 

resolved in the following manner:  

a. The party asserting noncompliance shall serve written notice to the other party or parties. The 

notice shall identify the specific provision alleged to have been violated and shall specify the 

factual and legal basis for the alleged noncompliance.  

 

b. In the event the controversy or claim is not resolved to the satisfaction of both parties within 

90 days after service of the notice set forth in subsection a above, either party may request that 

controversy or claim be resolved through mediation or any other available legal proceedings.  

 

c. Nothing herein shall be construed to waive, limit or restrict any defense that is otherwise 

available to either party.  

 

VIII. Indemnification  
 

a. All liability and/or loss or damage as a result of claims, demands, costs, or judgments arising out of 

activities that are the responsibility of the Ypsilanti City Fire Department pursuant to the terms of this 

MOU shall be the responsibility of the Ypsilanti City Fire Department if the liability, loss, or damage is 

caused by, or arises out of, the actions or failure to act on the part of the Ypsilanti City Fire Department 

or its employees either directly or indirectly, provided that nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver 

of any governmental immunity available to the government body or unit of government or its employees 

by common law, statute, or court decision. 

  

a. All liability and/or loss or damage as a result of claims, demands, costs, or judgments arising out of 

activities that are the responsibility of a Regional Participating Partner, or its employees shall be the 

responsibility of the Regional Participating Partner if the liability, loss, or damage is caused by, or arises 



Page 5 of 23  
 

out of, the actions or failure to act on the part of the Regional Participating Partner or its employees 

either directly or indirectly, provided that nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of any 

governmental immunity available to the Regional Participating Partner, or the employees of any of them 

as provided by common law, statute, or court decision. 

  

IX. Insurance 
  
Each party to this MOU shall bear the risk of its own actions as it would with normal, day-to-day operations and 

determine for itself what kinds and amounts of insurance it should carry.  

 

X. Termination of the MOU  
 

a. This MOU shall terminate when all AFG Program obligations are completed and/or expired. 

 

b. A Regional Participating Partner may terminate its participation in this MOU any time prior to the 

Regional Participating Partners purchase the equipment and with 30 days’ written notice to the 

Authority’s Project Lead. 

  

XI. Points of Contact  
 

The YCFD will designate a Primary Lead, as well as identify Points of Contact for Fiscal and Documentation 

responsibilities. The Regional Participating Partners will designate a Primary Point of Contact, as well as 

identify Points of Contact for Training and Fiscal responsibilities. Points of Contact are set forth in the attached 

Exhibit A.  

 

XII. Notice  
 

Notice of termination or withdrawal from this MOU shall be made in writing and shall be served personally or 

by registered mail upon the Ypsilanti City Fire Department’s Project Lead. Termination or withdrawal shall not 

be effective until 30 days after the Ypsilanti City Fire Department has received written notice. The termination 

or withdrawal from the MOU shall apply only to the Regional Participating Partner that has tendered the 

required notice; this MOU shall otherwise remain in full force and effect until all AFG Program obligations are 

completed and/or expired.  

 

XIII. Choice of Law; Severability  
 

This MOU will be governed and controlled in all respects by the laws of the State of Michigan, including 

interpretation, enforceability, validity and construction. Whenever possible, each provision of this MOU will be 

interpreted in a manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law. However, if any provision of this 

MOU or the application of any provision to any party or circumstance will be prohibited by or invalid under 

applicable law, that provision will be ineffective to the extent of the prohibition or invalidity without 

invalidating the remainder of the provisions of this MOU or the application of the provision to other parties and 

circumstances.  

 

XIV. Authority to Enter into MOU; Execution by Counterpart  
 

The persons executing this MOU on behalf of their respective entities hereby represent and warrant that they 

have the right, power, legal capacity, and appropriate authority to enter into this MOU on behalf of the entity for 

which they sign.  



Page 6 of 23  
 

This MOU may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which 

together shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement.  

 

XV. Extent of Agreement; Amendments  
 

This MOU, together with any affixed exhibits or other documentation, constitutes the entire understanding 

between the Hosting Organization and the Regional Participating Partners with respect to the subject matter of 

the MOU and it supersedes, unless otherwise incorporated by reference herein, all prior representations, 

negotiations, agreements or understandings whether written or oral. No party has relied on any prior 

representations, of any kind or nature, in entering into this MOU. This MOU may be amended by written 

agreement by all parties if approved in accordance with grant contract terms and conditions. Notice of any 

amendments or revisions of the MOU must be made in writing to all parties by the requesting entity. 

Amendments shall only take effect upon acceptance and execution of an amended instrument by all parties. 

 

 

The City of Ypsilanti 

(Hosting Organization) 

 

________________________________ Date: ______________ 

Darwin McClary, City Manager 

________________________________ Date: ______________ 

Max Anthouard, Fire Chief 

 

  



Page 7 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY ANN ARBOR TOWNSHIP 

 

Ann Arbor Township Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU 

and obligations therein, on behalf of Ann Arbor Township Fire Department. 

Ann Arbor Township Fire Department 

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Michael Moran, Township Supervisor 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Mark Nicholai, Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 8 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY AUGUSTA TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

Augusta Township Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU 

and obligations therein, on behalf of Augusta Township Fire Department. 

Augusta Township Fire Department  

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Brian Shelby, Township Supervisor 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Dave Music, Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 9 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY BELLEVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

Belleville Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU and 

obligations therein, on behalf of Belleville Fire Department. 

Belleville Fire Department 

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Diana Kollmeyer, City Manager 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Brian Lorange, Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 10 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY DEXTER AREA FIRE DEPARTMENT 

Dexter Area Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU and 

obligations therein, on behalf of Dexter Area Fire Department. 

Dexter Area Fire Department 

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Courtney Nicholls, City Manager 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Robert Smith, Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 11 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY GREEN OAK TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

Green Oak Township Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU 

and obligations therein, on behalf of Green Oak Township Fire Department. 

Green Oak Township Fire Department 

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Mark St. Charles, Township Supervisor 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Kevin Gentry, Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 12 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY MANCHESTER TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

Manchester Township Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing 

MOU and obligations therein, on behalf of Manchester Township Fire Department. 

Manchester Township Fire Department  

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Gene DeRossett, Township Supervisor 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Bill Scully, Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 13 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY NORTHFIELD TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT  

 

Northfield Township Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU 

and obligations therein, on behalf of Northfield Township Fire Department. 

Northfield Township Fire Department 

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Marlene Chockley, Township Supervisor 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

William Wagner, Public Safety Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 14 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY NORTHVILLE TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

Northville Township Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU 

and obligations therein, on behalf of Northville Township Fire Department. 

Northville Township Fire Department 

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Robert Nix II, Township Supervisor 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Brent Siegel, Public Safety Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 15 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

Plymouth Township Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU 

and obligations therein, on behalf of Plymouth Township Fire Department. 

Plymouth Township Fire Department 

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Kurt Heise, Township Supervisor 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Dan Phillips, Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 16 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY SALEM TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

Salem Township Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU and 

obligations therein, on behalf of the Salem Township Fire Department 

Salem Township Fire Department 

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Gary Whittaker, Township Supervisor 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

James Rachwal, Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 17 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY SALINE AREA FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

Saline Area Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU and 

obligations therein, on behalf of Saline Area Fire Department. 

Saline Area Fire Department  

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Todd Campbell, City Manager 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Craig Hoeft, Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 18 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY SCIO TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

Scio Township Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU and 

obligations therein, on behalf of Scio Township Fire Department. 

Scio Township Fire Department 

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

M. Jack Knowles, Township Supervisor 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Carl Ferch, Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 19 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

Superior Township Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU 

and obligations therein, on behalf of Superior Township Fire Department. 

Superior Township Fire Department 

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Kenneth Schwartz, Township Supervisor 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Victor Chevrette, Fire Chief 

  



Page 20 of 23  
 

ACCEPTANCE AND AGREEMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AS A 

REGIONAL PARTICIPATION PARTNER 

BY VAN BUREN TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

Van Buren Township Fire Department, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby agrees to the foregoing MOU 

and obligations therein, on behalf of Van Buren Township Fire Department. 

Van Buren Township 

(Regional Participating Partner) 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Kevin McNamara, Township Supervisor 

 

__________________________ Date: ______________ 

Amy Brow, Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





Page 22 of 23  
 

EXHIBIT A 

Agency Title Name Phone Number Email 

Ypsilanti (Hosting Organization) Primary Lead Max Anthouard 734 482 9620 manthouard@cityofypsilanti.com 

 
Fiscal Marilou Uy 734 482 9832 muy@cityofypsilnati.com 

Training Richard Barnabo 734 482 9778 mbarnabo@cityofypsilanti.com 

Ann Arbor Township Primary      

  Fiscal       

  Training      

Augusta Township Primary       

  Fiscal       

  Training       

Belleville Primary       

  Fiscal       

  Training       

Dexter Area Primary       

  Fiscal       

  Training       

Green Oak Township Primary       

  Fiscal       

  Training       

Manchester Township Primary       

  Fiscal       

  Training       

Northfield Township Primary       

  Fiscal       

  Training       

Northville Township Primary      

  Fiscal       

  Training      

Plymouth Township Primary       

  Fiscal       

  Training       

Salem Township Primary       

  Fiscal       

  Training       

Saline Area Primary       

  Fiscal       

  Training       

Scio Township Primary       

  Fiscal       

  Training       

Superior Township Primary       

  Fiscal       

  Training       

Van Buren Township Primary       

  Fiscal       

  Training       

Ypsilanti Township Primary      

  Fiscal       

  Training      

  



Page 23 of 23  
 

EXHIBIT B

 

Fire 

Agencies

Equipment 

Requested

Q Sub total Total Cost

by Agency

FEMA 

Share

Agency 

Share

Ann Arbor Twp. AED 6 15,504.00$               39,392.62$                    35,811.47$                  3,581.15$            39,392.62$                 

AED trainer 1 850.00$                    

Battery charger 2 150.00$                    

Software share 1 165.62$                    

ACCD 1 18,628.00$               

Manikin 1 3,600.00$                 

Combitube 5 495.00$                    

Augusta AED 4 10,336.00$               11,426.62$                    10,387.83$                  1,038.78$            11,426.62$                 

AED trainer 1 850.00$                    

Battery charger 1 75.00$                       

Software share 1 165.62$                    

Bellevil le AED 2 5,168.00$                 6,258.62$                       5,689.65$                    568.97$               6,258.62$                   

AED trainer 1 850.00$                    

Battery charger 1 75.00$                       

Software share 1 165.62$                    

Dexter Area ACCD 1 18,628.00$               18,628.00$                    16,934.55$                  1,693.45$            18,628.00$                 

Green Oak Twp. AED 4 10,336.00$               34,101.62$                    31,001.47$                  3,100.15$            34,101.62$                 

AED trainer 1 850.00$                    

Battery charger 3 225.00$                    

Software share 1 165.62$                    

ACCD 1 18,628.00$               

Manikin 1 3,600.00$                 

King airway 3 297.00$                    

Manchester AED 3 7,752.00$                 8,842.62$                       8,038.74$                    803.87$               8,842.62$                   

AED trainer 1 850.00$                    

Battery charger 1 75.00$                       

Software share 1 165.62$                    

#REF! #REF! #REF! #REF!Northfield Twp. AED 4 10,336.00$               30,129.62$                    27,390.56$                  2,739.06$            30,129.62$                 

AED trainer 1 850.00$                    

Battery charger 2 150.00$                    

Software share 1 165.62$                    

ACCD 1 18,628.00$               

#REF! #REF! #REF! #REF!Nothville Twp. AED 4 10,336.00$               10,576.62$                    9,615.10$                    961.51$               10,576.62$                 

Battery charger 1 75.00$                       

Software share 1 165.62$                    

Plymouth Twp. ACCD 3 55,884.00$               55,884.00$                    50,803.64$                  5,080.36$            55,884.00$                 

Salem Twp. AED 2 5,168.00$                 24,886.62$                    22,624.20$                  2,262.42$            24,886.62$                 

AED trainer 1 850.00$                    

Battery charger 1 75.00$                       

Software share 1 165.62$                    

ACCD 1 18,628.00$               

AreaSaline Area AED 2 5,168.00$                 24,886.62$                    22,624.20$                  2,262.42$            24,886.62$                 

AED trainer 1 850.00$                    

Battery charger 1 75.00$                       

Software share 1 165.62$                    

ACCD 1 18,628.00$               

Scio Twp. AED 2 5,168.00$                 24,886.62$                    22,624.20$                  2,262.42$            24,886.62$                 

AED trainer 1 850.00$                    

Battery charger 1 75.00$                       

Software share 1 165.62$                    

ACCD 1 18,628.00$               

#REF! #REF! #REF! #REF!Superior Twp. AED 3 7,752.00$                 13,012.62$                    11,829.65$                  1,182.97$            13,012.62$                 

AED Trainer 1 850.00$                    

Battery charger 2 150.00$                    

Software share 1 165.62$                    

Manikin 1 3,600.00$                 

Combitube 5 495.00$                    

#REF! #REF! #REF! #REF!Van Buren ACCD 4 74,512.00$               74,512.00$                    67,738.18$                  6,773.82$            74,512.00$                 

Ypsilanti City AED 4 10,336.00$               34,149.62$                    31,045.10$                  3,104.51$            34,149.62$                 

AED Trainer 1 850.00$                    

Battery charger 1 75.00$                       

Software share 1 165.62$                    

Manikin 1 3,600.00$                 

Combitube 5 495.00$                    

ACCD 1 18,628.00$               

Ypsilanti Twp. AED 4 10,336.00$               86,088.62$                    78,262.38$                  7,826.24$            86,088.62$                 

AED Trainer 1 850.00$                    

Battery charger 3 225.00$                    

Software share 1 165.62$                    

ACCD 4 74,512.00$               

-$                              #REF!130 497,663.00$            497,663.00$                  452,420.91$                45,242.09$         497,663.00$               

WAMAA EMS Equipment Grant # EMW-2016-FR-00273

Share Prevision by Agency





















Account Name

101 - General Fund 2,964,689.04 4,077,456.24 1,509,103.63 5,533,041.65        
101 - Payroll 140,541.33 769,665.03 771,118.82 139,087.54            
101 - Willow Run Escrow 142,709.14 23.46 0.00 142,732.60            
206 - Fire Department 737,417.91 3,905,999.77 398,310.17 4,245,107.51        
208 - Parks Fund 29,222.57 10.88 359.60 28,873.85              
212 - Roads/Bike Path/Rec/General Fund 210,173.62 1,141,323.70 0.00 1,351,497.32        
225 - Environmental Clean-up 355,012.96 0.00 355,012.96 -                          
226 - Environmental Services 2,078,179.42 1,440,536.50 205,559.15 3,313,156.77        
230 - Recreation 87,003.89 41,660.64 66,264.20 62,400.33              
236 - 14-B District Court 224,737.23 183,097.50 110,655.92 297,178.81            
244 - Economic Development 67,369.38 25.36 0.00 67,394.74              
248 - Rental Inspections 172,055.83 45,501.03 26,587.99 190,968.87            
249 - Building Department Fund 760,004.80 95,689.25 55,835.27 799,858.78            
250 - LDFA Tax 236,253.77 69.92 217,026.00 19,297.69              
252 - Hydro Station Fund 407,901.69 105,549.90 21,783.53 491,668.06            
266 - Law Enforcement Fund 403,957.69 6,008,321.27 533,963.52 5,878,315.44        
280 - State Grants 18,435.69 6.94 0.00 18,442.63              
301 - General Obligation 5,181.20 1.97 0.00 5,183.17                
397 - Series "B" Cap. Cost of Funds 36,380.80 12.11 5,324.09 31,068.82              
398 - LDFA 2006 Bonds 6,865.10 217,026.00 201,140.00 22,751.10              
498 - Capital Improvement 2006 Bond Fund 338,132.13 55.58 0.00 338,187.71            
584 - Green Oaks Golf Course 190,370.35 60,732.66 42,413.98 208,689.03            
590 - Compost Site 596,550.36 29,247.83 21,734.38 604,063.81            
595 - Motor Pool 176,153.29 38,576.23 2,271.12 212,458.40            
701 - General Tax Collection 102,081.25 9,305.47 23,318.08 88,068.64              
703 - Current Tax Collections 15,207,630.01 1,418.70 15,145,454.51 63,594.20              
707 - Bonds & Escrow/GreenTop 1,275,426.09 72,752.38 3,352.31 1,344,826.16        
708 - Fire Withholding Bonds 138,035.19 20.71 14,056.00 123,999.90            
893 - Nuisance Abatement Fund 60,490.98 11,396.86 910.46 70,977.38              
ABN AMRO Series "B" Debt Red. Cap.Int. 6,926.02 0.52 3,171.96 3,754.58                

GRAND  TOTAL 27,175,888.73 18,255,484.41 19,734,727.65 25,696,645.49

Beginning Balance Cash Receipts Cash Disbursements Ending Balance

OFFICE OF THE TREASURER

LARRY J. DOE

MONTHLY TREASURER'S  REPORT

APRIL 1, 2017 THROUGH APRIL 30, 2017



 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

May 16, 2017

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $257,491.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $3,302.00

Net Revenues $3,302.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out -PTO 101-253-000-708.004 $3,067.00

FICA 101-253-000-715.000 $235.00

Net Expenditures $3,302.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $445.00

Net Revenues $445.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out -PTO 101-371-000-708.004 $413.00

FICA 101-371-000-715.000 $32.00

Net Expenditures $445.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $20,000.00

Net Revenues $20,000.00

Expenditures: 

Highways Street Sidewalk Construction 101-446-000-818.022 $20,000.00

Net Expenditures $20,000.00

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 148 hours to be paid 

at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 18.5 hours to be 

paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase re-budget for continuation of the Washtenaw Avenue CDBG project.  This is to acquire the 

necessary easements relating to the Washtenaw Avenue Sidewalk Infill Project.  This will be funded by an 

Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 3



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

May 16, 2017

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND - CONTINUED

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $132,300.00

Net Revenues $132,300.00

Expenditures: 

Highways Street Sidewalk Construction 101-446-000-818.022 $132,300.00

Net Expenditures $132,300.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $51,944.00

Net Revenues $51,944.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay - Tyler Dam Project 101-970-000-971.100 $51,944.00

Net Expenditures $51,944.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $49,500.00

Net Revenues $49,500.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay - Veterans Drive 101-970-000-976-007 $49,500.00

Net Expenditures $49,500.00

248 - HOUSING & BUSINESS INSPECTION FUND Total Increase $445.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 248-000-000-699.000 $445.00

Net Revenues $445.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out -PTO 248-248-000-708.004 $413.00

FICA 248-248-000-715.000 $32.00

Net Expenditures $445.00

Request to re-budget approved funds for the Veteran's Drive Project. This will complete the project in 2017. This 

will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to re-budget the approved engineering services of  Stantec for phase #4 of the Tyler Dam Pond. This will 

be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 18.5 hours to be 

paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for Agreement with Washtenaw County Road Commission for road improvements on 

the following; Partridge Creek Subdivision, Forest Avenue, and Emerson Avenue and Outer Lane Drive.    This will 

be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

2 of 3



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

May 16, 2017

249 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND Total Increase $888.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 249-000-000-699.000 $888.00

Net Revenues $888.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out -PTO 249-249-000-708.004 $825.00

FICA 249-249-000-715.000 $63.00

Net Expenditures $888.00

266 - LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND Total Increase $1,776.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 266-000-000-699.000 $1,776.00

Net Revenues $1,776.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out -PTO 266-301-000-708.004 $825.00

FICA 266-301-000-715.000 $63.00

Salaries pay out -PTO 266-304-000-708.004 $825.00

FICA 266-304-000-715.000 $63.00

Net Expenditures $1,776.00

590 - COMPOST FUND Total Increase $3,575.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 590-000-000-699.000 $3,575.00

Net Revenues $3,575.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out - PTO 590-590-000-708.004 $3,321.00

FICA 590-590-000-715.000 $254.00

Net Expenditures $3,575.00

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 122 hours to be paid 

at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 37 hours to be paid 

at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 74 hours to be paid 

at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

3 of 3



Motion to Amend the 2017 Budget (#8): 

 

 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $257,491 to $9,387,436 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Housing & Business Inspection Fund budget by $445 to $320,069 

and approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Building Fund budget by $888 to $730,510 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Law Enforcement Fund budget by $1,776 to $7,026,743 and 

approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Compost Fund budget by $3,575 to $530,109 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



McLAIN & WINTERS 
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

61 N. HURON 
YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN 48197 

(734) 481-1120 
DENNIS O. McLAIN                                                                                                                                            FAX (734) 481-8909 

WM. DOUGLAS WINTERS                                                                                                                E-MAIL: mcwinlaw@gmail.com 

ANGELA B. KING 

 
May 3, 2017 

 
Dave Otis                                                                
Plunkett Cooney                                                      
325 E Grand River Ave Ste 250                              
East Lansing, MI 48823-4356                                 
dotis@plunkettcooney.com                                     
 
Re:  

United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan  

 

Case No.: 2:16-cv-11856-AC-RSW 

Judge: Honorable Avern Cohn  

Plaintiff: Lamar Advertising of Michigan, Inc.  

Plaintiff’s Counsel: John A. Behrendt  

Defendant:     Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

Defendant’s Counsel:   David Otis  

 

1. Follow Up to Our Telephone Conversation This Morning 

Regarding the Proposed “Consent Judgment” Wherein Lamar 

Advertising Inc. Has Accepted the Proposed Revisions to the Consent 

Judgment as it Pertains to the Timeline in Which the Township will 

Issue the Required Permits (Assuming the Consent Judgment is 

Approved by the Township Board) as well as Confirmation that the 

Digital Sign Faces Will Occur in Accordance with the Township’s 

Zoning Ordinance 

 

2. Request that the Plaintiffs Provide a Current Certificate of 

Liability of Insurance Inasmuch as the One Attached to Exhibit A Has 

Expired 

 

3. Confirmation that I Have Requested Ypsilanti Township Clerk 

Karen Lovejoy Roe to Place the Proposed Consent Judgment on the 

May 16, 2017 Township Board Meeting 
Dear Dave: 
 
This will confirm our telephone conversation earlier this morning wherein I 
acknowledged the receipt of your email dated Tuesday, May 2, 2017 wherein you 

mailto:mwatty@voyager.net
mailto:dotis@plunkettcooney.com


Dave Otis 
Re: Lamar Advertising v. Twp 
May 3, 2017 
Page 2 
 

attached the email and enclosures from Plaintiff’s attorney J. Adam Behrendt 
confirming that Lamar Advertising Inc. is in agreement with the proposed changes 
to the Consent Judgment.  Those changes were to insure that the Township had 
sixty days after entry of a Consent Judgment to issue the required permits (as 
opposed to thirty days) and likewise confirms that the “digital sign faces” 

“…shall not exceed more than one message change on each sign face per 

ten seconds…” (which is required by Township Ordinance) as opposed to the 
eight seconds proposed by Plaintiff.  (sigh) 
 
In any event, I have forwarded the proposed Consent Judgment to the attention 
of Ypsilanti Township Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe and have requested that she 
place this matter on the May 16, 2017 Board Agenda.  As a side note, I would 
appreciate if Plaintiff’s attorney would forward a current Certificate of Liability 
Insurance that will be attached to Exhibit A inasmuch as the one previously filed 
with the Township during the site plan review process has expired.  I certainly 
appreciate all of your efforts in this matter and, if in the meantime, you have any 
questions or I can be of further assistance, please contact me. 
 
Very Truly Yours, 
 
 
Wm. Douglas Winters 
/js 



Detroit_14245049_2

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN

LAMAR ADVERTISING OF 
MICHIGAN, INC.,

Plaintiff,

v.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI,

Defendant.

Case No.  2:16-cv-11856-AC-RSW

Hon.  Avern Cohn

CONSENT JUDGMENT

BODMAN PLC
By: J. Adam Behrendt (P58607)
201 West Big Beaver Road, Suite 500
Troy, Michigan 48084
(248) 743-6000
Attorneys for Plaintiff Lamar 
Advertising of Michigan, Inc.

PLUNKETT COONEY
By: David K. Otis (P31627)
325 E. Grand River Avenue, Suite 250
East Lansing, MI 48823
(517) 324-5612
Attorneys for Defendant Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti



2

CONSENT JUDGMENT

At a session of the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District 
Michigan, Southern Division, held in the 

City Detroit, State of Michigan

on _________________________

PRESENT:  Hon. _________________
U.S. District Court Judge

This matter comes before the Court upon the first amended complaint of 

plaintiff Lamar Advertising of Michigan, Inc. against defendant Charter Township 

of Ypsilanti. Defendant regulates billboards and other signs through Section 2109 

(“Sign Ordinance”) of its zoning ordinance. Plaintiff sued defendant after 

defendant denied plaintiff’s two applications for permits to erect billboards.  

Plaintiff’s first amended complaint alleges that defendant’s Sign Ordinance—both 

facially and as-applied to plaintiff—is unconstitutional under the First and 

Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution and seeks an award of damages 

and attorney fees under 42 U.S.C. §§ 1983 and 1988.  Plaintiff also challenges the 

Sign Ordinance’s limit of the number of billboard signs within defendant’s 

boundaries under Michigan law and it has asked the Court to exercise 

supplemental jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a).  Defendant has filed an 

answer in response to plaintiff’s first amended complaint where it has denied all of 

plaintiff’s claims and asserted several affirmative defenses.  The Court is advised 

that the parties have reached a settlement to resolve their dispute and, accordingly, 

collectively ask the Court to enter this Consent Judgment to memorialize their 



3

agreement.  The Court has reviewed the terms of the parties’ settlement as 

contained in this Consent Judgment and concludes that its entry is appropriate. 

NOW, THEREFORE, AND HAVING OTHERWISE BEEN FULLY ADVISED 

ON THE PREMISES; 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that defendant will issue within sixty days of 

the Court’s entry of this consent judgment all permits or other approvals necessary 

for plaintiff’s erection of a billboard at the location known as 1847 Watson, 

Ypsilanti Township, Michigan described in plaintiff’s March 3, 2016 Building, 

Plan Review or Sign Application attached as Exhibit A to the Consent Judgment. 

Plaintiff shall be responsible for all permitting fees and complete all reasonably 

necessary applications (e.g., electrical or construction permits), but shall not be 

required to apply for any variances to the zoning board of appeals. The billboard 

may contain up to two digital sign faces (one on each side), but for purposes of 

deferring expenses, plaintiff may install initially one digital face on the billboard 

and maintain the other sign face as a static one. Plaintiff may convert the static sign 

face to a digital one within seven years without further approvals or permits 

necessary from defendant. The digital sign faces will be operated in compliance 

with the Michigan Highway Advertising Act, MCL 252.301, et seq., 

notwithstanding any ordinances of defendant to the contrary and as approved as by 

this Consent Judgment. Any digital sign faces shall not exceed more than one 

message change on each sign face per ten seconds, each change will be completed 



4

in one second or less, and maximum luminescence level is not more than 0.3 foot 

candles over ambient light levels measured at a distance of 150 feet. In the event of 

an equipment failure, plaintiff’s digital sign faces will be configured to default to a 

static display.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, by entry of this Consent Judgment, 

plaintiff shall be deemed to have withdrawn, irrevocably, its application to erect a 

billboard at the location commonly known as 1100 Share Street, Ypsilanti 

Township, Michigan and agrees that it will not resubmit this application. 

IT IS FINALLY ORDERED that this consent judgment reflects the entire 

agreement of compromise of the parties as it relates to the issues raised, or that 

could have been raised, in plaintiff’s first amended complaint or defendant’s 

answer as it relates to the Sign Ordinance or plaintiff’s pending sign applications as 

described in its first amended complaint. In entering into this Consent Judgment, 

plaintiff waives any remaining claims that it may have as the allegations contained 

in its first amended complaint whatsoever or its application to erect the two subject 

billboards. To that end, the parties broadly release each other (and their respective 

shareholders, employees, affiliates, successors, assigns, council, appointed and 

elected officials, commissions, departments, representatives, and insurers as the 

case may be) of all claims that have been raised or could have been raised in this 

lawsuit related in any way to the allegations in plaintiff’s first amended complaint 

and defendant’s answer, and any request for attorney fees, costs, or sanctions. By 



5

executing this Consent Judgment, plaintiff further agrees that it will not further 

contest defendant’s current numerical limit of billboards in its Sign Ordinance. 

Nothing, however, shall prohibit plaintiff from alleging in the future that the Sign 

Ordinance (as it currently exists or is subsequently amended) is unconstitutional in 

response to any enforcement action by defendant.  

This consent judgment resolves the last pending claim and closes the case.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

_________________________________
Hon. U.S. District Court Judge

Dated: _________________

Agreed for entry:

BODMAN PLC

/S/  J. Adam Behrendt (P58607)
201 W. Big Beaver Road, Suite 500
Troy, MI 48084
(248) 743-6000
Attorney for Lamar Advertising of Michigan, Inc. 

PLUNKETT COONEY
/S/ David K. Otis (P31627)
325 E. Grand River Avenue, Suite 250
East Lansing, MI 48823
(517) 324-5612
Attorneys for Defendant Charter Township of Ypsilanti



2:16-cv-11856-AC-RSW   Doc # 17-5   Filed 08/29/16   Pg 2 of 9    Pg ID 301



2:16-cv-11856-AC-RSW   Doc # 17-5   Filed 08/29/16   Pg 3 of 9    Pg ID 302



2:16-cv-11856-AC-RSW   Doc # 17-5   Filed 08/29/16   Pg 4 of 9    Pg ID 303



2:16-cv-11856-AC-RSW   Doc # 17-5   Filed 08/29/16   Pg 5 of 9    Pg ID 304



2:16-cv-11856-AC-RSW   Doc # 17-5   Filed 08/29/16   Pg 6 of 9    Pg ID 305



2:
16

-c
v-

11
85

6-
A

C
-R

S
W

   
D

oc
 #

 1
7-

5 
  F

ile
d 

08
/2

9/
16

   
P

g 
7 

of
 9

   
 P

g 
ID

 3
06



2:16-cv-11856-AC-RSW   Doc # 17-5   Filed 08/29/16   Pg 8 of 9    Pg ID 307



2:16-cv-11856-AC-RSW   Doc # 17-5   Filed 08/29/16   Pg 9 of 9    Pg ID 308



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 

 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement • Police Services 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-4393 

To: Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

From: Benjamin R. Carlisle, AICP, Township Planner 

Re: Request to consider Planning Commission’s recommendation to deny the 
rezoning from B-3 General Business to I-1 Light Industrial for four parcels 
located at the northwest corner of E. Michigan Avenue and Holmes Road; 
parcels K -11-01-100-026, K -11-01-100-027, K -11-01-100-029, and K -11-01-
100-030.

Date:  May 1, 2017 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

An application was submitted to rezone four parcels (3045 Holmes and 3075, 3089 and 3097 E. 
Michigan Avenue) from B-3 General Business to I-1 Light Industrial.  If rezoned, the proposed 
use of the site is for a private truck terminal with a warehousing building, an administrative 
building, a truck wash, an above ground diesel filling station, a truck repair shop, overnight 
truck parking and a rest area building. However if rezoned, the rezoning would allow all 
principal permitted uses and uses permitted subject to special conditions in the I-1 Light 
Industrial zone (see attached). Those uses range from manufacturing to farming to auto body 
repair to metal plating. 

Location of Subject Property 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-4393 •  ytown.org 

 
Staff Analysis 
 
Staff recommended that the Planning Commission recommend denial of the proposed rezoning 
based on the following findings: 
 

1. The proposed rezoning is not consistent with the 2014 Master Plan Update, the Future 
Land Use Map and the Ecorse Road and East Michigan Avenue Corridor Plan. 

2. The proposed rezoning is not compatible with the site's physical, geological, hydrological 
and other environmental features. 

3. All uses permitted in the proposed zoning district, I-1, are not compatible with 
surrounding uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, 
nature of use, aesthetics, and potential influence on property values compared to uses 
permitted under current B-3 zoning. 

4. The township has sufficient land, appropriately zoned and available, to meet the 
demand for the types of uses permitted in I-1 district. 

 
Please see the attached April 18, 2017 staff report for more details.  
 
Planning Commission Consideration 
 
The Planning Commission considered the matter on April 25, 2017.  At that meeting the 
Planning Commission accepted the staff report, listened to a presentation from the applicant, 
held a public hearing, and considered public comment.  After discussion, the Planning 
Commission voted 5-0 to recommend denial of the rezoning.  
 
Staff supports the Planning Commission recommendation to deny the proposed rezoning at the 
northwest corner of E. Michigan Avenue and Holmes Road. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 

 
 
Benjamin R. Carlisle, AICP 
Township Planner 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement 
 

 
Planning & Zoning 

 

Staff Report 
3045 Holmes; 3075, 3089 and 3097 Michigan Avenue 

Public Hearing 
Rezoning 

 
April 18, 2017 

 
Case Location and Summary 

The Office of Community Standards has received an application from Moon Star Leasing, LLC 
requesting the Commission and Township Board consider their rezoning application to amend 
the zoning map from B-3 General Business to I-1 Light Industrial for the parcels located at the 
northwest corner of E. Michigan Avenue and Holmes Road; parcels K -11-01-100-026, K -11-01-
100-027, K -11-01-100-029, and K -11-01-100-030. 

Applicant      

Mr. Said Arbid 
Moon Star Leasing, LLC 
7277 Rawsonville Road 
Belleville, MI  48111 

Cross References 

Zoning Ordinance citations: 

• Article XI, B-3 General Business 
• Article XIV, I-1 General Industrial 
• Article XXVII, Changes and Amendments 

Subject Site Use, Zoning and Master Plan 
The use of the subject site is vacant land. The Master Plan designates this site as MFR-5 
Townhouse Residential and Urban Commercial Corridor. The site is currently zoned B-3, 
General Business, which is in-line with the master plan designation for the frontage on Holmes 
Road and E. Michigan Avenue. 



Moon Star Leasing Rezoning – 3045 Holmes. 
April 18, 2017 
 

   2 | P a g e  
 

 

Adjacent Uses, Zoning and Master Plan 

Direction Zoning Use Master Plan 
North RM-3 Multiple Family Residential Residential MFR—5 

South B-3 General Business 
I-1 Light Industrial Commercial Industrial and Urban 

Commercial Corridor 

East B-3 General Business Vacant, Residential MFR—5 and Urban 
Commercial Corridor 

West B-3 General Business Vacant, Assembly 
Hall MFR—5 



Moon Star Leasing Rezoning – 3045 Holmes. 
April 18, 2017 
 

   3 | P a g e  
 

Natural Features 

The site is wooded and has a large wetland.  The Sines drain runs along the rear of the property. 

Analysis 

The plan has been reviewed by Township staff and consultants in accordance with our usual 
procedures.  We offer the following comments for your consideration. 

Carlisle Wortman Associates – CWA provided a review and recommendation for the rezoning.   

We offer the following suggested motions for the Planning Commission to consider: 

Motion to table: 
 
“I move to table the request to rezone parcels K -11-01-100-026, K -11-01-100-027, K -11-01-
100-029, and K -11-01-100-030 from B-3 General Business to I-1 Light Industrial to consider the 
comments presented during this public hearing.” 
 
Motion to recommend approval: 
 
“I move to recommend approval of the request to rezone parcels K -11-01-100-026, K -11-01-
100-027, K -11-01-100-029 and K -11-01-100-030 from B-3 General Business to I-1 Light 
Industrial, with the following conditions: 
 

1. Combination of the four parcels. 

2. ________________________________________________________________________ 

3. ________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Motion to recommend denial: 
 
“I move to recommend denial of the request to rezone parcels K -11-01-100-026, K -11-01-100-
027, K -11-01-100-029 and K -11-01-100-030 from B-3, General Business to I-1 Light Industrial, 
due to the following reasons:” 
 

1. The proposed rezoning is not consistent with the 2014 Master Plan Update, the Future 
Land Use map and the Ecorse Road and East Michigan Avenue Corridor Plan. 

2. The proposed rezoning is not compatible with the site's physical, geological, hydrological 
and other environmental features. 



Moon Star Leasing Rezoning – 3045 Holmes. 
April 18, 2017 
 

   4 | P a g e  
 

3. All uses permitted in the I-1 district are not more compatible with surrounding uses and 
zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, nature of use, aesthetics, 
and potential influence on property values compared to uses permitted under the 
current zoning of B-3. 

4. The township has sufficient land, appropriately zoned and available, to meet the 
demand for the types of uses permitted in I-1 district 

5. ________________________________________________________________________ 

6. ________________________________________________________________________ 

7. ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 
 
 

Megan A. Masson-Minock, AICP 
Township Planner 
 
 



4/17/2017 Ypsilanti Charter Township, (Washtenaw Co.), MI Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/mi/ypsilanti_charter_township,_(washtenaw_co.)/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APXAZO_ARTXIVLIINDI 1/5

1.

2.

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

h.

i.

j.

Sec. 1401. - Principal uses permitted:

In a light industrial district, no building or land shall be used and no building shall be erected except for

one or more of the following speci%ed uses unless otherwise provided in this ordinance:

Any use charged with the principal function of basic research, design and pilot or experimental

product development when conducted within a completely enclosed building.

Any of the following uses when the manufacturing, compounding or processing is conducted wholly

within a completely enclosed building. That portion of the land used for open storage facilities for

materials or equipment used in the maintaining, compounding, or processing shall be totally

obscured by a wall on those sides abutting any residential, oჼce, or business district, and on any

front yard abutting a public thoroughfare except as otherwise provided in section 2113. In I-1

districts, the extent of such a wall may be determined by the planning commission on the basis of

usage. Such a wall shall not be less than four feet six inches in height and may, depending upon

land usage, be required to be eight feet in height and shall be subject further to the requirements

of article XXI "General Provisions." A chainlink fence, with intense evergreen shrub planting, shall be

considered an obscuring wall. The height shall be determined in the same manner as the wall

height as above set forth.

Warehousing and wholesale establishments and trucking facilities.

The manufacture, compounding, processing, packaging or treatment of such products as, but

not limited to: bakery goods, candy, cosmetics, pharmaceuticals, toiletries, food products,

hardware and cutlery, tool, die, gauge and machine shops.

The manufacture, compounding, assembling or treatment of articles or merchandise from

previously prepared materials: bone, canvas, cellophane, cloth, cork, elastomers, feathers, felt,

%ber, fur, glass, hair, horn, leather, paper, plastics, rubber, precious or semiprecious metals or

stones, sheetmetal, shell, textiles, tobacco, wax, wire, wood and yarns.

The manufacture of pottery and %gurines or other similar ceramic products using only

previously pulverized clay and kilns %red only by electricity or gas.

Manufacture of musical instruments, toys, novelties and metal or rubber stamps, or other

molded rubber products.

Manufacture or assembly of electrical appliances, electronic instruments and devices, radios

and phonographs.

Laboratories, experimental, %lm or testing.

Manufacturing and repair of electric or neon signs, light sheetmetal products, including heating

and ventilating equipment, cornices, eaves and the like.

Central dry cleaning plants or laundries provided that such plants shall not deal directly with

consumer at retail.

https://www.municode.com/library/


4/17/2017 Ypsilanti Charter Township, (Washtenaw Co.), MI Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/mi/ypsilanti_charter_township,_(washtenaw_co.)/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APXAZO_ARTXIVLIINDI 2/5

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

1.

2.

3.

4.

All public utilities, including buildings, necessary structures, storage yards and other related

uses.

Warehouse, storage and transfer and electricity and gas service buildings and yards. Public utility

buildings, telephone exchange buildings, electrical transformer stations and gas regulation stations,

excluding wastewater treatment plants. Water and gas tank holders. Railroad transfer and storage

tracks. Railroad rights-of-way. Freight terminals.

Storage facilities for building materials, sand, gravel, stone, lumber, storage of contractor's

equipment and supplies, provided such is enclosed within a building or within an obscuring wall or

fence on those sides abutting all residential or business districts, and on any yard abutting a public

thoroughfare. In any I-1 district, the extent of such fence or wall may be determined by the

planning commission on the basis of usage. Such fence or wall shall not be less than %ve feet in

height, and may, depending on land usage, be required to be eight feet in height. A chainlink-type

fence, with heavy evergreen shrubbery inside of said fence, shall be considered to be an obscuring

fence.

Municipal uses such as water treatment plants, and reservoirs and all other municipal buildings,

and uses, including outdoor storage, but excluding wastewater treatment plants.

Commercial kennels.

Greenhouses.

Farming.

Trade or industrial schools.

Other uses of a similar and no more objectionable character to the above uses.

Accessory buildings and uses customarily incident to any of the above permitted uses.

(Ord. No. 99-224, § IV, 8-3-99; Ord. No. 2000-245, § I, 3-21-00)

Sec. 1402. - Principal uses permitted subject to special conditions:

The following uses may be permitted upon the granting of a permit for such use by the planning

commission subject to the conditions hereinafter imposed for each use and subject further to such other

reasonable conditions which in the opinion of the planning commission are necessary to provide adequate

protection to the neighborhood and to abutting properties and subject further to a public hearing in accord

with sec. 2309 and further shall be reviewed as provided for in sec. 2119:

Auto engine and body repair, and undercoating shops when completely enclosed.

Lumber and planing mills when completely enclosed and when located in the interior of the district

so that no property line shall form the exterior boundary of the I-1 district.

Metal plating, buჼng and polishing, subject to appropriate measures to control the type of process

to prevent noxious results and/or nuisances.

https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/


4/17/2017 Ypsilanti Charter Township, (Washtenaw Co.), MI Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/mi/ypsilanti_charter_township,_(washtenaw_co.)/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APXAZO_ARTXIVLIINDI 3/5

5.

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

6.

a.

b.

c.

d.

Uses which have an industrial character in terms of either their outdoor storage requirements or

activities such as, but not limited to: lumberyard, building material outlet, upholsterer, cabinet

maker, outdoor sales of automobile garages, agricultural implement sales, trade or industrial

school or industrial clinic or banks, savings and loan associations, or credit unions that serve the

convenient needs of the industrial district.

Airports subject to all state and federal regulations and subject to all township codes and

ordinances and further subject to the following conditions:

An airport shall not be located at the edge of an industrial district which abuts land in the

township planned for residential use.

The use shall provide maximum compatibility to abutting uses and to the future land use plan

for the immediate area.

Runway location and/or extension shall be reviewed relative to potentials for %ight interference

in runway approach zones.

Runway location and/or extension shall be reviewed relative to e%ects on residential areas.

Buildings and structures shall comply with all setback requirements of the I-I district and shall

be set back from all runways in accord with all Federal Aviation Agency regulations.

Traჼc and parking for the proposed use shall be reviewed to ensure the adequacy of facilities.

Parking locations for visitors will be required o% the public right-of-way.

Mini-warehouses and storage buildings for lease to the public including the oჼce and dwelling of a

caretaker and subject to the following conditions:

A front yard building setback of not less than 40 feet shall be provided, all of which, except for

driveway access, shall be landscaped.

Side and rear yard building setbacks of not less than 40 feet shall be provided. Ten feet of

width of such yard shall be planted materials suჼcient to screen such yards from abutting

uses. Side and rear yards may be reduced to 30 feet of width in those instances where a

completely obscuring wall not less than six feet in height is provided along the property line for

the entire length of the side and rear yards in place of the ten-foot wide plant material

screening.

Building shall be spaced not less than 30 feet apart.

Outdoor storage of recreational equipment as an accessory use may be permitted provided

that 85 percent of the site shall be occupied with storage buildings and required yards (setback

areas) with not more than 15 percent utilized for outdoor storage of recreational equipment.

All outdoor storage areas shall be located only in the rear yard of the site and shall be screened

with a completely obscuring masonry wall not less than six feet in height located on the

property line where such storage area abuts properties not a part of a mini-warehouse facility.



4/17/2017 Ypsilanti Charter Township, (Washtenaw Co.), MI Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/mi/ypsilanti_charter_township,_(washtenaw_co.)/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APXAZO_ARTXIVLIINDI 4/5

e.

7.

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

[8.]

a.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Such outdoor storage area shall not be visible from a public street. All recreational equipment

shall be in operable condition and appropriately licensed as may be required for such

equipment.

Adequate maneuvering space for %re safety vehicles shall be provided.

Indoor recreational facility, including bowling alley, archery range, tennis/racquet ball court, skating

rink, athletic %eld, swimming pool, health and %tness center, and other similar indoor recreational

facility, subject to the following:

All recreational activities shall be conducted within an enclosed building.

Structures shall be set back 100 feet from any abutting residential district, except the planning

commission may reduce the setback to 50 feet where the adjacent residentially zoned property

is a public park or recreation area.

The o%-street parking, passenger loading/unloading and general size layout and its relationship

to the surrounding land uses and roads shall be reviewed by the planning commission, who

may impose reasonable restrictions or requirements to insure contiguous residential areas will

be adequately protected.

A parking study shall be prepared to determine the required number of parking spaces. The

study shall indicate to the maximum capacity of the facility, the maximum number of

participants that can be involved in the events, with an overlap between two consecutive

events, and the maximum number of spectators. Such study shall utilize parking generation

estimates based upon the Institute of Transportation Engineers Parking Generation Manual

and also a comparison of three similar facilities in the area.

The applicant shall provide documentation showing that the size of the site is adequate, using

national facility standards.

Operational hours may be restricted by the planning commission in consideration of adjacent

land uses and zoning. All outdoor activities, including %oodlighting, public address systems, etc.

must cease at 11:00 p.m.

All buildings shall be permanent structures. In%ated domes are not permitted.

Medical marihuana dispensaries and medical marihuana nurseries subject to the conditions and

standards:

No medical marihuana dispensary or medical marihuana nursery shall be located within 1,000

feet of any other medical marihuana dispensary or medical marihuana nursery nor within

1,000 feet of any of the following uses:

Any church, synagogue, mosque or any house of worship.

Any school, public or private, having a curriculum including kindergarten or any one or

more of the grades one through 12.

Any child care organization.

Any public library.



4/17/2017 Ypsilanti Charter Township, (Washtenaw Co.), MI Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/mi/ypsilanti_charter_township,_(washtenaw_co.)/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APXAZO_ARTXIVLIINDI 5/5

(5)

(6)

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

(1)

(2)

h.

i.

9.

Any residentially zoned district or residential use.

Any community college, university or professional school.

All activity related to a medical marihuana dispensary or medical marihuana nursery including,

but not limited to, growing shall be done indoors in a locked structure.

Medical marihuana dispensary and medical marihuana nurseries shall be operated in

compliance with the provisions of the Michigan Department of Community Health and the

Medical Marihuana Act MCL 333.26421 et seq.

Smoking, inhalation, or consumption of medical marihuana shall not be allowed on the site of

the medical marihuana dispensary or medical marihuana nursery.

No qualifying patients under the age of 18 shall be permitted in the medical marihuana

dispensary or medical marihuana nursery at any time except in the presence of qualifying

patient's parent or legal guardian or their primary caregiver.

No retail sales of drug paraphernalia are permitted at the medical marihuana dispensary or

medical marihuana nursery, except to qualifying patients or their primary caregivers.

Each medical marihuana dispensary or medical marihuana nursery shall display in a manner

legible and visible to its clientele:

Notice that qualifying patients under the age of 18 are not allowed in the medical

marihuana dispensary or medical marihuana nursery except in the presence of his/her

parent or legal guardian;

No consumption, inhalation or consumption of medical marihuana shall occur within the

vicinity of the medical marihuana dispensary or medical marihuana nursery.

Only operators and their employees, qualifying patients, parents or guardians of qualifying

patients under 18 years of age, and their primary caregiver may be permitted to enter a

medical marihuana dispensary or medical marihuana nursery for the purpose of obtaining

medical marihuana or other goods or products associated with its use.

Medical marihuana nurseries can grow a maximum of 72 marihuana plants.

Other uses of a similar character to the above uses.

(Ord. No. 95-140, 12-5-95; Ord. No. 98-181, 2-17-98; Ord. No. 99-206, 3-16-99; Ord. No. 2010-404, § III, 5-18-

10)



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 

 

 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Mike Radzik, OCS Director 
 

Re: Request to authorize and sign two contracts with the Washtenaw County 
Sheriff’s Office to facilitate collaborative sharing of School Resource Officers 
for the summer months with the Lincoln Consolidated Schools and the Ypsilanti 
Community Schools; funding is budgeted in Law Enforcement Fund account 
266-301.000-831.008 for $52,432. 

 

Copy: McLain & Winters; Lt. Mike Marocco 
 

Date:  May 5, 2017 
 
 
For the past eight years, Ypsilanti Township has collaborated with local school districts that 
employ a school resource officer through the Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Office.  The school 
resource officers are assigned to the school districts during the academic school year, while the 
Township picks them up during the summer months.  The additional deputies are assigned 
within the existing patrol force structure in order to facilitate proactive neighborhood 
enforcement, which historically ramps up during the summer. 
 
This year, we have budgeted to pick up the school resource officer from the Lincoln 
Consolidated School district for the period of June 26 through August 27 at a cost of $26,875, 
and from the Ypsilanti Community School district for the period of June 29 through August 27 at 
a cost of $25,557.  The costs are based on the 2017 Police Service Unit annual cost of $158,276 
prorated for the length of each contract, which is approximately nine weeks. 
 
Please contact me with questions or concerns, and thank you for your consideration. 
 
Regards, 
 

Michael J. Radzik 

Director, Office of Community Standards 











Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
     STAN ELDRIDGE 

    HEATHER ROE 

MONICA ROSS-WILLIAMS 

     JIMMIE WILSON, JR.

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Ypsilanti Twp. Board 

FROM: Michael Saranen, Hydro Operations 

DATE: 

RE: 

May 4, 2017 

Request Approval and Signing of an Access Agreement 
between Willow Run Business Center II, LLC c/o Insite 
Real Estate LLC, Ypsilanti Township and the Washtenaw 
County Water Resource Commission for construction 
activities related the Tyler Pond Drawdown. 

I request the Board to Approve and allow the Twp. Supervisor and Clerk 
to sign an access agreement between Willow Run Business Center II, 
LLC c/o Insite Real Estate LLC, Ypsilanti Township and the Washtenaw 
County Water Resource Commission to allow the Twp. and its’ 
representatives access for construction activities related to Tyler Dam 
Drawdown Project pending the Attorney review of the agreement 

The access agreement expires in 5 years or when the project permits are 
completed. 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Hydro Station  

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 544.3690 
Fax:  (734) 544.3626 

www.ytown.org 

http://www.ytown.org/


ACCESS AGREEMENT – WILLOW RUN BUSINESS CENTER 

(rev. May 2, 2017) 
 

This Access Agreement ("Agreement") is made between Charter Township of Ypsilanti, 720 S. 
Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, Ml 48197 ("Township"); Willow Run Business Center II, L.L.C. 
(“Grantor”); and Washtenaw County Water Resources Commission (“WCWRC”). Grantor, 
Township and  WCW R C may be referred to in this Agreement individually as "Party" and 
collectively as "Parties." 

 
Grantor is the owner of the property located along the south bank of Tyler Pond, south of 
Airport Road ("Property"), a description of which is attached as Exhibit 1. The Property is 
adjacent to property owned by the Township. Grantor is willing  to  grant  access to  the Property  
to  the Township, WCWRC and their respect ive successors, assigns, employees, consultants, 
contractors, subcontractors, and  other  agents  (collectively, "Representatives") subject to the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
1. Easement:  Grantor grants to the Township, WCWRC and their Representatives a non-

exclusive easement to enter upon the Property solely to perform Permitted Activities, 
(as defined below).  Nothing in this Agreement shall limit Grantor’s rights or its tenant’s 
rights to access (or provide others access) onto the Property. 

 
2. Permitted Activities: The Township, WCWRC and their Representatives may access 

the Property to perform the scope of work as set forth in Exhibit 2 (project drawings).  
Modifications to the scope or work, if any, will be provided to Grantor for review and 
approval prior to implementation. Permitted Activities shall include: utility location, 
grading, excavation and construction related to permanent draw down of Tyler Pond, 
and a man-made impoundment of Willow Creek. Grantor agrees that the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality ("MDEQ") and their agents, contractors and 
employees may access the Property for the purpose of overseeing or supervising 
permitted Activities; subject to the provisions contained herein. All Permitted Activities and 
access to the Property is limited to the area located on the easterly side of the fence 
adjacent to Tyler Pond. 

 
3. Term: This Agreement shaII be effective on the date on which it is signed below by the latter 

of the three Parties ("the Effective Date"), and shall expire upon completion of the Permitted 
Activities or the passage of five (5) years, whichever is sooner, except for provisions expressly 
designated in this Agreement as surviving the expiration date. 

 
4. Operations: In completing the Permitted Activities: 

 

a. The Township and WCWRC shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to 
avoid: (i) damage to the Property (and persons and personal property thereon); 
(ii) interference w it h Grantor's or any other party's operations at the Property; 
and (iii) to the fullest extent possible, access to the Property by any unauthorized 
persons. 

b. Grantor shall us all commercially reasonable efforts to avoid interference with 
the Township’s and WCWRC’s operations at the Property. 

c. The Township and WCWRC shall: (i) comply with all applicable laws, reasonable 
written procedures established in advance by Grantor and the requirements of any 
insurance carriers insuring the Property or any interests therein that are 
communicated to the Township and WCWRC in writing in advance, including 
providing certificates of insurance reasonably acceptable to Grantor; and (ii) 
obtain all permits required for the Permitted Activities and promptly deliver copies 
to Grantor at Grantor's request. 

d. The Township and WCWRC  shall repair any damage to the Property resulting from 
the Permitted Activities within thirty (30) days before the expiration of this 
Agreement, and shall leave the Property in substantially the same condition it was 
on the date of the execution of this Agreement. 



 
 
 
5. Indemnification: 

 

a. The Township and WCWRC, jointly and severally, shall release, indemnify, defend, 
and hold Grantor harmless from and against claims, losses, damage , injuries, 
liabilities, fines and penalties, (collectively, "Claims") arising from the negligence or 
willful misconduct in the performance of the Permitted Activities conducted by the 
Township, WCWRC or its Representatives . 

b. Grantor shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Township, WCWRC, and its 
Representatives harmless from and against all Claims arising out of: (i) the breach 
by Grantor of its obligations under this Agreement, or (ii) the negligence or willful 
misconduct of Grantor or its agents, contractors or employees. 

c. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, in no event 
shall an indemnifying party be liable to the other for : (i) consequential damages or 
lost income, value or profits or punitive or treble damages of any type or manner, 
even if foreseeable; and (ii) any Claim arising from the act or omission of the 
indemnified part. 

 

6. Notice: 

a. The Township, WCWRC or its Representatives will notify Grantor, a minimum of forty-
eight (48) hours before accessing the Property to complete Permitted Activities. In 
the event of any emergency or where otherwise required by law, the Township 
and WCWRC shall make reasonable efforts to notify Grantor before accessing the 
Property. Notices regarding accessing the Property to complete Permitted Activities, 
or in the event of an emergency or where otherwise required by law, shall be made 
by electronic mail or telephone. 

b. All other notices required to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be sent by 
certified or registered mail, or by an overnight courier (Federal Express or U.P.S.), 
along with an electronic mail copy to the following addresses: 

 
To WCWRC: 
 
Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner 
705 N. Zeeb Road 
Ann Arbor, MI 48107-8645 
<Attn:_______________> 
<NEED EMAIL ADDRESS> 
 
 
To the Township: 
 
Clerk’s Office 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Township Civic Center 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti MI, 48197 
<Attn:_______________> 
<NEED EMAIL ADDRESS> 
 
And 

 
To Grantor: 
Willow Run Business Center II, L.L.C. 
c/o InSite Real Estate, L.L.C. 
1400 16th St. STE 300 
Oak Brook, IL   60523 
Attn:  Aaron Schlott- Industrial Property Manager 
Email:  aschlott@insiterealestate.com 

mailto:aschlott@insiterealestate.com


 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Willow Run Business Center II, L.L.C. 
c/o InSite Real Estate, L.L.C. 
1400 16th St. STE 300 
Oak Brook, IL   60523 
Attn:  Robin Rash-Chief Legal Officer 
Email:  rrash@insiterealestate.com 

 

 

7. Governing Law:  Any legal suit, action or proceeding arising out of or based upon this 
Agreement may be instituted in courts of the State of Michigan. 

 
8. Entire Agreement: The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be modified other than 

by a written agreement signed by both parties, all of which together with this Agreement and 
Exhibits constitute a fully executed agreement. 

 
9. Severability:  If any term of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable in any jurisdiction, then 

such term shall be enforced to the maximum extent permitted by law, rather than voided, and the 
remaining terms this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
10. Assignability: Neither this Agreement, nor any rights hereunder, may be assigned, whether 

voluntarily or by operation of law, except in strict compliance with the provisions hereof. 
 
11. Cost of Enforcement: In the event any declaratory or other legal or equitable action 

instituted between Grantor, Township a n d  WCWRC in connection with this Agreement , 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to receive from the losing party all of its costs and 

expenses, including   court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. 
 
12. Survival: The terms and conditions provided herein survive the expiration of this Agreement. 

 

13. Record Drawings: The Township and W CW RC shall provide to Grantor a copy 

of all drawings of the project. 
 

The Parties or their duly authorized representatives hereby represent and warrant that each 
has the requisite authority to execute this Agreement and has done so on the date specified 
below. 

 

 
GRANTOR: 
 
WILLOW RUN BUSINESS CENTER II, L.L.C. 
 
By:      
 
Title:      
 
Date:      

 

TOWNSHIP: 
 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
 
By:      
 
Title:      

 
Date:      

  
WCWRC: 
 
WASHTENAW COUNTY WATER RESOURCES 
COMMISSION 
 
 
By:       

  
Title:       
 
Date:       

mailto:rrash@insiterealestate.com


 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 

FROM: 

DATE:  

RE: 

Jeff Allen, Director – Residential Services Department 

Cinco de Mayo, 2017 

Request Approval of Professional Services Contract with Hoppe 
Design for Architectural Services to Improve Our Compliance with 
ADA Guidelines at the Civic Center in the amount of $5,000, 

budgeted in line item # 101.956.000.801.000

I am requesting awarding of an architectural contract with Hoppe Design from 

Belleville, MI in the amount not to exceed $5,000. This authorizes Hoppe to 

evaluate the current situations, including our input, and draw up construction bid  

documents for improving our compliance with ADA guidelines.  This will be 
primarily for counters and the Board Room in the Civic Center.

Over the past few weeks, I met with 4 architectural firms to go over the project 

here in the Civic Center and received 2 proposals in return.   

Hoppe Design’s proposal was $5,000 to do the complete project, preparing  

everything for bidding.  The other proposal from Cornerstone was for $2,400 but  

their proposal was incomplete, as they did not include “services during bidding 

& construction contract administration”.  These would be billed at an hourly rate 

of  up to $120 / hour.  

I have attached the proposal from Hoppe Design for your review. 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Residential Services Division 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484.0073 
Fax:  (734)544.3501 

www.ytown.org 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 
HEATHER ROE 

MONICA ROSS-WILLIAMS 
JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

http://www.ytown.org/


  HOPPE 
  D  e  s  i  g  n 
   
 

47032 McBride, Belleville, MI  48111  734-218-2492 

Ma7 5, 2017 
 
 
Mr. Jeff Allen 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197-7007 
 
Re: Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 Civic Center Interior Improvements 
 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township, MI  48197 
  
Dear Mr. Allen: 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal for Professional Design services for the above named 
project.  Our understanding of the project is as follows. 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
Ypsilanti Township, intends to make improvements at their Civic Center at the above address.  The 
improvements include the following.  At the customer counter on the first floor, a portion is to be removed 
and replaced with a barrier free accessible counter and accompanying gate.  At the customer counter on the 
second floor, a portion is to be removed and replaced with a barrier free accessible counter. At the board 
room, barrier free seating is to be installed along the last row along with revisions to the door hardware to 
allow access into the boardroom.         

SCOPE OF BASIC SERVICES:  
HOPPE Design, LLC proposes to provide Professional Design Services as follows:  

Measure Existing Building: HOPPE Design, LLC will measure the relevant portions of the existing building and 
will prepare a digital base floor plan for each area. 

Schematic Floor Plans and Elevations: HOPPE Design, LLC will prepare preliminary partial floor plans to be used 
to explain the general concept of the layouts.  HOPPE Design LLC will submit the design to the Township 
for a preliminary review.  

Architectural Working Drawings: HOPPE Design, LLC will prepare architectural working drawings to be used 
for permitting, bidding and construction.  These documents will include partial floor plans, interior 
elevations, millwork sections, door hardware schedule if required, and details.  A technical product 
specification spreadsheet will be included.  

Specifications: HOPPE Design, LLC will provide a written project manual that will include front end material as 
provided by Ypsilanti Township as well as limited technical specifications.   
 
Bidding:  HOPPE Design, LLC will assist Ypsilanti Township in reviewing the documents with the bidders, 
issue addenda to the construction documents and assist Ypsilanti Township in negotiating a contract for 
construction. 
 
Contract Administration: HOPPE Design, LLC will provide limited contract administration services to include 
preparation of a punchlist. 
 
  



  HOPPE 
  D  e  s  i  g  n 
   
 

47032 McBride, Belleville, MI  48111  734-218-2492 

Deliverables 
HOPPE Design, LLC will provide a pdf version of the drawings.  All printed copies of drawings or 
specifications will be provided by the Township. 
 
ASSUMPTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
This agreement is based upon the following assumptions and description of responsibilities.  

The remainder of Construction Contract Administration services and Approval Assistance are not 
included in this agreement and will be provided only after receipt of a signed amendment to this 
agreement. 

Ypsilanti Township is responsible for all permitting fees. 

If changes are required to the fire suppression system, such design will be by others under a separate 
agreement. 

Ypsilanti Township will be responsible for preparation, submittal, representation and revisions necessary 
to acquire permitting from the township municipal government. 

Those services shown on the attached list of available services that are not explicitly described under the 
scope of basic services above are excluded and will not be provided under this agreement without a signed 
amendment to the contract. 

 
FEE: 
The architect shall invoice monthly for the portion of work completed to date plus reimbursable expenses.             
Compensation for Services rendered shall be based on the lump sum of: 
Five thousand dollars ($5,000). 

 
SCHEDULE: 
The architect is prepared to begin work on the project within ten working days of receipt of a signed 
agreement. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
The terms and conditions of this proposal shall be in accordance with the attached Standard Terms and 
Conditions of the Agreement.  This unexecuted proposal shall remain in effect for thirty days, after which 
time HOPPE Design, LLC reserves the right to review and modify any and all portions of this proposal.   
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.  We look forward to working with you on this 

project.  Your return of a signed copy of this proposal will serve as authorization to proceed.  If you have any 

questions or need additional information, please contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

Wayde C. Hoppe, R.A. 
President 
NCARB, LEED AP 
 
       
Client 
 
       
Date  
  



  HOPPE 
  D  e  s  i  g  n 
   
 

47032 McBride, Belleville, MI  48111  734-218-2492 

DESCRIPTION OF AVAILABLE SERVICES       
The following is a list of Services available from the office of HOPPE Design, LLC.  Only those Services 
noted in the Scope of Basic Services of this Agreement will be provided under this Agreement.  The Owner 
may elect to add services from the list below to the Scope of Basic Services by request for Amendment.  Such 
services will be provided upon signature and receipt of such amendment and will be provided for at the 
above stated hourly rate. 
  
PRELIMINARY DESIGN 
; Master Planning 
; Schematic Floor Plans and Elevations 
; Elevation Rendering, Black and White 
; Perspective Rendering, Black and White 
; Perspective Rendering, Color 
; Model Built to Scale 
; Assist in Selection of Structural System 
; Provide Structural Criteria for Geotechnical Consultant 
; Initial Concept and Budget Review 
; Existing Building Survey and Measurements 
; Program Development 
  
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 
; Architectural Working Drawings 
; Structural Working Drawings 
; Civil Working Drawings 
; Mechanical Working Drawings 
; Electrical Working Drawings 
; Specifications and General Conditions 
; Statement of Probable Construction Costs 
; Building Engineering including design and selection of 

HVAC, Plumbing and Electrical Equipment 
; Site Engineering including Civil engineering, Landscape 

Design, and Grading Plans. 
; Utilities: design of utilities to the site including telephone, 

natural gas, power, cable and water and assisting the 
Owner in submitting for approval from the utility 
providers. 

; Product and Manufacturer Selection and Specification: 
Assisting the Owner in selecting and specifying the 
Finish, Style and Manufacturers of interior finish 
materials, exterior materials, plumbing fixtures and 
disposals, shower enclosures and doors, cabinetry, 
counters and millwork, tile, hardwood flooring, trim, 
pavers, shingles, siding, banisters, shelving, mantels and 
fireplace surrounds and inserts, doors and hardware, 
windows, exhaust hoods, exhaust fans, light fixtures, and 
appliances.  

  
BIDDING AND NEGOTIATING 
; Bidders List: assisting the Owner in assembling a list of 

qualified bidders. 
; Distribution of bidding documents 
; Consultation with Bidders 
; Pre-Bid Conference 
; Assist in Evaluating Bids 
; Execute Final Agreement  
  
 

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
; Periodic site visits to observe progress of the project 
; Consultation with the Owner or Contractor for review of 

site and building related issues. 
; Shop Drawings and Submittal Review. 
; Testing and Inspection Coordination 
; Final Acceptance 
; Review of Applications for Payment, Lien Waivers, and 

Sworn Statements. 
; Issuance of Change Orders, Field Orders, and Certificate 

of Substantial Completion. 
  
APPROVAL ASSISTANCE 
Assisting the Owner, by submissions and representation only, 
in filing for application for approval from authorities having 
jurisdiction over the project.  Such authorities may include 
the following: 
; Planning Commission 
; Zoning Board of Approval: Special Use Permit 
; Zoning Board of Approval: Variance 
; City Council 
; County Soil Erosion Control 
; County Drainage Commission 
; Michigan Department of Environmental Quality 
; YCUA 
; Detroit Water and Sewer 
; County Road Commission 
; County Well Permit 
; Sewage Permit 
; Septic System Inspection 
; Sign Permit 
; County Health Department 
; State Department of Public Health 
; Army Corps of Engineers: flood plain determination 
; EPA: soil erosion permit 
; Barrier Free Design Rule Exception  
  
EXTENDED SERVICES 
Assist the Owner in procuring services from Consultants 
related to special concerns including the following: 
; Contamination Investigation 
; Contaminant Abatement 
; Subsurface Investigation 
; Land Surveying 
; Interior Design 
; Signage Design: Interior and Exterior 
; Food Service Equipment Design 
; Detailed Cost Estimating 
; Graphic Design 
; Furniture and Fixture Design and Layout  

  

  
  



  HOPPE 
  D  e  s  i  g  n 
   
 

47032 McBride, Belleville, MI  48111  734-218-2492 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT    
  
ACCESS TO SITE 
Unless otherwise stated, the Architect will have access to the site for activities necessary for the performance of the services.  The Architect will take 
precautions to minimize damage due to these activities, but has not included in the fee the cost of restoration of any resulting damage. 
 
ALLOCATION OF RISK 
In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the project to both the Owner and the Architect, the risks have been allocated such that the Owner 
agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the liability of the Architect and his subconsultants to the Owner and to all construction 
contractors and subcontractors on the project for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature whatsoever or claims expenses for any cause 
or causes, including attorneys’ fees and costs and expert witness fees and costs, so that the total aggregate liability of the Architect and his 
subconsultants to all those named shall not exceed the Architect’s total fee for services rendered on the project.  It is intended that this limitation apply 
to any and all liability or cause of action, however alleged or arising, unless otherwise prohibited by law. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) provides that it is a violation of the ADA to design and construct a facility that does not meet the 
accessibility and usability requirements of the ADA, except where it can be demonstrated that it is structurally impractical to meet such requirements.  
The Owner acknowledges that the requirements of the ADA may be subject to various and possibly contradictory interpretations and that the 
standards for design practice as it relates to disabled legislation are still evolving.  Therefore, the Architect shall use his reasonable professional efforts 
to interpret applicable ADA requirements and other federal, state and local laws, and to conform the construction documents to the requirements of 
such laws.  However, the Architect cannot and does not warrant or guarantee the Owner’s project will comply with interpretations of ADA 
requirements. 
 
ASSIGNMENT 
Neither party to this Agreement shall transfer, sublet, or assign any rights under or interest in this Agreement (including but not limited to monies that 
are due or monies that may be due) without the prior written consent of the other party.  Subcontracting to subconsultants normally contemplated by 
the Consultant shall not be considered an assignment for purposes of this Agreement. 
 
ATTORNEYS' FEES                                                                                                                                                 
In the event of any litigation arising from or related to this Agreement or the services provided under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover from the non- prevailing party all reasonable costs incurred, including staff time, court costs, attorneys' fees and all other related 
expenses in such litigation.  In the event of a non-adjudicative settlement of litigation between the parties or a resolution of a dispute by arbitration, the 
term "prevailing party" shall be determined by that process. 
 
CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION                                                                                                                          
If described in this agreement as a part of basic services, the Architect shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as 
otherwise agreed to in writing by the Owner and the Architect, in order to observe the progress and quality of the Work completed by the Contractor. 
Such visits and observation are not intended to be an exhaustive check or a detailed inspection of the Contractor's work but rather are to allow the 
Architect, as an experienced professional, to become generally familiar with the Work in progress and to determine, in general, if the Work is 
proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.                                                                                                                                                       
Based on this general observation, the Consultant shall keep the Owner informed about the progress of the Work and shall endeavor to guard the 
Owner against deficiencies in the Work.  If the Owner desires more extensive project observation or fulltime project representation, the Owner shall 
request that such services be provided by the Architect as Additional Services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.                                                                                                                                    
The Architect shall not supervise, direct or have control over the Contractor's work nor have any responsibility for the construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures selected by the Contractor nor for the Contractor's safety precautions or programs in connection with the Work. 
These rights and responsibilities are solely those of the Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents.                                                                                                                                      
The Consultant shall not be responsible for any acts or omissions of the Contractor, subcontractor, any entity performing any portions of the Work, or 
any agents or employees of any of them. The Consultant does not guarantee the performance of the Contractor and shall not be responsible for the 
Contractor's failure to perform its Work in accordance with the Contract Documents or any applicable laws, codes, rules or regulations. 
 
CONTINGENCY                                                                                                                                                     
The Owner and the Architect agree that certain increased costs and changes may be required because of possible omissions, ambiguities or 
inconsistencies in the drawings and specifications prepared by the Architect and, therefore, that the final construction cost of the Project may exceed 
the estimated construction cost. The Owner agrees to set aside a reserve in the amount of ten percent of the Project construction costs as a 
contingency to be used, as required, to pay for any such increased costs and changes. The Owner further agrees to make no claim by way of direct or 
third-party action against the Architect or its subconsultants with respect to any increased costs within the contingency because of such changes or 
because of any claims made by the Contractor relating to such changes. 
 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise during the design or construction of the project or following the completion of the project, the Owner 
and the Architect agree that all disputes between them arising out of or related to this agreement shall be submitted to non-binding mediation unless 
the parties mutually agree otherwise.  Arbitration shall be a secondary method of dispute resolution.  The Owner and the Architect further agree to 
include a similar provision in all agreements with independent contractors and consultants retained for the project and to require all independent 
contractors and consultants also to include a similar mediation provision in all agreements with subcontractors, subconsultants, suppliers or fabricators 
so retained, thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution between the parties to those agreements. 
 
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
Both parties acknowledge that the Architect’s scope of services does not include any services related to hazardous or toxic materials.  In the event the 
Architect or any other party encounters hazardous or toxic materials at the jobsite, or should it become known in any way that such materials may be 



  HOPPE 
  D  e  s  i  g  n 
   
 

47032 McBride, Belleville, MI  48111  734-218-2492 

present to the jobsite, or any adjacent areas that may affect the performance of the Architect’s services, the Architect may at his or her option and 
without liability for consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of services on the project until the Owner retains appropriate specialist 
consultants or contractors to identify, abate and/or remove the hazardous or toxic materials and warrant that the jobsite is in full compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION 
The Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Architect, his or her officers, directors, employees, agents and sub-consultants from and against all 
damage, liability and cost, including all attorney’s fees and defense costs, arising out of or in any way connected with the performance by any of the 
parties above named with respect to the services under this agreement, excepting those damages, liabilities or costs attributable to the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the Architect.  The Owner agrees to include this same indemnification in any agreement made with contractors, 
subcontractors, suppliers, or consultants who provide services or products with respect to this project, indemnifying the Architect as described above. 
 
INVOICES  
HOPPE Design, LLC will invoice monthly for the portion of the work completed to that date and payment is due upon receipt of invoice.  Payment 
due and unpaid shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate of 1-1/2 percent per month or the maximum allowable by law, whichever is 
lower.  THE CLIENT agrees to pay HOPPE Design within thirty days of receipt of payment from the building owner. 
 
OBSOLESCENCE 
Although the Architect endeavors to specify products that are readily available, the Architect does not warrant that specified products will not be 
obsolete or in any other manner unavailable or inapplicable for the project, or that such products may not increase in cost for any reason.  The Owner 
acknowledges that the Architect is not liable for costs associated with the unavailability of specified products, delays to the project due to the 
unavailability of specified products, or additional costs to the project due to replacement of unavailable products. 
 
OPINIONS OF PROBABLE COST OF CONSTRUCTION                                                                                                             
 In providing opinions of probable cost of construction, the Owner understands that the Architect has no control over the cost or availability of labor, 
equipment or materials, or over market conditions or the Contractor's method of pricing, and that the Architect's opinions of probable construction 
costs are made on the basis of the Architect's professional judgment and experience. The Architect makes no warranty, express or implied, that the 
bids or the negotiated cost of the Work will not vary from the Architect's opinion of probable construction cost. 
 
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
All documents produced by the Architect under this agreement and the copyright for those same documents shall remain the property of the Architect 
and may not be used by the Owner for any endeavor without written consent of the Architect.  Should the Architect consent to give permission for 
the Owner to use the copyrighted documents, the Owner shall direct any consultants employed by the Owner to remove all reference to the Architect 
from the drawings of record, including statements and title block information that reference the Architect, prior to use of the documents for any 
reason.  Furthermore, the Owner agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Architect, his officers, directors, employees, and consultants against any 
damages, liabilities or costs including attorney’s fees and defense costs, arising from or allegedly arising from or in any way connected with the 
unauthorized re-use or modification of the construction documents by the Owner or any person or entity that acquires or obtains the construction 
documents from or through the Owner without the written authorization of the Architect. 
 
PERMITS AND APPROVALS 
The consultant shall assist the Owner in connection with the Owner’s responsibility for applying for those permits and approvals normally required by 
law for projects similar to the one for which the Architect’s services are being engaged, if those services are listed in the Scope of Basic Services of this 
agreement.  If not specifically listed in the Scope of Basic Services, then the Architect shall be compensated for this service as an Additional Service.  
This assistance shall consist of completing and submitting forms and providing information to the appropriate regulatory agencies having jurisdiction 
over the documents, and other services included in the Scope of Basic Services of this agreement.  The Architect cannot and does not warrant or 
guarantee the Owner’s project will comply with requirements of federal, state and local laws, rules, codes, ordinances, and regulations.    
 
PRIOR CONTRACTS AND CONDITIONS 
The Owner agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Architect from all damages and liability arising out of or in any way connected with the 
performance of any previous architect or engineer related to the project, existing buildings or site, including soils analysis and foundation design.  The 
Owner also agrees to terminate all previous agreements with design professionals that have provided services related to this project prior to entering 
into this agreement.  The Architect is not required to inspect, review, alter or evaluate in any way the services provided by a previous design 
professional. 
 
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 
Reimbursable expenses are in addition to compensation for services and include expenses incurred in the interest of the project and are as follows: 
expense of reproductions, postage and handling of drawings, specifications and other documents; mileage, and photographic expenses required of the 
Architect; fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the project; renderings, models and mock-ups requested by the 
Owner; additional insurance coverage or limits, including professional liability insurance, requested by the Owner in excess of that normally carried by 
the Architect and the Architect’s consultants; Mechanical, Electrical, Structural and Civil consultants if required.  Reimbursable expenses will be billed 
at 1.15 (one point one five) times the amount billed the Architect.   
 
RIGHT TO RETAIN SUBCONSULTANTS                                                                                                                              
The Architect may engage the services of any subconsultants when, in the Architect's sole opinion, it is appropriate to do so. Such subconsultants may 
include any specialized consulting services deemed necessary by the Architect to carry out the scope of the Architect's services. 
 
SEVERABILITY 
Any term or provision of this Agreement found to be invalid under any applicable statue or rule of law shall be deemed omitted and the remainder of 
this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 



  HOPPE 
  D  e  s  i  g  n 
   
 

47032 McBride, Belleville, MI  48111  734-218-2492 

STANDARD OF CARE                                                                                                                                  
In providing services under this Agreement, the Architect will endeavor to perform in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances. 
 
STATUTES OF REPOSE AND LIMITATION                                                                                                   
All legal causes of action between the parties to this Agreement shall accrue and any applicable statutes of repose or limitation shall begin to run not 
later than the date of Substantial Completion. If the act or failure to act complained of occurs after the date of Substantial Completion, then the date 
of final completion shall be used, but in no event shall any statute of repose or limitation begin to run any later than the date the Architect's services 
are completed or terminated. 
 
SURVIVAL 
All limitations of liability, indemnifications, warranties, and representations contained in this Agreement shall survive the completion or termination of 
this Agreement and shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
TERMINATION OF SERVICES 
This agreement may be terminated by the Owner or the Architect for any reason.  In the event of termination, the Owner shall pay the Architect for all 
services rendered to the date of termination plus all reimbursable expenses.  
 
THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES                                                                                                                               
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the Owner 
or the Architect. The Architect's services under this Agreement are being performed solely for the Owner's benefit, and no other party or entity shall 
have any claim against the Architect because of this Agreement or the performance or nonperformance of services hereunder. The Owner agrees to 
require a similar provision in all contracts with contractors, subcontractors, subconsultants, vendors and other entities involved in this Project to carry 
out the intent of this provision. 
 
UNAUTHORIZED CHANGES                                                                                                                                   
In the event the Owner, the Owner's contractors or subcontractors, or anyone for whom the Owner is legally liable makes or permits to be made any 
changes to any reports, plans, specifications or other construction documents prepared by the Architect without obtaining the Consultant's prior 
written consent, the Owner shall assume full responsibility for the results of such changes. Therefore the Owner agrees to waive any claim against the 
Architect and to release the Architect from any liability arising directly or indirectly from such changes.  In addition, the Owner agrees, to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the Architect from any damages, liabilities or costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees and 
costs of defense, arising from such changes.  In addition, the Owner agrees to include in any contracts for construction appropriate language that 
prohibits the Contractor or any subcontractors of any tier from making any changes or modifications to the Architect's construction documents 
without the prior written approval of the Architect and that further requires the Contractor to indemnify both the Architect and the Owner from any 
liability or cost arising from such changes made without such proper authorization. 
 
VERIFICATION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS 
In as much as the remodeling and/or rehabilitation of an existing structure requires that certain assumptions be made regarding existing conditions and 
because some of these assumptions may not be verifiable without expending additional sums of money or destroying otherwise adequate or serviceable 
portions of the structure, the Owner agrees to bear all costs, losses and expenses, including the cost of the Architect’s additional services, arising from 
the discovery of concealed or unknown conditions in an existing structure. 

 
 



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 

FROM: Jeff Allen, Director – Residential Services Department 

DATE:  May 8, 2017 

RE: Approval of the agreement between the Township and MSDS-Online 

and authorizing the signing of the agreement by the Supervisor & 

Clerk 

I recently participated in a webinar with MSDS-Online in the interest of 

improving our record keeping of our SDS (safety data sheets).  We currently keep 

many SDS books,  cataloged with emergency information sheets for all the 

chemicals that we use in  all of our locations.  This can easily become a tedious 

task to keep up with the ever changing chemical composition of all our products.  

MSDS-Online would allow us to utilize their database of thousands of chemicals 

and we can categorize these per location in addition to keeping our master copy  

here in the Human Resource office at the Civic Center. 

The information and agreement is enclosed.  The 3-year agreement is for $1,000  

per year, and we want to accept their offer to allow them to put in our initial data 

input, estimated to cost another $1,000.  

Please authorize the signing of this agreement by the supervisor and clerk.  This 

would be paid out of account #101.227.000.960.000 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Residential Services Division 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484.0073 
Fax:  (734)544.3501 

www.ytown.org 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 
HEATHER ROE 

MONICA ROSS-WILLIAMS 
JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

http://www.ytown.org/


Proprietary & Confidential.  © Copyright MSDSonline Inc., DBA VelocityEHS.  Do not distribute without authorized consent. Page 1

Catherine Moroni
Regional Sales Team Lead

Direct:  312.881.2953
Email:   cmoroni@MSDSonline.com
Web:    www.MSDSonline.com
Blog:    Blog.MSDSonline.com

Solution Proposal

EHS Compliance Solution

Prepared for

Jeff Allen
Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 

4/26/2017

http://www.msdsonline.com/
http://blog.msdsonline.com/
http://www.facebook.com/msdsonline
http://www.facebook.com/msdsonline
http://twitter.com/
http://twitter.com/
http://www.linkedin.com/groups?home=&gid=1499277&trk=anet_ug_hm
http://www.linkedin.com/groups?home=&gid=1499277&trk=anet_ug_hm
http://www.youtube.com/msdsonline
http://www.youtube.com/msdsonline
http://www.flickr.com/photos/msdsonline/
http://www.flickr.com/photos/msdsonline/
http://blog.msdsonline.com/safety-on-demand-podcast/
http://blog.msdsonline.com/safety-on-demand-podcast/


Proprietary & Confidential.  © Copyright MSDSonline Inc., DBA VelocityEHS.  Do not distribute without authorized consent. Page 2

MSDSonline
At-A-Glance

Year Founded: 1996

Headquarters: Chicago, Illinois

Employees: 300 (+)

Customers: 11,000 (+)

Key Industries/Segments Served:

 Hospitals & Health Care Facilities

 Universities & Junior Colleges

 Emergency Response

 Chemicals & Allied Products 

 Plastics & Allied Products

 Electronic & Electric Equipment

 Durable Goods Manufacturing

 Industrial & Machinery

 Hotels & Motels

 Facilities Management

 K-12 Education

 Utilities 

 Government & Municipalities 

 Food Products

 Construction

In September 2015, MSDSonline 
and its wholly-owned subsidiary KMI 
formed VelocityEHS to reflect the 
company’s focus on a faster and 
simpler approach to EHS, sustainability 
and risk management.  We deliver 
essential cloud EHS capabilities 
through a simple and intuitive platform 
that is more affordable, faster to 
implement, and aims to provide the 
best user experience. Our MSDSonline 
brand chemical management solution 
is among the best known in the 
industry. Today, our solutions are 
trusted by millions of users, from 
virtually every industry, and with more 
than 11,000 customers worldwide, we 
are among the largest and fastest 
growing EHS software companies. 

It’s estimated that more than 5 million facilities in North America handle chemical 
materials. Today, as concern over the environment heightens, the cost of 
noncompliance is not limited to penalties and fines.  Failure to comply with 
various EH&S regulations can lead to:  increased workplace incidents, increased 
employee days away from work, higher workers’ compensation claims, 
operational slowdowns, or potential legal and litigation expenses.

Unfortunately, manual paper-based compliance systems are inefficient and labor 
intensive. Through its MSDSonline  brand chemical management  solutions, 
VelocityEHS has responded.  We’ve developed revolutionary, cloud EH&S 
compliance management solutions; created specifically to help safety 
professionals better understand and manage their risks, simplify compliance, 
promote a safer work environment and implement sustainability practices 
throughout their organization.

Modular in design, the MSDSonline cloud solution integrates a robust suite of 
SDS/chemical inventory management, environmental and regulatory reporting, 
injury & illness recordkeeping, workplace training, and compliance education 
capabilities into one, affordable and easy-to-use system.

 SDS/Chemical Inventory Management & Compliance — Cost-effectively 
comply with OSHA’s Hazard Communication Standard (29 CFR –1910.1200), 
Canada’s WHMIS requirements, and the recently adopted elements of the 
Globally Harmonized System of Classification and Labelling  of Chemicals (GHS).

 Environmental & Regulatory Reporting — Our sophisticated regulatory cross-
referencing (RegXR) engine helps you identify products and ingredients that are 
regulated on various state, federal and international hazardous substance lists.

 Injury & Illness Recordkeeping — Streamline compliance with OSHA’s 
Recordkeeping Standard (29 CFR 1904), and better identify workplace hazards, 
implement corrective actions and promote a safer work environment.

 Workplace Training — Compliance with federal and state regulatory 
requirements, coupled with our effective Web-based training solutions 
can help reduce costs and prevent accidents.

About MSDSonline



Proprietary & Confidential.  © Copyright MSDSonline Inc., DBA VelocityEHS.  Do not distribute without authorized consent. Page 3

Needs Requirements

Your Need Our Solution

Improve employee 
accessibility to safety data 
sheets for right-to-know 
compliance.

MSDSonline HQ Account:
 Easy-to-use, on-demand solution for meeting companywide HazCom 2012 Requirements   
 24/7 unlimited access to industry-leading MSDS database
 24/7 unlimited access to secure, password protected eBinder 
 Robust chemical / MSDS management and regulatory reporting tools
 Customizeable Web interface providing employees with immediate access to MSDSs, labels 

and other safety information

Identify and track newly 
formatted GHS safety data 
sheets

Manage Incoming GHS Safety Data Sheets:
 Unlimited access to our industry-leading database 
 Up to 10,000 new or updated MSDSs added to database each week
 System flags safety data sheets in the GHS format and sends alert when an updated documents 

are available 

Access to a comprehensive 
database of safety data 
sheets

MSDSonline Database:  
 Unlimited access to industry-leading MSDS database containing millions of indexed safety data 

sheets
 Up to 15,000 new or revised safety data sheets added each week
 Request missing MSDSs
 Auto-updates & alerts for revised or updates MSDSs

Access MSDSs on mobile 
devices

Mobile Capabilities:
 Access chemical inventory (eBinder) from any mobile device
 Manage chemical containers via mobile device from where your chemicals are stored
 Admin and employee search and access of needed MSDSs
 Manage and approve chemicals at their point of origin 



Proprietary & Confidential.  © Copyright MSDSonline Inc., DBA VelocityEHS.  Do not distribute without authorized consent. Page 4

Proposed Solution

Pricing Terms & Conditions: This Proposal is valid for 60 days from the Proposal Date set forth above. If
not received by MSDSonline within such period, MSDSonline may deem this pricing null and void.

Proposed Solution Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

MSDS/Chemical Management
 GM PRO Account (Annual License)
 Standard Inclusions:

• 2 Account Administrators
• Print Paper Binders

$ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000

Services
 MSDS Library Build 

• Estimated 500 SDSs
• $  2.00/SDS 

$ 1,000

TOTAL ANNUAL COST $  2,000 $  1,000 $  1,000

TOTAL ANNUAL COST W/O BUILD $  1,000 $  1,000 $ 1,000

* Implementation Services includes standard account start-up & system training costs.



Proprietary & Confidential.  © Copyright MSDSonline Inc., DBA VelocityEHS.  Do not distribute without authorized consent. Page 5

 No Up-Front Capital Investment or Additional Hardware 

 No Software to Install & Maintain Locally

 Quick Implementation without IT Staff Support

 Immediate Access to New Features & Enhancements

 Easy and Intuitive to Use Requiring Little-to-No Extra Training

Time & Labor-Saving ROI

Manual paper-based Safety Data Sheet management systems are inefficient, labor intensive and 
often found out-of compliance. 

MSDSonline has responded by offering a full suite of Web-based MSDS management solutions that 
enable you to more cost-effectively comply with OSHA’s HazCom 2012 Standard, Canada’s Workplace 
Hazardous Materials Information System (WHMIS) requirements, and the much talked about, Globally 
Harmonized System of Classification and Labelling of Chemicals (GHS). 

 Quicker MSDS Search & Retrieval for Employees

 Reduced Hard-Copy Filing & Paper Binder Printing

 Immediate Access to MSDSs for Filling in Missing Documents

 Simplified MSDS Management, Updating & Version Control

 Streamlined Compliance Reporting

Low Total Cost of Ownership

Many companies find less tangible improvements, or soft-cost ROI, in areas of business efficiency, 
reduced paper consumption, employee productivity, employee safety and increased confidence 
knowing your company complies with regulatory requirements.

Return On Investment



Proprietary & Confidential.  © Copyright MSDSonline Inc., DBA VelocityEHS.  Do not distribute without authorized consent. Page 6

Key Compliance Initiatives

MSDSonline is a leading developer of EH&S compliance management solutions designed to help businesses cost-
effectively streamline compliance with a variety of global environmental, health and safety regulatory requirements.  
Built using the latest Web technologies, our intelligent platform delivers unprecedented value by making enterprise-
level features and functionality affordable and accessible to any size business.

Hazard Communication – Hazard communication (i.e. OSHA/WHMIS) regulatory requirements  continue to 

evolve. Our MSDS/chemical management solutions help you to better understand the composition of the chemicals 
at your workplace and mitigate the associated hazards. 

 MSDS/Chemical Management 

 Right-to-Know MSDS Access

 On-Site Chemical Inventory Audits

 Workplace Training Solutions

Global Harmonized System (GHS) – GHS is a global approach to the classification of hazardous chemicals and the 

communication of chemical hazards via labels and safety data sheets. Compliance under GHS requires a complete MSDS 
library update and the addition of new label elements and formatting.

 MSDS Authoring 

 Management of influx of GHS Updated MSDSs

 GHS-Compliant Labelling

Workplace Hazard Materials Information System (WHMIS) – More than 3 million Canadian workers are 

exposed to chemicals on the job. Under WHMIS employers must ensure employees are trained, MSDSs are updated 
every three years and that controlled products in the workplace are properly labeled.

 MSDS/Chemical Management 

 Right-to-Know MSDS Access 

 Verification of MSDSs (3-Year Cycle)

Environmental Compliance & Reporting – Concern for environmental and workplace sustainability have 

become key issues for business’ corporate responsibility programs. MSDSonline offers a variety of solutions to help 
companies of all sizes better manage environmental risks and meet local, state, federal and international regulatory 
compliance requirements.

 Hazardous Chemical Management

 Chemical Spill Response & Reporting

 Environmental & Regulatory Reporting

 Compliance Education

OSHA Recordkeeping – OSHA is strengthening enforcement policies around accurate 

work-place incident reporting. We offer a comprehensive solution to help you better identify, understand and correct 
potential hazards in your workplace.

 Incident Notification

 Case Management & Recordkeeping

 Follow-Up & Corrective Actions



Proprietary & Confidential.  © Copyright MSDSonline Inc., DBA VelocityEHS.  Do not distribute without authorized consent. Page 7

Why Go Electronic?

Paper vs. MSDSonline

Managing your regulatory programs using paper-based methods is cumbersome, costly 
and often leads to noncompliance. As a result, hazard communication is one of the most 
frequently cited violations annually, costing businesses millions in fines, penalties and 
litigation expenses. An electronic system is an easy and affordable way to manage your 
chemicals and to save time, save money and improve compliance. 

By giving you unlimited access to the millions of safety data sheets in our database, with 
more than 20,000 new or updated documents added each week, our system will 
significantly reduce the time you spend hunting for missing MSDSs . Additional features 
like Auto-Updates and Archiving eliminate duplicative MSDS management activities 
across departments and make it easy to comply with OSHA’s Employee Exposure and 

Medical Records Standard – a standard  that requires companies to keep chemical 
information on hand for 30 years beyond their use. 

Maintaining a fully electronic system, and eliminating the use of paper and redundant 
processes, is the sustainable  approach to HazCom compliance. 

Regulatory Reporting

Tier II/Threshold Tracking – Annual Tier II reporting is an important obligation for 
facilities covered by the EPA’s Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act 
(EPCRA), also known as SARA Title III. A Tier II report provides information on the types, 
quantities and locations of chemicals tracked by the EPA. MSDSonline makes it easy for 
safety professionals to group chemicals and reconcile chemical inventories, as well as 
print submittable Tier II forms and other reports, directly from the system.

Detailed Inventory and Container Tracking – Our powerful container-level chemical 
management, tracking and compliance reporting tools provide a complete and accurate 
picture of the chemical hazards in your workplace. At the same time, advanced chemical 
approval and notification workflow tools enable you to control what hazardous chemicals 
are accepted and prevent banned chemicals from entering your environment.

Identify Regulated Chemicals – Our sophisticated regulatory cross-referencing engine 
automatically identifies products and ingredients that are regulated on various state, 
federal and international hazardous substance lists. Used in conjunction with our 
chemical inventory management tools, you have a powerful, all-encompassing system 
to help you better understand the material composition of the products you use, simplify
environmental and regulatory compliance reporting, and facilitate the use of more 
sustainable and renewable raw materials.



Proprietary & Confidential.  © Copyright MSDSonline Inc., DBA VelocityEHS.  Do not distribute without authorized consent. Page 8

Basic System Requirements:

 Internet access 

 Internet Explorer 7.0+, Firefox (Mac and Windows), Safari 5.0+ (Mac and Windows), Chrome

 JavaScript, AJAX and cookies enabled, and DOM storage enabled

 Adobe® Reader® (v.9 or higher recommended) 

 All standard operating systems 

 VGA resolution of 1024x768 or higher recommended 

 MSDS Library Backup requires Windows® XP (SP-3), Vista, 7, 8, or 8.1, Microsoft.NET 4.0 Framework or higher

Secure On-Demand Platform:

 SSL Data Encryption — MSDSonline leverages the strongest 
encryption products to protect your data, including 128-bit SSL 
certification.

 Physical Security — Our secure hosting facility is equipped 
with state-of-the-art security features, including 24-hour staffing, 
photo identification systems, and biometric identification devices.

 System Redundancy — Our hosting system is  designed for 24/7/365 operation, and has built-in 
redundancy at every point. It includes RAID 5 storage, multiple redundant Web, application, database 
and file servers, and redundant power supplies, air conditioning and back-up equipment.

 Perimeter Defense — Our servers are continuously monitored for attempted network attacks on a 
24/7/365 basis, using sophisticated software tools.

 Back-Up — All customer data is automatically backed up on a nightly basis and stored at a secure 
off-site facility.

 Operating System Security — MSDSonline enforces tight operating system-level security by using 
a minimal number of access points to all production servers. We protect all system accounts with 
passwords and follow best practices for periodically modifying them.

System Requirements/Data Security

At MSDSonline, all of our tools are delivered in an easy-to-use, cloud-based platform that’s available 
around-the-clock from any computer connected to the Internet. 



Proprietary & Confidential.  © Copyright MSDSonline Inc., DBA VelocityEHS.  Do not distribute without authorized consent. Page 9

Customer Care & Success

MSDSonline recognizes that our success depends on our customers’ success, and 

that we need to deliver value in a manner that best suits your business objectives. 

By coupling our simple, easy-to-use solution with unparalleled support every step 

of the way, we can help customers achieve their goals faster than they might on 

their own.

Our long-term relationship begins when you are assigned an onboarding specialist. 

They will apply a best-practice approach to your scenario resulting in an 

implementation that is quick and easy, and one that enables you to get the most 

out of your system. Once set up, you will continue to have easy access to our 

responsive support staff who stand by ready to assist you whenever needed.

Onboarding Specialist – Every MSDSonline customer is assigned a specialist who:

 Acts as a single point of contact during the implementation period
 Conducts product overview training for all administrators
 Provides user interface configuration and system deployment assistance
 Ensures that appropriate training and support materials have been 

made available
 (If applicable) Coordinates the Compliance Services project

Customer & Technical Support – All MSDSonline customers are provided easy 
phone, email and chat access to dedicated Customer and Technical personnel 
who support:

 Product questions or concerns
 Technical concerns
 Refresher training or training for new administrators
 Questions around product upgrades or new functionality
 Account and billing assistance

Account Manager (HQ & HQ RegXR Accounts only) – All MSDSonline 
customers are assigned to an Account Manager who:

 Oversees general account satisfaction
 Coordinates the renewal process and adjustments to service levels 

Employee MSDS
Access Options

MSDSs can be made accessible to 

employees via the Internet, a 

customer intranet, or an internal 

private network. Because 

MSDSonline provides a cloud 

solution (Software as a Service), 

the system is always available on 

demand, with no special hardware 

requirements or software to 

download, install, or maintain.

Other deployment/backup options 

include the ability to deploy MSDS 

libraries via other electronic 

storage media including CD-Rom, 

DVD, or Flash Memory Drive.

Contact Us

Hours of Operation

7 a.m. to 7 p.m. U.S. CST

Call Us

Main: 1.312.881.2000

Toll-Free: 1.888.362.2007

Visit Us

MSDSonline

350 North Orleans, Suite 950

Chicago, IL 60654



Proprietary & Confidential.  © Copyright MSDSonline Inc., DBA VelocityEHS.  Do not distribute without authorized consent. Page 10

This Proposal is confidential between the intended party and MSDSonline (DBA VelocityEHS) and is to be used for 
the sole purpose of developing a relationship between the two companies. Publication or reproduction of this 
document in whole or in part, without the prior written permission of MSDSonline, is prohibited.

This Proposal is intended for marketing purposes only and is not intended to be used for legal advice relating to 
OSHA or any other regulatory compliance rules. This Proposal is not a legally binding document, and it may not 
be used to construe or interpret any definitive agreement entered into by the parties.  

Copyright © 2001-2016, MSDSonline Inc., DBA VelocityEHS. All rights reserved. MSDSonline® is a proprietary 
trademark of MSDSonline Inc., DBA VelocityEHS.  All other trademarks are the property of the respective owners.

Legal Disclaimer



Contract #: 071233 MSDSonline Proprietary and Confidential Page  of 1 2

MSDSonline

Signature: {{Sig_es_:sender:signature:font(name:Arial,size=7)}}

Name: {{Sig_es_:sender:fullName:font(name:Arial,size=7)}}

Title: {{Ttl_es_:sender:title:font(name:Arial,size=7)}}

Date: {{Dte_es_:sender:date:font(name:Arial,size=7)}}

Charter Township of Ypsilanti

Signature: {{Sig_es_:signer:signature:font(name:Arial,size=7)}}

Name: {{Sig_es_:signer:fullName:font(name:Arial,size=7)}}

Title: {{Ttl_es_:signer:title:font(name:Arial,size=7)}}

Date: {{Dte_es_:signer:date:font(name:Arial,size=7)}}

 
Net 30
Annually
30 days from execution

PO Number:
Payment Terms:
Billing Frequency:
Initial Invoice Due:

Not Applicable
Upon Execution
Determined upon execution
3 Years
1 Location(s)

Related Contract:
Contract Start Date:
Contract End Date:
Term:
Coverage:

Ship to:
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
Jeff Allen
7200 S Huron River Dr
Ypsilanti, MI 48197

Customer
Attn:
Address:

Bill to:
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
Jeff Allen
7200 S Huron River Dr
Ypsilanti, MI 48197

Customer:
Attn:
Address:

071233
5/8/2017
Catherine Moroni
6/7/2017

Contract Number:
Contract Date:
Sales Rep:
Offer Valid Through:

222 Merchandise Mart Plaza, Suite 1750
Chicago, IL 60654
Ph: 312.881.2000
Fax: 866.320.1021
Tax ID #: 04-3626476

Customer Order Form

Customer Information

Terms and Conditions

MSDS Management Qty Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

GM Account 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

Management Licenses - GM 2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Services Qty Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

PDF Processing/Scanning 500 $1,000.00 

Total: $2,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

This Customer Order is governed by the terms and conditions of the MSDSonline Master Subscription Agreement, as posted on www.MSDSonline.com. By signing below, Customer agrees to be
bound by such terms and conditions. MSDSonline may deem this Customer Order null and void if executed agreement is not received by MSDSonline by the “Offer Valid Through” date listed above,
or if the document is returned with handwritten changes.



Contract #: 071233 MSDSonline Proprietary and Confidential Page  of 2 2

Exhibit A

Base subscription pricing includes:
Annual subscription for one Primary Account Administrator and 1 Additional Administrator(s).  Additional Administrators may be
purchased for $175.00 USD per Administrator.

Unlimited MSDS database searches, views and additions to the eBinder.

Annual allotment of 25 MSDS Requests and 100 MSDS Uploads.  Additional MSDS Requests may be purchased in bundles of
fifty (50) for $200 USD; additional MSDS Uploads may be purchased in bundles of (100) for $200 USD.

Implementation Services and Technical & Customer Support

MSDSonline will build the Customer’s electronicCompliance Services Project – PDF Processing/Scanning Paper Documents:  
MSDS library (eBinder) by either processing electronic MSDS files (PDF preferred) or scanning paper MSDS documents supplied
by the Customer for a flat fee of $1000 USD based on there being up to 500 MSDS files.

Standard Indexing package will be applied.  Includes the following fields: Product Name, Product Synonyms, Product Code,
Manufacturer Name, Supplier Name, MSDS Revision Date, Regulatory Format and Primary CAS Number.

Additional fields may be indexed upon request (additional charges may apply).

If the total number of MSDS files or documents submitted falls below 500, MSDSonline will grant additional MSDS Requests and
MSDS Uploads as credit.

An additional charge of $2.00 USD  per MSDS will be assessed if the number of MSDS files or documents submitted exceeds
500.

MSDSonline will obtain approval prior to proceeding on any work that will result in additional charges.

Unless otherwise noted, all fees are in USD, and Year One (1) fees become due within 30 calendar days of the execution of this
Customer Order Form.  The Base Subscription period will commence on the Contract Start Date, as noted on page one (1) of this
agreement; the Contract Start Date will become the subscription “anniversary date”.  Subsequent yearly fees will be invoiced
between 45 and 60 days before each anniversary date, with payments due prior to each anniversary date.  Customer may at its
discretion pre-pay the full term of the agreement. Sales tax associated to this Order will appear on the invoice, where applicable.



2017 YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP SECOND AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _____ day of _______, 2017, 
by and between the Township Board of Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw 
County, parties of the first part and the Board of Washtenaw County 
Road Commissioners, parties of the second part. 

WHEREAS, the parties of the first part desire that certain improvements 
be made upon the local roads in the Township of Ypsilanti, and   

WHEREAS, proper authority is provided to the parties of the agreement 
under the provisions in Act 51 of Public Acts of 1951 as amended, 

IT IS NOW THEREFORE AGREED, the parties of the second part will 
accomplish the improvements as specified herein, all in accordance with 
the standards of the parties of the second part. 

It is further understood that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti will be 
a named insured on the Washtenaw County Road Commission’s coverages for 
liability for the activities described above.  The Road Commission will 
submit a certificate of insurance evidencing such coverages to the 
Township Clerk prior to implementation of services under the contract. 
Each party to this contract shall be responsible for the acts and 
omissions of its employees and agents. 

1. Partridge Creek Subdivision:
Work to include crack sealing.  Roads to include: Eagle Trace 
Court, Eagle Trace Drive, Creek Bend Drive, Breezewood Court, 
Pebblestone Drive, Eden Court, Reflection Court, Mapledale 
Drive, Hummingbird Court, Hummingbird Drive, Blue Jay Drive, 
Wood Pecker Court, Sofia Drive and Thornhill Drive. 
Estimated project cost: $   36,900.00 

2. Forest Avenue, Ford Boulevard to Midway Road:
Work to include roadside berm removal, cold milling of 
existing HMA pavement, traffic signal detector loop 
replacement at Ford Boulevard, placement of HMA wedging, 
followed by 1¾“ HMA overlay and project restoration 
Estimated project cost: $   67,400.00 

3. Emerson Avenue and Outer Lane Drive 
Work to include ditching, milling the existing surface, 
placement of a 3” HMA overlay and structure adjustments with 
associated project restoration.  
Estimated project cost $  160,300.00 



2017 Ypsilanti Township Second Agreement 
Page Two 

AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

2017 LOCAL ROAD PROGRAM 
Partridge Creek Subdivision $  36,900.00 
Forest Avenue $  67,400.00 
Emerson Avenue and Outer Lane Drive $ 160,300.00 
Subtotal $ 264,600.00 

Less 2017 Conventional Matching Funds: $ 126,376.00 
Less 2017 Drainage Matching Funds:   5,924.00 

ESTIMATED AMOUNT TO BE PAID BY YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT DURING 2017: $ 132,300.00

FOR YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP: 

___________________________________     _______________________________  
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor      Witness 

___________________________________     _______________________________  
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk       Witness 

FOR WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION: 

___________________________________     _______________________________ 
Douglas E. Fuller, Chair       Witness 

___________________________________     _______________________________ 
Roy D. Townsend, Managing Director     Witness 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP  

OF YPSILANTI 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-09 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 
 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Merritt Road between 
Munger and Stoney Creek for runners to cross Merritt Road at Wiard’s 
Orchard to enter Rolling Hills on Friday, July 14, 2017 from 6:30 p.m. to 7:00 
p.m. for the Oberun 5K to benefit Karen’s Trail/Friends of the Border to 
Border Trail. 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as indicated 
above; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Road Commission. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Randal Step, owner R.F. 
Events be the authorized official designee in this instance, when 
application is made to the Washtenaw County Road Commission for this 
temporary road closure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



From : Lisa Garrett 
<lgarrett@ytown.org>

Subject : Fwd: [SPAM?-NOSPF] 
RE: Run Scream Run - 
Road Crossing 
Application

To : Lisa Garrett 
<lgarrett@ytown.org>

Zimbra lgarrett@ytown.org

Fwd: [SPAM?-NOSPF] RE: Run Scream Run - Road 
Crossing Application

Mon, May 08, 2017 02:15 PM 
1 attachment

Lisa Garrett 
Deputy Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
(734) 484-4700

From: "Mandy Hetfield" <mandy@rfevents.com>

To: "Lisa Garrett" <lgarrett@ytown.org>, "dawn" <dawn@rfevents.com>

Sent: Monday, May 1, 2017 12:26:12 PM

Subject: [SPAM?-NOSPF] RE: Run Scream Run - Road Crossing Application

Hi Lisa –
This a request for the summer event. 

Page 1 of 4Zimbra

5/8/2017https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=72840&tz=America/New_York...



We love Rolling Hills and they are happy for us to add 
another race!

We are looking to get put on the list for Board approval 
for the May meeting. 

This is our 1st  year doing this event.

We will be submitting our permit application to Wash Co 
soon and they will need Ytown board approval.  

Event: Oberun 5K

Date: Friday, July 14, 2017

Start/Finish & parking: Wiard’s Orchard

Distances: 5k

Expected # of participants: 2,500

Map: Attached, the only road we go on is Merritt 
and this is only to cross from Wiard’s Orchard to 
Rolling Hills. 

Time Frame: 5K will start at 6:30pm. All runners 
will be across and back into Wiards by 7pm. 

The race benefits Karen’s Trail/Friends of the 
Border to Border Trail

Page 2 of 4Zimbra

5/8/2017https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=72840&tz=America/New_York...



There will be course marshals at the road crossing 
to ask traffic to hold until runners cross.  

There will also be “Runners on Road” crossing 
signs to warn vehicles before they get to the 
runners.

Randal Step, owner of R.F. Events, as the official 
designee for this event

Please let me know what other information you need. 
Thank you for turning this around to WCRC for this event. 

Thank you!

Mandy

Mandy Hetfield
RF Events
5700 Jackson Rd
Ann Arbor, MI 48103

Charter Township of Ypsilanti

Page 3 of 4Zimbra

5/8/2017https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=72840&tz=America/New_York...





CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

OF YPSILANTI 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Merritt Road between 
Munger and Stoney Creek for runners to cross Merritt Road at Wiard’s 
Orchard on Saturday, October 7, 2017 from 8:30 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. for the 
Run Scream Run 5K, 10K and Kid’s Mile to benefit the March of Dimes of 
Southeastern Michigan. 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as indicated 
above; and 

WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Road Commission. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Randal Step, owner R.F. 
Events be the authorized official designee in this instance, when 
application is made to the Washtenaw County Road Commission for this 
temporary road closure. 



From : Mandy Hetfield 
<mandy@rfevents.com>

Subject : [SPAM?-NOSPF] Run 
Scream Run - Road 
Crossing Application

To : 'Lisa Garrett' 
<lgarrett@ytown.org>, 
dawn@rfevents.com

Zimbra lgarrett@ytown.org

[SPAM?-NOSPF] Run Scream Run - Road Crossing 
Application

Mon, May 01, 2017 12:17 PM 
1 attachment

External images are not displayed.   Display images below

Hi Lisa –

We are looking forward to another great event! Getting this 
to you early, and I am going to send you a second request 
for another event we are adding. 

We are looking to get put on the list for Board approval for 
your May meeting. 

This is our 7th year doing this event and everything has 
always worked out great!

We will be submitting our permit application to Wash Co 
soon and they will need Ytown board approval.  

Event: Run, Scream, Run

Page 1 of 3Zimbra

5/9/2017https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=72472&tz=America/New_York



Date: Saturday, October 7, 2017

Start/Finish & parking: Wiard’s Orchard

Distances: 5k/10k, Kid’s Mile (1 Mile will cross into 
Rolling Hills)

Expected # of participants: 2,000

Map: Attached, the only road we go on is Merritt and 
this is only to cross from Wiard’s Orchard to Rolling 
Hills. 

Time Frame: 5k/10k will start together at 8:30am 
first runners can be expected in Rolling Hills shortly 
after that.  All races should be finished and packed 
up by 11:00am

The race once again benefits March of Dimes of SE 
Mich.

There will be course marshals at the road crossing to 
ask traffic to hold until runners cross.  

There will also be “Runners on Road” crossing signs 
to warn vehicles before they get to the runners.

Randal Step, owner of R.F. Events, as the official 
designee for this event

Please let me know what other information you need. Thank 
you for turning this around to WCRC for this event. 

Page 2 of 3Zimbra

5/9/2017https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=72472&tz=America/New_York



Thank you!

Mandy

Mandy Hetfield
RF Events
5700 Jackson Rd
Ann Arbor, MI 48103

Charter Township of Ypsilanti

Charter Township of Ypsilanti

wiards.pdf
169 KB  

Page 3 of 3Zimbra

5/9/2017https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=72472&tz=America/New_York





CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

Resolution No. 2017-12 
 

In Honor of 
National Pollinator Week 

June 11-17, 2017 
 
 
 

WHEREAS in 2015, Ypsilanti Township received the first Bee City 
USA designation in the State of Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS the goal of BEE CITY USA is to promote healthy, 
sustainable habitats and communities for bees and other pollinators; 
and 
 
WHEREAS bees and other pollinators around the globe have 
experienced dramatic declines due to a combination of habitat loss, 
use of pesticides and the spread of pests and diseases, with grave 
implications for the future health of flora and fauna; and 
 
WHEREAS we all have the opportunity to support bees and other 
pollinators on both public and private land; and 

 
WHEREAS supporting pollinators fosters environmental awareness 
and sustainability, and increases interactions among community 
stewards such as commercial and backyard beekeepers, farmers, 
children, educators, Master Naturalists, Master Gardeners, plant 
nurseries, municipalities, neighborhoods, and garden suppliers and 
clubs; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti Board of Trustees does hereby proclaim the week of June 
11-17, 2017 NATIONAL POLLINATOR WEEK in Ypsilanti Township 
and we encourage all citizens to obtain and share information about 
the proper uses of fertilizers in order to ensure a healthy future for all. 
 



 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
A. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2017 AT 

APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM – AMENDMENT TO LAKEVIEW STREETLIGHT 
DISTRICT #207 

 
 



 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 


	May 16, 2017
	Departmental Reports
	RSD April/May 2017
	14B District Court April 2017
	Fire March 2017
	Police Services March 2017
	Police Services April 2017

	Work Session Agenda
	Executive Session
	Discussion on Resolution to Reaffirm Housing Affordability and Economic Study
	Fireworks Discussion
	Review Agenda
	Other Discussion

	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Public Hearing - Request to Reschedule
	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes of April 18, 2017 Work Session
	Minutes of the April 18, 2017 Regular Meeting
	Minutes of the April 27, 2017 Special Meeting
	Statements and Checks - May 2, 2017
	Statements and Checks - May 16, 2017
	Treasurer's Report April 2017

	Attorney Report
	New Business 
	Budget Amendment #8
	Request to Approve Consent Judgement 
	Request to Consider Rezoning
	Request to Auth. Contracts for School Resource Sharing of Officers
	Request to Approve Access Agreement
	Request to Approve Contract with Hoppe Design
	Request to Apporve Agreement with MSDS-Online
	Request to Approve Agreement with WCRC for Local Rd. Improvements
	Resolution 2017-09, Rd. Closure Request
	Resolution 2017-10, Rd. Closure Request
	Resolution 2017-12, National Pollinator Week
	Request to Set Public Hearing to Amend Lakeview Streetlight District

	Other Business



